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FOR THE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER
2017 2016
BE_F—+t& BE-Z—RE
+=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+-—H
IEFE IEFE
(RMB’ 000) (RMB’000) CHANGE IN
(NR®TT) (AR¥TT) L-E)
Revenue Yz 89,822 90,331 -0.6%
Other revenue Hip = 2,983 3,183 -6.3%
Profit before taxation MREL A ER 32,343 32,023 1.0%
Profit for the year FEBR 15,651 19,045 -17.8%
Total comprehensive FEXEBALEE
income for the year 11,522 24,423 -52.8%
Basic earnings per share BRERER
(RMB per share) (BRRAR#T) 0.03 0.04 -25.0%
AS AT AS AT
31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER
2017 2016
RIE—tH R-ZT—REF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+-—H
(RMB’ 000) (RMB’000) CHANGE IN
(NE®TIT) (AR®TT) #E)
Total assets EERE 1,037,051 991,100 4.6%
Total equity e 959,915 956,316 0.4%
FEHRSE
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AFMBHE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—F—+tF ZE-RE ZE-HF ZE-0F —Z-=F
Profitability data (RMB’000) BRHEEHER
(NR¥F)
Revenue G 89,822 90,331 72,599 58,901 53,328
Profit from operation FEG=eny S| 32,542 32,416 30,009 32,588 25,508
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 32,343 32,023 35,216 39,814 32,620
Profit for the year FR@F 15,651 19,045 24,333 26,354 19,041
Basic earnings per share BRERER

(RMB per share) (BIRA R T) 0.03 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.06

Profitability ratios (%) BEFILE (%)
Operating profit margin (Note 1) RN (1) 36.0 355 48.5 67.7 61.2
Net profit margin (Note 2) HRIR(frat2) 17.4 21.1 33.5 44.7 35.7
Effective tax rate (Note 3) BERBIRMZ3) 51.6 40.5 30.9 33.8 41.6
Return on total assets (Note 4) EEBREERMT4) 1.5 1.9 2.8 3.6 2.7
Return on shareholders’ equity IRERESEIR(HEES)

(Note 5) 1.6 2.0 2.9 3.8 2.9
Cost to income ratio (Note 6) AW A LL (f72E6) 58.5% 62.1% 60.9% 53.0% 72.0%
Operating ratios RELE(EEEE

(as percentage of turnover) (%) B%# ) (%)

Staff costs BIRA 30.7 28.0 25.6 24.8 12.0
Assets and liabilities data EERABERE

(RMB'000) (ANR®FT)

Total assets BEAE 1,037,051 991,100 878,939 733,621 705,941
Total liabilities EEBE 77,136 34,784 36,112 42,209 49,039
Net assets BEETHE 959,915 956,316 842,827 691,412 656,902
Assets and Working EEREEELERE (%)

Capital data (%)

Return on assets (Note 7) BERRAZ7) 1.6 2.0 2.8 3.6 2.7
Return on equity (Note 8) B (At 8) 1.7 2.2 3.2 3.8 35

TEERBER (BR) ARATF



Notes:

Operating profit margin is calculated based on dividing profit before
taxation by revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Net profit margin is calculated based on dividing the profit for the year by
revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Effective income tax rate is calculated based on dividing the income tax
by the profit before taxation and multiplied by 100%.

Return on total assets is calculated based on dividing profit for the year
by the total assets and multiplied by 100%.

Return on shareholders’ equity is calculated based on dividing profit for
the year by the total equity and multiplied by 100%.

Cost to income ratio is calculated based on dividing operating expenses
after deducting tax and surcharges by revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Return on assets is calculated based on dividing profit attributable to
equity shareholders of our Company by total asset and multiplied by
100%.

Return on equity is calculated based on dividing profit attributable to
equity shareholder of our Company by the weighted average balance of
total equity as at the beginning and end of the relevant year and multiplied
by 100%.
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AR R 2R T 1R BRBE AT 88 FBR LA Yk 25 5
LA100% 5T &

AR R T 12 F 3R I BR BA U a5 B
100% 5t &

BIRPTSH R IR PTS T BR DA BRBE AT
FIFELL100% 5t E

BEEABRRNEERNZNBRUEES
FAFLA100% 51 &

PR R B3R T IR F R R R A = A
FEFELL100% 5T E

ARAUTA L T3 LA BRBE & B2 BT AN A AR &
B BRI ES TR 100% 5T E
BERRDIRAD BERSRRENER
BRUAEEMEERLL100% 5T &

FERS B3] TR AR D B R i IR R B A
BRUERBEREBF IR FRNME
FIEEERTRLL100% 5T E
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Success
Finance Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Success
Finance”), | am pleased to present the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

In 2017, market concerns over the heightened geopolitical risks and
the emergence of anti-globalisation, coupled with the US Federal
Reserve’s gradual implementation of interest rate hike and shrinking
balance sheet for interest rate normalisation, fuelled uncertainties
over the global economy. Nevertheless, China’s economy kept up its
momentum and saw a stable and positive trend as the national GDP
grew 6.9% over 2016, witnessing the first accelerated growth since
2011.

Since the beginning of the “Thirteenth Five-Year” Plan, the Chinese
government strived to foster the development of emerging industries
such as finance and technology, while spurring industrial upgrades
and transformation. Faced with overcapacity in old industries, less-
than-mature state of new industries, high financial risks and other
factors, the financial sector has experienced considerable changes
in its demand structure. While these issues presented challenges to
the Group, opportunities for business development have also arisen.
With the domestic financial market progressing, the government has
tightened its regulatory control on the financial sector to enhance
capabilities of curtailing risks. The Group will capitalise on the country’s
development trend, uphold the idea of innovation through refining its
business structure and improving customer experience, so as to gain
more room for development.

In the past year, to align with the redefined strategic positioning of
the Group and the country’s macro-environment and the strategy in
relation to the development of the city cluster of Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau greater bay area (the “Bay Area”), the Chinese name
of the Company was changed to “FEl £ @ 2 R (k) BR 27"
The Group continued to build its traditional businesses on its solid
foundation and form stronger partnerships, whilst pushing ahead key
new operations such as integrated services for the Bay Area and asset
management. During the reporting period, the Group recorded a total
revenue and profit of approximately RMB92.8 million and RMB15.7
million, respectively.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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For financial consultancy business, the Group leveraged the extensive
experience of its consultancy team and offered one-stop specialty
services to clients. The Group further enriched the portfolio of its
financial consultancy business by developing services to accommodate
the varied needs of customers, such as enterprise revival, construction
management enhancement, debt restructuring, project investment
consultation, land rights consolidation and credit repair. The increase
of revenue from low-risk, asset-light and prepositive business will help
strengthen customer base, facilitate the development of extended
services of the Group.

For financial leasing business and factoring business, the government
enforced stricter regulation to the financial leasing sector in 2017.
Shenzhen Success Financial Leasing Company Limited (“Success
Financial Leasing”), a subsidiary under the Group, continued to
expand in the construction financing industry and strengthen risk
control, as it earned customers’ acclaim for its professionalism and
specialty in financing services, which led to an encouraging customer
renewal rate. In 2017, the operating environment of factoring business
has been improved. The Group actively developed its factoring
business during the year and achieved considerable growth.

For guarantee business,Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee
Company Limited (“Success Guarantee”) continued to optimise
business structure to manage risks by actively serving small and
micro enterprises, as well as individuals, with relevant demand, and
innovating financial guarantee and non-financial guarantee services and
products.

The Group endeavoured to flourish its asset management business.
To forge a “twin-driver” development of asset management operations
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group made a vital step
in drawing synergies through capital injection and preparing for
application of a new asset management license in Mainland China, and
obtaining a license granted by the Securities and Futures Commission
by acquisition in Hong Kong.
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In addition, in its effort to propel the development of integrated
services for the Bay Area, the Group actively communicated with the
government to seek establishment of municipal development fund
for the Bay Area, rejuvenated and revitalised enterprises in the Bay
Area with the help of innovative financial instruments; whilst offering
investment and mergers and acquisitions consultancy services for
enterprises in the Bay Area. All these initiatives will facilitate the
development of the Bay Area and bring along new growth points to the
Group.

Meanwhile, the Group spared no effort in opening up more channels of
cooperation. Through developing and cementing business relationships
with government authorities, large state-owned enterprises, renowned
asset management companies, regional state owned investment
holding companies, banks and financial institutions, and enlisting
cooperation on disposal of distressed assets, fund partnership,
debt restructuring investment, shared customer resources and
other aspects, the Group has laid a solid foundation for its business
development.

Looking ahead, 2018 is the kick-off year of the 19th Party Congress
and the crucial year of attaining affluent society and enacting the
13th Five-year Plan. The 19th Party Congress has outlined the plan to
foster mutually beneficial cooperation between Mainland China and
Hong Kong and Macau, with the focus on building of the Bay Area
and Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau cooperation, Pan-Pearl River
Delta regional cooperation. The proposal has given new established
mission and meaning to such cross-region cooperation. The 19th Party
Congress has set its tone on the financial sector as a vital boost to the
real economy. Therefore, the development of the Bay Area will fortify
the connection amongst cities in the Bay Area, including Guangzhou,
Foshan, Shenzhen and Hong Kong, while stimulating the development
of the Bay Area, creating new opportunities for infrastructure
construction and financial services. The policy is in line with the
Group’s years of regional layout and business direction.

In 2018, the Group will steadily grow its traditional businesses, continue
to utilise the financial platform of guarantee, financial leasing and
other operations to develop new businesses. The Group will grasp the
opportunity of the construction of the Bay Area, and contribute to its
development by offering financial services.
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In 2018, the Group will continue to increase capital of its subsidiaries,
serving the purpose of financial leverage. The Group will also invest
and acquire enterprises that are financial innovative or beneficial to the
Group’s future development, with the view to adapting to the stringent
financial regulations and the rising demand of innovative development
in the future.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, clients and business partners.
Management and all employees of the Group will uphold their
commitment to bringing better results and maximising returns for
investors and shareholders.

Zhang Tiewei
Chairman and Executive Director

29 March 2018
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Overview

In 2017, the world’s economic momentum was gathering pace, while
growth in developed economies continued to thrive and emerging
markets stabilised and rebounded. The accelerated growth in
international trade led to a recovery in global manufacturing industry;
however, the global economy was posed increased risks. US Federal
Reserve'’s policies of interest hikes and shrinking its balance sheet
impacted emerging economies while continued loose monetary policy
fostered asset bubbles, resulting in a high global debt level. Issues
such as lack of growth driver, incomplete governance system and
imbalance in developments of the global economies are to be tackled.
Moreover, the rise of protectionism and anti-globalisation, intensified
geopolitical conflicts, and higher traditional and non-traditional security
threats have fueled uncertainties over the world’s economy.

China’s economy was better than expected in 2017. The country’s GDP
expanded by 6.9%, withessing an increase of 0.2 percentage point in
growth rate over 2016 and it was the first growth pick up since 2011. In
2017, China experienced stable employment situation, neutral monetary
policy and mild inflation. With the deepening adjustment of economic
structure, consumption and service sectors made greater contributions
to the economic growth; whilst various sectors sped up the transition
of traditional and new business drivers, increased utilisation, improved
efficiency and thus boosted China’s economic development through
innovation and technological upgrades.

Since the beginning of the Thirteenth Five Year Plan, China has
implemented various measures to promote emerging business
sectors such as finance and technology, and give greater supports
to the development of economy and society. In 2017, finance sector
continued to make significant contributions to serving real economy,
avoiding financial risks and deepening restructuring efforts. It is
anticipated that the sector will play a more essential role in supporting
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), three rural areas (rural
areas, agriculture, and farmers), construction of infrastructures,
industrial upgrades and cultivation of new boosters.

To adjust to the new norm of economic development, the Group
capitalized on the country’s development trend, upheld the idea of
innovation and focused on its strategic positioning; whilst achieving
continuous development through facilitating stable development
of traditional operations, promoting asset management business,
initiating integrated services in the Bay Area and reinforcing partnership
mechanism. During the period, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately RMB92.8 million, and recorded profit for the period of
approximately RMB15.7 million.
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Industry and Business

Financial consultancy business

Capitalising on its comprehensive market resources, in-depth expertise
and profound business development capabilities, the Group integrated
and optimised a wide arrays of specialty services such as solution
design, management consulting, legal supports for finance and
taxation, product design, liquidity management and capital operation
to fulfil the needs of customers by providing one-stop services.
In 2017, the Group further enriched the portfolio of its financial
consultancy business by developing services such as enterprise revival,
construction management enhancement, debt restructuring, project
investment consultation, land right consolidation and credit repair. With
the value-added services, the Group inspired client loyalty, paving the
way for its development of extended services and generating stable
income.

Financial leasing business and factoring business

In 2017, increasingly stringent regulatory requirements in financial
leasing business created both crisis and opportunities. According to
the Fifth National Financial Work Conference, financial leasing industry
will be under the supervision of China Banking Regulatory Commission.
Nevertheless, macro-economic growth decelerated and asset quality
of leasing companies deteriorated, resulting in margin squeeze by the
narrowing of interest spread. The rising similarity of business intensified
market competition, which in turn presented challenges to the risk
management and professional level of leasing companies.

During the year of 2017, factoring business sector enjoyed an improved
operating environment. Seven types of institutions such as factoring and
leasing companies and guarantee companies were included in the scope
of supervision by local financial regulatory bodies. Factoring business
and other financing service institutions were required to expand their
scale of receivable financing operation, while content about receivable
financing’s role to promote financing for SMEs were incorporated in
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Promotion of Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises ({/NEEREE )).

Success Financial Leasing rooted in the construction financing
industry by providing a wide range of business such as direct leasing,
sale-leaseback, trusted leasing and joint leasing. In 2017, Success
Financial Leasing strengthened risk control and upheld the principle of
“strengthening pledge management and choosing clients with caution”.
Success Financial Leasing has gained reputation with its professional
and distinguished leasing business. Most of its clients renewed their
contract to continue to enjoy the services provided.
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Success Financial Leasing actively expanded its factoring business
after the successful filing of its factoring qualification in 2016, and
the factoring business gradually became a recurring business model,
driving operational income. In 2017, revenue from factoring business
was approximately RMB7.6 million, up approximately 61.7% year-on-
year.

Guarantee business

In 2017, guarantee business enjoyed favourable policy environment.
Mainland China proactively promoted steady and healthy development
of the guarantee industry. The newly promulgated regulation clarified
the pivotal role of financial guarantee in overcoming the financing
difficulties of small and micro enterprises and the three rurals. It, at the
national level, pushed for the establishment of a governmental system
of financial guarantee through cooperation among governments,
banking institutions, and financial guarantee companies; whilst
enlarging the scale of business operations for small and micro
enterprises and the three rurals, and maintaining low level of fee
charge. It also encouraged local governments to invest capital and form
risk sharing mechanism, so as to provide financial supports to financial
guarantee companies serving small and micro enterprises and the three
rurals.

Mainland China lent further financial supports to guarantee institutions
through the substantial changes in value-added tax-free policy for
guarantee companies. While such initiative demonstrated a policy
guidance, simplified tax-free formalities and lowered the threshold,
it was of utmost importance to influence guarantee institutions for
focusing on serving small and micro enterprises.

Faced with uncertainties in the economy, Success Guarantee continued
to target its services to small and micro enterprises and individuals. It
adopted a prudent operating principle with the stress of risk control,
sustaining volume and boosting development, while refining its
structure of guarantee operation. During the period, Success Guarantee
continued to focus on non-financial guarantee service and create new
businesses in order to ready itself for the downward economic cycle.

Housing financing business

Local governments actively stepped up efforts in property control in
2017 to curb speculation. The short-term policy guidance and the
acceleration of building long-term mechanism is to construct a ladder-
shaped consumption structure for residential housing.
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The Group’s real estate financing business relies on Foshan Success
Financial Services Outsourcing Limited (“Success Financial
Services”). In 2017, Success Financial Services continued to improve
its existing business, and proactively refined its business structure,
steered its focus on secondary property market and strengthened
external cooperation to cope with the shrinking of primary market.

Promoting asset management business

In 2017, the Group mainly focused on the expansion of financing
channels, business channels and asset management license in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Mapping out asset management strategy: In Mainland China,
Guangdong Success Asset Management Company Limited (“Success
Asset”) increased its capital to approximately RMB170 million to
build further capital strength. In addition, we aim to integrate platform
resources and diversify the asset management business through the
establishment of new asset management company and application
of a new fund management license. In Hong Kong, the Group set up
a professional capital operating team to obtain an asset management
license from the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
through acquisition, laying solid foundation for the synergic
development of Mainland China and Hong Kong businesses.

Giving full play to the strengths of listing status: In early 2018, the
Group raised HK$153 million from the issuance of the convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$154 million. That
expanded the Group’s capital channels and favoured its business
development, thereby strengthening its position in the capital market.

Developing integrated services for Bay Area

On 1 July 2017, the National Development and Reform Commission
(NDRC) and governments of Guangdong Province, Hong Kong
and Macau entered into the Framework Agreement on Deepening
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Cooperation in the Development of the
Bay Area ( FRILEBRESEHEXNEEBEZIELRTZE )), indicating the
official launch of the development of the Bay Area. The Group has been
proactively exploring growth points and fostering the development of
the Bay Area.
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The Group is committed to develop its municipal financial services.
It aims at solving the liquidity problems incurred during construction
of municipal projects through setting up municipal development fund
with government, acquiring or investing in receivables of infrastructure
projects payable by government. Currently, the municipal infrastructure
account receivables transfer programmes have been approved by the
government and were being implemented, providing a replicable model
for developing future services for municipal projects.

The Group cooperates with local financial holdings, asset management
companies, banks, governments and other parties, and, through debt
restructuring for enterprises with development potentials in the Bay
Area, revitalises their assets, improves their liquidity, reinvigorates their
businesses, so as to revive these business corporations.

The Group, as a “financial advisor”, offers professional investment
and merger and acquisition services including solution design, legal
supports, coordination of finance and taxation, and capital operation.
We forge a better partnership with enterprises by providing them with
value-added services.

Strengthening cooperation mechanism

In 2017, the Group continued to expand and deepen the cooperation
mechanism with various sectors. Through reinforcing collaboration
with local governments, asset companies, financial institutions and
other parties, we explored and created demand from clients, enhanced
service capability and strengthened the Group’s core competitiveness.

On 30 March 2017, the Company established a comprehensive
strategic partnership with China Great Wall Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (“China Great Wall Asset Management”), a state-owned financial
enterprise. Both parties intended to forge all-round bilateral cooperation
on mutual strategic investment, cooperation with the management and
disposal of non-performing assets, setting up of urban development
funds and other projects. In addition, the Group has established varied
business connection with a number of renowned asset management
companies in Mainland China.

Covering corporate chain services, the Group initiated the cooperation
with the governments, banks, local financial conglomerates, investment
institutions, equity transferring institutions and other parties, achieved
consensus and cooperation in the fund, debt restructuring investment,
funding arrangements and other aspects in order to provide multi-
dimension integrated services for the enterprises.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the placing of new shares completed on 12
October 2016 were approximately HK$108,900,000, and had been
utilised as follows as at 31 December 2017:

FREREAR

R-ZB—AE+ A+ AREHBRHFHF
S EIEF AL 55 108,900,000 58 7T » 2K
EBE-E—t&+-A=+—-HER
TR :

HK$’million

BEER

Establishment of China Success Capital (HK) Limited RITEERER(FB)BRAT 20.01

Investment of Shenzhen Success Number RERYIMEN— SRR HE 74.49
One Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) REESPL(BRER)

General working capital of the Group EE-REELES 14.40

Total net proceeds unutilized RABRIBEFE 0

All the net proceeds (approximately HK$108,900,000) from the placing
of new shares completed on 12 October 2016 had been used up for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 1 February 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$154 million under general mandate.
The net proceeds, which has not been utilised, was deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and will be used as general working capital of the
Group and for development of the existing and future projects of the
Group.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB89.8 million (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB90.3 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 0.6%. Detailed analysis of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

Financial consultancy business

Revenue from the Group’s financial consultancy services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for providing customers
with financial consultancy services by the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue generated from financial
consultancy services was approximately RMB29.2 million (year ended
31 December 2016: approximately RMB26.7 million), representing
approximately 32.5% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017 (year ended 31 December 2016: approximately
29.6%).
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Financial consultancy services remained the Group’s focus in its
business model in 2017 and was an effective tool in reinforcing
its market position in the financial sector. The Group seized the
opportunity to expand its client base and offered support to clients in
terms of financing, thereby realising a continued growth in income from
it financial consultancy business in 2017.

Financial leasing and factoring business

Revenue from the Group’s financial leasing services was mainly
generated from the rental fees charged by the Group in its provision
of financial leasing services to customers. For the year ended 31
December 2017, revenue from the Group’s financial leasing and
factoring business increased by approximately RMBO0.9 million to
approximately RMB22.4 million (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB21.5 million), representing approximately 24.9%
of the Group’s revenue in 2017 (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately 23.8%).

Meanwhile, revenue from the Group’s factoring business was
approximately RMB7.6 million in 2017.

The Group coped with the slowdown of economic growth by stringent
implementation of risk control policies and proactive re-adjustment of
product portfolio. The Group also shrank its financial leasing business,
which has a higher default risk, whilst bolstering the development of
its factoring business, which has a larger space for financial innovation
and development potential. Therefore, financial leasing business
recorded a drop in income as factoring business witnessed higher
income growth in 2017.

Financial guarantee services

Revenue from the Group’s financial guarantee services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for our financial guarantee
services. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue
generated from financial guarantee services was approximately
RMB5.9 million (year ended 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB11.6 million), representing a decrease of approximately 49.1%
and accounting for approximately 6.6% of the Group’s revenue in
the year ended 31 December 2017 (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately 12.8%). Revenue from financial guarantee services
dropped in 2017 compared to 2016, this was mainly attributable to
our positive measures in response to the downward pressure of the
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economy, given that Success Guarantee insisted in the operation
strategy of sustaining volume and seeking development as it sought
new income growth driver and our financial guarantee services focusing
on gradual exit and maintaining quantity, while exploring new business
operations and discovering new growth points.

In 2017, the Group received interest income of approximately RMB17.0
million from receivables from guarantee payments for their due debts,
representing approximately 18.9% of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Non-financial guarantee services

Revenue from the Group’s non-financial guarantee services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for providing customers with
performance guarantees in relation to the performance of payment
obligations and litigation guarantees. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group’s revenue generated from non-financial guarantee
services increased by approximately 103.8% to approximately RMB5.3
million (year ended 31 December 2016: approximately RMB2.6
million), representing approximately 5.9% of the Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately 2.9%).

In 2017, Success Guarantee continued to refine its business structure,
with an increasing focus on low-risk non-financial guarantee business,
of which operation of performance guarantee achieved ground-
breaking development and accounted for a record-high income
contribution.

Interest from down payments

The Group’s interest from down payments was mainly generated from
interest of prepayments for potential acquisition of projects under
negotiation. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of the
Group’s interest from down payments was approximately RMB11.7
million, representing approximately 13.0% of the Group’s revenue in
2017.

Other Revenue

The Group’s other revenue comprised interest income from bank
deposits, government grants, income from disposal of non-current
assets and others. For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017,
the Group’s other revenue was approximately RMB3.2 million and
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RMB3.0 million, respectively, representing a decrease of approximately
6.3%. The income change was mainly attributable to a decrease in
interest income from bank deposits of approximately 36.0% from
approximately RMB2.5 million in 2016 to approximately RMB1.6 million
in 2017 as a result of a decrease in the principal of time deposit at the
bank.

Impairment and Provision (Charged)/Written Back

Impairment and provision mainly represents the provision of guarantee
losses and the impairment provision for receivables from guarantee
payments, factoring receivable and finance lease receivable where it
is likely that the customers or other parties are in financial difficulties
and recovery was considered to be remote. In the event that any
impairment and provision was made in the previous years but
subsequently recovered, impairment and provision previously made will
be written back in the year in which the relevant amount is recovered.

Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s operating expenses
was approximately RMB53.2 million (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB57.7 million), accounting for approximately 59.2%
(year ended 31 December 2016: approximately 63.9%) of the Group’s
revenue. The decrease in operating expenses was mainly due to the
decrease in office expenses, travelling expenses, advertising expenses
and foreign exchange loss over the previous year.

Share of Losses of Associates

The share of losses of associates amounted to a loss of approximately
RMBO0.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a
decrease of approximately RMBO0.2 million from a loss of approximately
RMBO0.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. Losses from the
share of losses of associates decreased over the previous year due to
Success Credit generating operating profit.
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Profit Before Taxation

The Group’s profit before taxation increased by approximately RMBO0.3
million, or approximately 0.9%, from approximately RMB32.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB32.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. Such increase was mainly
attributable to a decrease in the Group’s operating expenses.

Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s income tax
amounted to approximately RMB16.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately 28.5% from approximately RMB13.0 million in the
corresponding period of 2016. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the increase of taxable profit and unused tax losses from some
subsidiaries.

Trade and Other Receivables - Receivables from
Guarantee Payments

Receivables from guarantee payments mainly represent the default loan
amount repaid by the Group on behalf of our customers. Upon default
by a customer in respect of repayment of a bank loan, according
to the relevant guarantee agreement, the outstanding balance shall
be first paid by the Group on behalf of our customers. The Group
will then subsequently request repayment from our customers or
take possession of the counter-guarantee assets provided by such
customers to recover the outstanding balance. Receivables from
guarantee payments were interest bearing and the Group holds certain
collaterals over certain customers. The net book value of receivables
from guarantee payments increased from approximately RMB215.9
million as at 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB246.9 million as
at 31 December 2017.

Treasury Management and Investment Policy

In order to more effectively utilise the Group’s financial resources for
obtaining a better return for Shareholders, it has been the Group’s
general approach for its management to seek some alternative
investment opportunities which could provide a better return but at
minimum risk exposure.
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Pledged Bank Deposits and Cash and Bank Deposits

As at 31 December 2017, the pledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately RMB95.5 million (31 December 2016: approximately
RMB119.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB23.5 million as compared to the end of last year. Cash and bank
deposits amounted to approximately RMB39.4 million (31 December
2016: approximately RMB157.8 million), representing a decrease
of approximately RMB118.4 million as compared to the end of last
year. The decrease in cash and bank deposits was mainly due to the
increase in the amount of investment made by the Group in 2017 for
enhancing the business development, as well as conducting investment
in different forms.

Interest Rate Risks and Foreign Exchange Risks

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest rate primarily related to
interest-bearing bank deposits and pledged bank deposits.

The Group’s businesses for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
principally conducted in RMB, while most of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. As the RMB
is not a freely convertible currency, any fluctuation in the exchange
rate of HKD against RMB may have an impact on the Group’s result.
Although foreign currency exposure does not pose a significant risk on
the Group and currently, the Group does not have hedging measures
against such exchange risks, the Group will continue to take proactive
measures and monitor closely the risk arising from such currency
movement.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (total liabilities divided by total equity)
increased from approximately 3.6% as at 31 December 2016 to
approximately 8.0% as at 31 December 2017, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in total debt during the year arising from our
participation in the debt acquisition, which we led and cooperated with
a third party.
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The Group recruits personnel from the open market and enters into
employment contracts with them. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages to employees, including salaries, bonuses,
food and accommodation allowance to qualified employees. The Group
places high importance on staff development and provides training to
our staff on a regular basis to enhance their knowledge of the financial
products in the market and the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the industry in which the Group operates. The Group offers
a lot of support to employees with its diverse resources to help boost
their self-esteem and leading to their personal development.

The Group maintained stable relationship with its employees. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had 76 full-time employees. Compensation
of the employees primarily includes salaries, discretionary bonuses,
contributions to social insurance, employer’s liability insurance and
retirement benefit scheme. The Group incurred staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) of approximately RMB27.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as an incentive to the Directors and
eligible employees.

While serving the local economic development, the Group is also
extensively engaged in charitable activities to fulfil social responsibility.
We are widely recognised and appreciated for being a role model. Every
year, Success Charity Foundation (5 & &0 & €), voluntarily initiated
by shareholders and employees of the Group, gives help and support
to employees in need within the Company, provides timely support and
assistance to families of employees who have suffered serious illnesses
or accidental injury, and goes through difficult times with the employees
and their families. Furthermore, to forge cooperation of schools and
enterprises in nurturing talents, Mr. Zhang Tiewei and Ms. Fu Jie, the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, respectively, have
been teaching as off-campus tutors of the master’s degree of finance of
Guangdong University of Finance and Economics to assist students in
developing their skills of applying theories and professional knowledge,
leadership skills and entrepreneurship and high moral standards, with
a view of achieving integration of vocational and academic education.
The Group provides a platform for students from hiring talented ones
who can meeting its requirements as permanent staff, playing a pivotal
role in unfolding the career path of the next generation of financial
talents.
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Macro Outlook

Looking ahead to 2018, international trade protectionism, anti-
globalisation, geopolitical conflicts and other complications give rise
to uncertainties to the economy. Nonetheless, the recovery of global
economy is expected to prevail as emerging markets and developing
countries remain the major force for a strong upturn. The domestic
economy is facing a drop in property sales and slightly tightened
monetary policy, with financial regulatory policy, market environment
and industry layout undergoing transformation and reshaping. China’s
economy is moving from the phase of rapid growth to an important
phase of pursuing high-quality development, optimising the economic
structure and reshuffling its growth drivers.

Year 2018 marks the beginning of the 19th Party Congress which
stresses the focus of financial sector on “deepening financial structural
reform, enhancing financial sector’s capacity of serving real economies,
increasing ratio of direct financing, and facilitating healthy development
of multi-level capital market”. The sector plays a pivotal role in
boosting real economy, thus highlighting the Group’s right direction
in its adherence to providing financial and finance-related services to
thousands of small and micro enterprises.

In addition, the Report on the Work of the Government 2018 (£ 2018
B T /3R % )) which underlines on various fronts the intention of
increasing private investment, lays a solid foundation for the Group’s
business development.

In 2018, the Group will embrace and depict reform, ride on the
prevailing trend, so as to steadily develop traditional businesses and
forge “twin-driver” development of asset management operations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. It will also foster rapid development
of the Group through providing innovative financial services for the
development of enterprises in the Bay Area, and strengthening the
Groups development through investment and mergers and acquisitions.

Steadily Developing Traditional Businesses
The Group will steadily develop traditional businesses, continue to
use guarantee, financial leasing and other operations as the channels

to work closely with small and micro enterprises and enhance its
investment and financing services:
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Financial consultancy business: The Group will continue to give full play
to the strengths of its human capital with extensive and professional
experience in domestic and overseas capital market, investment and
mergers and acquisitions, legal practice, accounting and auditing, and
taxation, while utilising resources from other partnering institutions.
With such measures, the Group intends to provide clients with financial
consultancy services including financial management, investment and
financing, mergers and acquisitions, asset and debt restructuring, and
formulation of development strategies.

Guarantee business: The Group will explore the demand of small and
micro enterprises and the three rurals, and offer clients with integrated
guarantee services. Meanwhile, the Group will capitalise on its existing
business foundation and leverage the idea of internet technology,
to develop new business models, innovate new guarantee business
operations and enrich its product offering, thus further enhance its
competitiveness.

Financial leasing and factoring businesses: The Group will uphold
the purpose of its leasing business to serve real economies, while
continuing to reinforce partnership with other financial institutions with
the bedrock of stable development in its existing leasing and factoring
businesses. The Group will also seek new business models and
gradually form a unique competitive advantage.

Twin-drivers of Asset Management

The Group will seize the opportunities of development of asset
management business in Mainland China. Capitalising on its listing
status, supports from resources and team management level in
Mainland China, and the international platform in Hong Kong, the
Group will provide a diverse range of asset management services to its
clients through its twin-driver development model of asset management
business in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Innovative Financial Service for Development of
Enterprises in The Bay Area

The Group will grasp the opportunities arisen from “bringing an ideal
place for living, working and travelling” initiatives of the Bay Area.
Leveraging its various types of licenses, financial talent and solid
relationships with institutions, the Group will innovate and utilise new
financial tools such as investment loan linkage, equity investment,

BERE

rmP

3

NECEERID

MBEERZH AEESERTDRE
ZENBRNAEERANIIELATSE R
BOfE - AR BFER - RBEEX
I{’F%éﬁ%?ﬂ'])\ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@AVF%
BER ARERFEVBERE RE
B ROTEWE ﬁFEﬁH&Fi‘%E
# - %‘*J?é“ﬁﬁ% E R EREER - 247
R E M BRERIRT -

ESE

EREFZEH  AEBBUNREE -
=R IERFTBRHR  RABESEXR
REFPRUGEMERRE -ERER
BB mEER L EHEBARE

BHE- E%ﬁﬂ’]%i%*ﬁiﬁ ' ’F“U%ﬂfﬂ%%
i%uu@ ERERRGEE mE
RAOE %37'3

Eﬂﬁfﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁﬁ REBEKSE
RESHERBEBRECENRE  BD
BRBAHERREXERER L - #E
MREAtEREENSE  BERRE
RIFEBENX - BEERESBENG

BEXRTEHRED

RNEEHEIMA i KEE R RS
B YR EWRAESR  URBHER
KEBEEKY  UEBHBEBREF
B ABEBEEXBERES AT
FRHUZBCEEASEERE -

ERAIFRBERERER

FEERRNMER EEEXEE IV
B REAEEZBEER 28E
BATREAERBBNR T SFRRE
RAIFMERRERS KRERE BEE

A ERERE lWﬁl‘ﬁﬂWﬁﬁ@J”é%ﬂ
R TR WRAKREE - CE 35
FERE

25



26

gl

BB W

asset restructuring, debt revitalising, and domestic and overseas
linkage. It will also apply big data, cloud computing and other internet
technologies to build customer model, whilst according to their needs
and risk levels, creating the industrial financing service ecosystem
with full value chain including project exploring, capital supports and
enterprise incubation. The Group will build up a deepened, consistent
and scalable support to enterprises from its financial business. It will
achieve, by financial innovation, a win-win situation of the development
of enterprises in the Bay Area and the Group’s profit growth.

Fortifying with Investment and Mergers and Acquisitions

In 2018, the Group will increase the capital of its subsidiaries, in order
to make use of leverage. It will also expand its financial service scope
with more financial licenses, assets and customer sources through
investing in or acquisition of innovative financial enterprises, internet
finance companies, with a view to coping with strengthened financial
regulation and the needs of innovative development in future.

Through internal or external investment, the Group will further increase
its capabilities in terms of capital, license, asset and resources, and
improve its business model, thus bolstering its assets and business
operations.

The Group will constantly review the company development strategies,
and also enhance corporate governance, improve risk control, recruit
professionals as well as actively expand markets to achieve sustainable
and sound business development. Based on its existing foundation and
competitive advantages, and effective execution of business strategies,
the Group will further build an innovative, diversified and integrated
financial service platform for Guangzhou, Foshan, Shenzhen and Hong
Kong, and also extend its leading industry position in Guangzhou-
Foshan region.
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A fair review of the business of our Group as well as discussion
and analysis of our Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2017 and the material factors underlying its financial
performance are set out in the “Chairman Statement” and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of our Group are the provision of financial and non-financial
guarantees services, financial leasing and financial consultancy
services in China.

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the state of our Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 224 of this annual
report.

The cash flow position of our Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out and analysed in the consolidated cash flow statements
set out on pages 102 to 103 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For any taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in the shares of our Company, shareholders should consult an
expert.

Details of our Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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The Company’s register of members will be closed from 11 May 2018
to 18 May 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 10 May 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of our Company was approximately RMB410.8 million.
Movements in the distributable reserves of our Group during the year
are set out in note 27(j) and note 32 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of our Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 100 to 101 of
this annual report.

Details of the movements of equipment of our Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 27(c) to the financial
statements.
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Our Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the Pre-
IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and the Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”, together with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the “Share
Option Schemes”) for the purpose of recognising the contribution
of the employees of our Group and retaining them for the continual
operation and development of our Group. Both schemes were adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of all the then shareholders of our
Company passed on 18 October 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Schemes, our Board may, at its discretion,
offer any employee (including any executive Directors) of our Group,
options to subscribe for shares in our Company subject to the terms
and conditions stipulated in the Share Option Schemes.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

a) Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to enable
our Company to grant options to the participants as incentive or
rewards for their contributions to our Group.

b)  Total number of shares available for issue and vesting period

The total number of shares subject to the options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 10,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 1.88% of the issued Shares, as at the date of this
annual report, which shall vest to the relevant option holder in
tranches in the following manner:

() 50% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2014;

(i)  30% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2016; and

(i) 20% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2018.
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Amount payable upon acceptance of options

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant of an option is required to be paid by each of the grantees
upon acceptance of the granted option.

Remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 6 November 2013, our Company granted 10,000,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had no outstanding options
granted at the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2013. Nevertheless, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in force and effect and
options which are granted during the life on the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may continue to exercise in accordance with the
respective terms of issue. No options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme had been exercised by the grantees in the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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During the twelve-month period ended 31 December 2017, the
movements of the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO
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Share Option Scheme are set out below: RESTERENBRESEEHRINMT :
Outstanding Balance as
as at 1 January Exercised Cancelled  at 31 December
Category and name 2017 during Lapsed during during 2017
of participants Vesting period Exercise period R2F-t& the period the period the period RIF-t&
SMEEARRR BES {8 —-A-BEXfTE BniriE ifab3 BRE¥ +-R=t-BER
Category 1 - Director
El1-8%
LiBin 6 November 2013 - 30 June 2014 - 500,000 = - — 500,000
1 30 June 2014 5 November 2023
ZE-ZE+-BREE  CE-RERA=THEZ
2-MERA=TA ZBoZE+-AIA
6 November 2013 - 30 June 2016 - 300,000 - — = 300,000
30 June 2016 5 November 2023
“E-ZEt-BREE ZE-RERAZTHE
ZE-RERAZTH ZBCZET-RIA
6 November 2013 - 30 June 2018 - 200,000 - - - 200,000
30 June 2018 5 November 2023
Z3-ZF+-BxBE  ZE-N\ERA=1HE
“E-\ERAZTH ZEC=E+-BEA
Sub-Total 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
gt
Category 2 - Employees 6 November 2013 - 30 June 2014 - 2,983,000 - (350,000) - 2,633,000
under continuous 30 June 2014 5 November 2023
employment contract
El2-ZRNERUERAONEE —Z-ZEt-AAAE CE-MERASTHE
“E-MERA=TH “EC=E+-BEA
6 November 2013 - 30 June 2016 - 2,097,000 - (375,000) - 1,722,000
30 June 2016 5 November 2023
ZE-ZE+-BREE ZE-RERAZTHEZ
B-7ERR=TA ZBoZE-AIA
6 November 2013 - 30 June 2018 - 1,408,000 - = (262,000) 1,146,000
30 June 2018 5 November 2023
ZE-ZEt-BREE ZE-NERAZTHE
ZE2-\ERAZTA ZBCET-RIA
Sub-Total 6,488,000 - (725,000 (262,000) 5,501,000
gt
Total 7,488,000 - (725,000 (262,000) 6,501,000
Bt
Notes: BIEE -
1. The date of grant of the options is 6 November 2013. 1. BRENRTFABHA=ZZ-—=F1+-—A
A=
2.  The options have an exercise price of HK$1.90. 2. BERENITEEAR1.908TT -
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The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of our Group and to promote the success
of the business of our Group.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
our Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company as from the Adoption
Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable upon exercise of
options which have been granted but which have lapsed in accordance
with the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of our Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all
the shares in issue upon the Listing Date (i.e. 414,044,000 shares after
over-allotment option has been exercised). The limit of 10% may be
refreshed at any time by approval of the shareholders of our Company
in general meeting provided that the total number of the shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of our Company in general meeting,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of our Company in any 12-month period
up to date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.
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A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option.

Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of our Company on the exercise of an option
at the price determined by our Board provided that it shall be at least
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
offered to a participant, which must be a business date (the “Offer
Date”); (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of
a Share on the Offer Date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as our Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted or
agreed to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

EEEHE

ERMMERNBRER  AxXINE
1.00787T °
E s

REBRXAHRERBRETE 28
EURESSEENERNTEERE
RRBAQRRG  HEREABUTSE
HNRSE  QROREERTSHEE
BREZB(EREXR)(TENBHD
HEBXAERRERABRLTHE O&R
PREEZENEHAI A EEXAEBR
P B MERARFEIRDTE KRR
PREL B HNEE -

BREVEZRBERALMBERBRES
FNFER TESEEEIEBBRE
RHBMET10FHBAREMEET
- EZEXARMBERBRES SR
FAVER AT AL LEAR ST AR ©

RAFHREH A 2ALEBRBERD
MBERBRENIRLIADEREE

FERE

33



34

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei

(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
Ms. FU Jie

(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
Mr. LI Bin

(re-elected on 19 May 2015)
Mr. XU Kaiying

(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
Mr. PANG Haoquan

(re-elected on 19 May 2016)
Mr. HUNG Hoi Ming Raymond

(appointed on 21 September 2017)

Non-executive Director

Mr. HE Darong
(re-elected on 19 May 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei
(re-elected on 19 May 2015)
Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur
(re-elected on 19 May 2016)
Mr. XU Yan
(re-elected on 19 May 2016)
Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang
(re-elected on 19 May 2017)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of our Company (the
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“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), one-
third of our directors will retire by rotation at the AGM of our Company
and will be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Li Bin, Mr. He Darong and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei will
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond was appointed as an executive Director
for a term of one year with effect from 21 September 2017.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any directors of
our Company appointed by our Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of our
Company are set out at pages 75 to 84 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of the
directors’ information of the Company since the date of our 2017
interim report until the date of this annual report are as follows:

1. Mr. Chen Hui resigned as an executive Director of our Company
with effect from 14 September 2017.

2. The remuneration of Mr. Zhang Tiewei was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$3,600,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. Zhang Tiewei received approximately
RMB858,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

3. The remuneration of Mr. Xu Kaiying was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$2,400,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. Xu Kaiying received approximately
RMB2,029,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

4. The remuneration of Mr. Pang Haoquan was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$1,200,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. Pang Haoquan received approximately
RMB338,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

5. The remuneration of Mr. Li Bin was increased from HK$120,000
per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with effect from 1 October
2017. Mr. Li Bin received approximately RMB431,000 as
remuneration from the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.
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6. The remuneration of Mr. He Darong was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. He Darong received approximately
RMB130,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

7. The remuneration of Mr. Tsang Hung Kei was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. Tsang Hung Kei received approximately
RMB130,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

8. The remuneration of Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur was increased
from HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with
effect from 1 October 2017. Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur received
approximately RMB130,000 as remuneration from the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

9. The remuneration of Mr. Xu Yan was increased from HK$120,000
per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with effect from 1 October
2017. Mr. Xu Yan received approximately RMB130,000 as
remuneration from the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

10. The remuneration of Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang was increased from
HK$120,000 per annum to HK$240,000 per annum with effect
from 1 October 2017. Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang received approximately
RMB130,000 as remuneration from the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Except for (i) Ms. Fu Jie, whose service agreement commenced
on 6 January 2017; (ii) Mr. Xu Kaiying, whose service agreement
commenced on 4 July 2016, as supplemented by a supplemental
service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017; (iii) Mr. Pang
Haoquan, whose service agreement commenced on 6 January 2017,
as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement commenced on
1 October 2017; and (iv) Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond, whose service
agreement commenced on 21 September 2017, each of the executive
directors has entered into a service agreement, as supplemented by a
supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017, with
our Company for a term of three years commencing on 13 November
2016, and such service agreements may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.
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Except for Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang, whose service agreement commenced
on 4 July 2016, as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement
commenced on 1 October 2017, each of the non-executive director and
the independent non-executive directors was appointed to our Board
pursuant to their respective letters of appointment, for an initial term of
three years commencing on 13 November 2016, as supplemented by a
supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017, and
such appointment may be terminated in accordance with the terms of
the letters of appointment.

As at 31 December 2017, none of our directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of our Company has a service contract with
members of our Group that is not determinable by our Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The emoluments of our directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee, and decided by our Board, having regard to
our Company’s operating results, individual performance, experience,
responsibility, workload and the prevailing market practices. No
director is involved in deciding their own remuneration.

Our Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as an incentive to our directors
and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set out under the
section headed “Share Option Schemes” of this annual report.

Details of the emoluments of our directors and the five highest paid
individuals of our Group during the year under review are set out in
notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
throughout the financial year. Our Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

EEEHE

BRI A (HRBiBEN =T —RF
tAmERK B=F—tF+A—H
PG IR E ) 7 - BIEBIT
EERBUFHTESRBEREZAN
ZEERZAEMAEZEESE B2 -
F+t-AT=REFANTR/RHY=F &
—E-tHt+A-BRBNEERBET
B R - BRZETREBEZRERAEK
Ak e

RZE—tF+ZA=1+—H #EE
RAQFEERRAFAS LERET
MWEEHEAREEKE QRG] ZEAART
HAEER —FRAZLMBALSEE
CEERERIN PRESH -

EEFN I RTNEESSRRRBES
SEE YECEEALAMNKELEEE -
BAXRRE &8 BE- - TFERBET
mSES MEEE2REEELRSH
B o

ARAREERABER DB ERBRE
ERERARBERBRESEERY
EERAEREENSE  BRZES
SN ITERNAF I BT S —60 -

BERESRAEERUESHALTRE
B E R R RN B R M 7 R
8o

RBASERAREEREEERD
BRRT  BUESUREFEPEM—
URMEBABREEBEATREM 8
EERNEZN—IERTEH  KE B
A-BX BERIHREARANEE
KPR ESHEERZEMEE - &
RABERIRAPBFEFE-—HEEX
ARAERAKENEERETRAER
HEENESRTEAESEEMRRE

FERE

37



38

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in
the Shares and underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and as recorded in the
register required to be kept by our Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in shares

N _ZE—tHE+ZA=1+—H ' BAFx2
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DHAEERD P EERNQRRARBEIFSZR
BRI ((Bs REKRG DE2R 3D
IR A TIRERARERE 5K A ERA
EIBCIRAEFEMNECMATCHRAER
FKR

RERGHEFR

Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding®™e?

Name of Shareholder Capacity Notes Shares PRRERE 4

BEE/ 285 =20 i B & B B 47 LD

Expert Depot Limited Beneficial interest 1,6 242,632,000 45.71%
BifEs

Bliss Success Investments Limited Beneficial interest 2,6 242,632,000 45.711%
ERkR

Novel Heritage Limited Beneficial interest 3,6 242,632,000 45.71%
BRfEs

Mr. CHEN Guoxian Interest in a controlled corporation 4,6 242,632,000 45.71%

BREIFETE REEFEENER

Insider Solution Limited Beneficial interest 4,6 242,632,000 45.711%
BifEs

New Maestro Investments Limited Beneficial interest 5 45,000,000 8.48%
ERkR

1. Expert Depot Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,
our Chairman and an executive Director. Out of the 242,632,000
Shares held beneficially by Expert Depot Limited, 1,638,000
Shares are held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei for his own beneficial
interest.
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2. Bliss Success Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Xu
Kaiying, an executive Director.

3. Novel Heritage Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Pang Haoquan,
an executive Director.

4. Insider Solution Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Chen Guoxian.

5.  New Maestro Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVl whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. He
Darong, the non-executive Director.

6. Pursuant to an acting in concert confirmation dated 31 May 2015,
Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr.
Chen Guoxian confirmed they have been acting in concert, in
exercising and implementing the management and operation of
the Group with each other and reached consensus before making
any commercial decisions (including financial decisions and
business operation decisions) on an unanimous basis. Hence, Mr.
Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr. Chen
Guoxian are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

7. Calculated with reference to the number of issued Shares
(530,805,000) as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2017, there was no other
person so far as was known to the directors or chief executive of our
Company, other than the directors or chief executive of our Company
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of our Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by our Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
director and chief executive of our Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of our
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to our Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) to be notified to our Company
and the Stock Exchange, are set out below:

Long position in shares
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Approximate
Percentage of
Number of Shareholding®ete®

Name of Director Capacity Notes Shares PRRERE 4
EEns =20 i & B B 457 L (o)
Mr. ZHANG Tiewei (1) Beneficial Interest 1,7 1,638,000
REELE () BxEs
(2) Interest in a controlled corporation 240,994,000 45.71%
QRZER LB ER
Mr. XU Kaiying Interest in a controlled corporation 2,7 242,632,000 45.71%
el ELE REESEENER
Mr. PANG Haoquan Interest in a controlled corporation 3,7 242,632,000 45.711%
FEREE REZEEZENERS
Mr. HE Darong Interest in a controlled corporation 4 45,000,000 8.48%
EsEE REESEENER
Mr. LI Bin Beneficial Interest 5 1,000,000 0.19%
ERAE BafEs
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Notes:

1.

Expert Depot Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei, our
chairman and executive Director.

Bliss Success Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Xu
Kaiying, our executive Director.

Novel Heritage Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Pang Haoquan,
our executive Director.

New Maestro Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVl whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. He
Darong, our non-executive Director.

Our Company granted 1,000,000 options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme to Mr. Li Bin on 6 November 2013. None
of the options granted to Mr. Li Bin had been exercised from 13
November 2013 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 December 2017.

Calculated with reference to the number of issued Shares
(530,805,000) as at 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to an acting in concert confirmation dated 31 May 2015,
Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr.
Chen Guoxian confirmed they have been acting in concert, in
exercising and implementing the management and operation of
the Group with each other and reached consensus before making
any commercial decisions (including financial decisions and
business operation decisions) on an unanimous basis. Hence, Mr.
Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr. Chen
Guoxian are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Number of
shares subject
to outstanding Approximate
options as at percentage of
31 December 2017 our Company’s
Exercise Period Exercise price Exercised RIE—t& issued capital
(subject to per share HKD during +ZH=+-H EEAAE
Name of director Date of grant vesting period) BRITEE the period R TIEBRE BITRAR
EETA i A TES (ZRBHRR) BT BRTE S RMBRGEE BAEDI
Mr. LI Bin 6 November 2013 30 June 2014 - 1.9 Nil 1,000,000 0.19%
£ —E-=fF 5 November 2023 i
+—A7<H —E—mE
ARA=tHZE
—E-=F
+—BAEH

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the reporting period.

No contracts, other than a contract of service with any director or
any person engaged in the full-time employment of our Company,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

No contract of significance in relation to our Group’s business to which
our Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated company was a
party and in which any director of our Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year, nor had there been any contract of significance
entered into between our Group and a controlling shareholder of our
Company in the year ended 31 December 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, no directors had interest
in any business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete, with the business of our Group.

Exercise of share options

Prior to the listing of shares in the share capital of our Company
(“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange, our Company granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 Shares (the “Pre-IPO Share
Options”) pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 18 October
2013. None of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted have been exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017,
the Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 6,501,000 Shares remained
unexercised and the Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 813,000
Shares were forfeited. Save for the Pre-IPO Share Options, our
Company has not granted any options to subscribe for Shares.

Save as disclosed above, neither our Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company’s
listed securities.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under our Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Our Group’s customer base is diversified. The relationship between
our Group and our customers has been stable. For the year ended
31 December 2017, our Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 75.58% (2016: 68.20%) of our Group’s revenue and our single
largest customer accounted for 29.48% (2016: 29.01%) of our Group’s
revenue. Our Group did not have regular or significant suppliers in view
of its business nature.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares, had any interest in our
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Based on the information that is publicly available to our Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this annual
report, our Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public
float under the Listing Rules.

Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan, Expert Depot
Limited, Bliss Success Investments Limited and Novel Heritage
Limited, each a controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules), entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) in favour of our Company on 18 October 2013 pursuant
to which they have undertaken to our Company (for itself and for the
benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not, and would procure
that its or his associates (other than any member of our Group) would
not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be interested or
engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, principal, agent, director, employee or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the current businesses of our
Group during the restricted period.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the above
mentioned controlling shareholders on compliance with each of their
respective undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition by the above mentioned controlling
shareholders and confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully
complied with and duly enforced in the year ended 31 December 2017.

Our Group commits to fulfil social responsibility, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and giving back to
community and achieve sustainable growth.
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Given the services-oriented business nature of our Group, minimal
hazardous and toxic waste will be generated in our Group’s ordinary
course of business. Our Group upholds the principles of waste
management and is committed to the proper handling and disposal
of all wastes from our business activities. The direct impact to the
environment is immaterial.

Our Group does not have significant emissions and discharges into
water except those generated in our offices during our operations.
Business commutes of employees, electricity consumption, which is
mainly attributed to the lighting and air conditioning of our Group’s
office premises and the utilisation of office equipment, and the usage
of papers represented most of our Group’s carbon footprint. Water
consumption is also immaterial as our Group’s business model does
not rely heavily on water usage.

Our Group implemented various energy saving measures and
environment friendly initiatives in workplaces including the following:

— maintaining optimal room temperature on the air-conditioning at
26 degrees Celsius in the office;

— encourage complete power-off for computer equipment and other
office equipment when not utilized; and

— employees are encouraged to read and edit documents on the
computer and duplex printing is preferred if printing of which is
necessary.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to environmental
laws and regulations for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors and the senior management of our Group regularly
assess the environmental risks of our business and adopt preventive
measures as necessary to reduce the risks and ensure compliance of
the relevant laws and regulations.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”, which are set out on pages 66 to 74 of
this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under an array
of laws, including the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Partnership Enterprise Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprise Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Guarantee Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of
Financing Guarantee Companies, the Measures for Supervision and
Administration of Finance Leasing Enterprises, the Interim Measures
for Supervision and Administration of Private Investment Funds, the
Administration Measures for Micro-credit Companies of Guangdong
Province, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China as well as other
applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued or promulgated
pursuant to or in respect of these laws and regulations. In addition,
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
Companies Ordinance and the Employment Ordinance are also
applicable to the Group. The Group ensures compliance with such
requirements by taking various measures such as establishing internal
control and approval procedures at all levels, improving the training
mechanism and conducting post-event random inspections. The Group
attaches great importance to the compliance of its businesses and
operations, despite the fact that such measures will incur additional
operating costs.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

On 1 February 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds under
general mandate in an aggregate principal amount of HK$154,000,000.
A total of 70,000,000 conversion shares may be issued pursuant to
the convertible bonds at the initial conversion price of HK$2.20 per
conversion share. For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2018 and 1 February 2018.
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A subsidiary of our Company, Success Guarantee entered into a
joint venture agreement with Foshan Shengshi Success Investment
Company Limited, Foshan Shengshi Jiayou Investment Company
Limited, Foshan Qiya Enterprise Management Limited, Foshan Shunde
Success Investment Development Company Limited, Foshan Success
Finance Group Company Limited (“Foshan Finance”), Success Futures
Co., Ltd. (“Success Futures”) and Foshan Chancheng Success Micro
Credit Company Limited (“Success Credit”) on 25 January 2017. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
25 January 2017.

A subsidiary of our Company, Success Asset entered into an asset
management consultancy agreement with Foshan Shengshi Junen
Enterprise Management Company Limited on 5 June 2017. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5
June 2017.

Save for the above, our Group did not enter into any connected
transaction in the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by our Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 65 on
this annual report.

While serving the local economic development, the Group is also
extensively engaged in charitable activities to fulfil social responsibility.
We are widely recognised and appreciated for being a role model. Every
year, Success Charity Foundation (& X E /0 & &), voluntarily initiated
by shareholders and employees of the Group, gives help and support
to employees in need within the Company, provides timely support and
assistance to families of employees who have suffered serious illnesses
or accidental injury, and goes through difficult times with the employees
and their families. Furthermore, to forge cooperation of schools and
enterprises in nurturing talents, Mr. Zhang Tiewei and Ms. Fu Jie, the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, respectively, have
been teaching as off-campus tutors of the master’s degree of finance of
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Guangdong University of Finance and Economics to assist students in
developing their skills of applying theories and professional knowledge,
leadership skills and entrepreneurship and high moral standards, with
a view of achieving integration of vocational and academic education.
The Group provides a platform for students from hiring talented ones
who can meeting its requirements as permanent staff, playing a pivotal
role in unfolding the career path of the next generation of financial
talents.

KPMG, the auditors of our Company, will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company and be eligible
to offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted
to the AGM to be held on 18 May 2018 to seek shareholders’ approval
on the appointment of KPMG as our Company’s auditors until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting and to authorise our
Board to fix their remuneration.

By order of our Board

Zhang Tiewei
Chairman and Executive Director

Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
29 March 2018
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Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs
and requirements of its business and the shareholders. Save as
disclosed below, our Company has adopted and complied with the
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2017. In respect of
Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code, an independent non-executive
Director was not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 May 2017 due to other business commitment. The
corporate governance principles of our Company emphasise a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

Our directors will review our Company’s corporate governance policies
and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

The Board

Our Board, led by the Chairman of our Company, is responsible for
leadership and control of our Company and overseeing our Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. Our Board has
delegated to the senior management of our Company the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of our
Group. In addition, our Board has established Board committees and
has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.

Our Board reserves its decision for all major matters of our Company,
including: approving and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to the
management. Our Board delegates various responsibilities to the
senior management of our Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of our Board, directing and coordinating day-
to-day operation and management of our Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by our Board,
formulating and monitoring the operation and production plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.
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In the year ended 31 December 2017, our Board held 10 formal
meetings. Attendance of individual directors at our Board meetings
and our general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as
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follows:

Name of Director EENA
Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. ZHANG Tiewei (Chairman) REELE(FE)
Ms. FU Jie (Chief Executive Officer) BB Lt (7TE#EE)
Mr. CHEN Hui (the then Chief BRAE e 4 (B AFAY1TIAR L, -
Executive Officer, resigned R-F—tF
on 14 September 2017) HLA -+ HEEBHE)
Mr. LI Bin £
Mr. XU Kaiying B EEE
Mr. PANG Haoquan BEEREE
Mr. HUNG Hoi Ming Raymond RS
(appointed on (R=F—tHF
21 September 2017) hBZ+—BEZE)
Non-Executive Director: HPITESE
Mr. HE Darong AR K%
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BV H#HITESE :
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BBRELE
Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur BXIFEE
Mr. XU Yan HFEXRE
Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang B/NTRE

In the year ended 31 December 2017, apart from the meetings of our

NEESHEESESRRREARENE
T

Attendance/
Attendance/ Number
Number of Board of general
meeting held meeting held
HE BRITH HE BRI
EESEERRY BRERXERE
8/10 11
8/9 11
6/7 0/1
10/10 11
10/10 11
10/10 11
11 0/0
9/10 11
7/10 1/1
9/10 11
9/10 0/1
10/10 11

RBEZZ-—tF+ZA=+—BLHF

Board, consent/approval from our Board was also obtained by written
resolutions on a number of matters.

Chairman and executive directors

The Chairman and executive director, Mr. Zhang Tiewei, provides
leadership for our Board and ensures that our Board works effectively
and all important issues are discussed in a timely manner. Ms. Fu Jie,
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ”), takes the lead in our Group’s
operations and business development. The positions of the Chairman
and the CEO are held by separate individuals to maintain an effective
segregation of duties.
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Board composition
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Currently, our Board comprises eleven directors, including six executve  EESREM T+ —BESAR  BEA
directors, one non-executive director and four independent non- BHTEE - —BIATEERNEE
executive directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows: SUFHITESE c EBFRHENAKLT ¢

Name of Director

EENA

Executive Directors:
HITHE -

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei (Chairman)
REESE(FEF)

Ms. FU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
B2t (7T %)

Mr. LI Bin

S

Mr. XU Kaiying
BYRELE

Mr. PANG Haoquan
RESER KL

Mr. HUNG Hoi Ming Raymond
py=libine s

Non-Executive Director:

FHITESE -

Mr. HE Darong

AR K%

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BUFHITESE -

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei
BRELE

Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur
EBXiFEE

Mr. XU Yan
HEXE

Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang
BNIRE

Membership of board committee(s)

EEZ8EMER

Chairman of nomination committee
REZEEXE
Member of remuneration committee

HFHESERE

Chairman of audit committee
ENEERTE

Member of nomination committee
REZEEHKE

Member of remuneration committee
FHEERRE

Member of audit committee
EREESHKE

Member of nomination committee
REZEEHKE

Chairman of remuneration committee
FNEERTE

Member of audit committee
EREEEHKE
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of
the board and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei is admitted as a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-
excecutive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. To the best of the
knowledge of our Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
none of the independent non-executive directors failed to meet any of
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Our Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors and considered that all the independent non-
excecutive directors are independent.

The biographies of our directors are set out on pages 75 to 82 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the directors,
our Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship with each other. The list of directors has been published on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange,
and is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by our
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company, and each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors has signed a letter of appointment
with our Company. Except for (i) Ms. Fu Jie, whose service agreement
commenced on 6 January 2017; (ii) Mr. Xu Kaiying, whose service
agreement commenced on 4 July 2016, as supplemented by a
supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017;
(iii) Mr. Pang Haoquan, whose service agreement commenced on 6
January 2017, as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement
commenced on 1 October 2017; and (iv) Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond,
whose service agreement commenced on 21 September 2017, the
terms of the directors’ service contracts are for an initial term of
three years commencing on 13 November 2016, as supplemented by
supplemental service agreements commenced on 1 October 2017,
and is subject to the re-appointment of each of our directors by our
Company at an annual general meeting upon retirement by rotation.
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The Articles of Association provide that any director appointed by our
Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in our Board shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of our Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to our Board shall
hold office until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In addition, every director should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. At every annual general meeting, one-
third of our directors for the time being, or if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation according to Article 108(a) of
the Articles of Association.

Non-executive directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Pursuant to
the letters of appointment, as supplemented by supplemental service
agreements commenced on 1 October 2017, of our non-executive
directors (including our independent non-executive directors), the term
of appointment of each of such directors is three years commencing on
13 November 2016, or 4 July 2016 in the case of Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang,
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice.

Our Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 18 October 2013. A summary of this Board Diversity Policy,
together with the measurable objectives set for implementing this
Board Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below:

Summary of our Board Diversity Policy

Our Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of our
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance
and recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity in the
boardroom. In designing our Board’s composition, board diversity has
been considered from a number of factors, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Each of the director’s appointments will
be made on a merit basis, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on our
Board.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to our Board.

Implementing and monitoring

The nomination committee is responsible for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of our Board and, in carrying
out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to our Board
Diversity Policy.

Our Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for our directors relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director. Our Company Secretary from time to time
updates and provides written training materials to our directors, and
organises seminars on the latest development of the Listing Rules,
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Our directors participated in courses relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company directors by reading
written training materials. Our directors may request our Company,
pursuant to the policy for directors to seek independent professional
advice, to provide independent professional advice at the expense of
our Company to discharge their duties to our Company.
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Directors’ securities transactions

Our Company has adopted the standard set out in the Model Code,
in relation to the dealings in securities of our Company by our
directors. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, each director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code since 1 January 2017 (or on the date of his/her
appointment) and up to the date of this annual report.

Board Committees

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of our Company was established on 18
October 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The duties of our nomination committee include (but
without limitation) (a) to review the structure, size and composition of
our Board on regular basis; (b) to identify and recommend suitable
individuals to our Board as Board members; (c) to assess the
independence of our independent non-executive directors; and (d) to
make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors. Current members of
the nomination committee are Mr. Tsang Hung Kei and Mr. Xu Yan,
both of whom are independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Zhang
Tiewei, an executive director. Mr. Zhang Tiewei is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the composition of
the Board.

After considering the characteristics of the Group’s business model
and other relevant factors, such as skills, knowledge, gender or age,
the nomination committee considered that the current composition
of the Board reflects the balance of skills, educational background,
experience and diversity of perspectives desirable for effective
management of the Company. The nomination committee will continue
to review the diversity policy of the Board from time to time to ensure
its continued effectiveness and to identify qualified candidates on a
merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the nomination committee
held 3 meetings. Attendance of individual members of the nomination
committee for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Name of Director EElA
Mr. ZHANG Tiewei REELLE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BRESE
Mr. XU Yan HERE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the nomination committee during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is summarised as follows:

1.  reviewed structure, size and diversity of the Board;

2. reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

3. made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr.
Hung Hoi Ming Raymond as executive director; and

4. made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
redesignation of directors and the nomination of directors for re-
election at an annual general meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of our Company was established on
18 October 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The duties of our remuneration committee include
(but without limitation) (a) making recommendations to our Board
on our policy and structure for all remuneration of our directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(b) determining the specific remuneration packages of all our executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments; (c) making recommendations to
our Board of the remuneration of our directors; and (d) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by our Board from time to time. The
existing members of the remuneration committee include Mr. Zhang
Tiewei, Mr. Xu Yan and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei. Both Mr. Xu Yan and
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei are independent non-executive directors and
Mr. Zhang is an executive director. Mr. Xu Yan is the chairman of the
remuneration committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration committee
held 3 meetings. Attendance of individual members of the remuneration
committee for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Name of Director EENA
Mr. XU Yan HERE
Mr. ZHANG Tiewei REELE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BEELE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the remuneratin committee are available on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the remuneration committee during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is summarised as follows:

1.  made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages and policy of directors, senior management and
employees; and

2. evaluated the performance of all directors and senior
management.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of our Company was established on 18 October
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The duties of our audit committee include (but without limitation)
(a) making recommendations to our Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor; (b) monitoring
integrity of our financial statements, our annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained
therein; and (c) reviewing our financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems. The existing members of the audit committee
include Mr. Tsang Hung Kei, Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur and Mr. Xu Yan,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors. Mr. Tsang Hung
Kei is the chairman of the audit committee.

As certain amendments to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code became effective starting from the 1 January 2016
(the “Amended Code Provisions”), our Company amended the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with the
Amended Code Provisions. Our Directors will use their best endeavors
to ensure our Company’s continued compliance with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as amended from time
to time.

The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and the
consolidated financial statements of our Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee is of the view that
the consolidated financial statements of our Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and statutory
provisions, and sufficient disclosures have already been made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the audit committee held 2
meetings. Attendance of individual members of the audit committee for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Name of Director EENA
Mr. XU Yan HFERE
Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur BXIFEE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BBRELE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on the
website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the audit committee during the year ended 31
December 2017 is summarised below:

1. reviewed the Group’s annual and interim results statements and
the related result announcements, documents and other matters
or issues raised by external auditors;

2. reviewed the findings from external auditors;

3. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4. reviewed the audit plans, internal control plan, the development
in accounting standards and its effects on the Group, financial
reporting matters and risk management;

5. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

6. approved the current year external audit plan, reviewed
and monitored internal control performance as well as the
effectiveness of the internal control system; and

7.  reviewed the corporate governance compliance.
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Corporate governance function

Our Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance of
our Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
and reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by our Board in
discharge of its corporate governance function.

Accountability and audit financial reporting

Financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Currently, our Company’s external auditors are KPMG (the “Auditors”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees paid or payable to
KPMG comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEEX
Review of interim results ERPHIEE
Others Hitb

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of our Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 85 to 95 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

E/l:l \ 5E
EESAEEHPER)FFTRRITARE
BNEXERBRRER  URERE

THEEREERENER  BRARER
EENSREEENBIIRGEERE
B URBNEXEARENE TR
MRRFREHBE -

AEXERRECHETEEM  UE
?"._FEA% E/nﬂ’ﬁkﬁb °
BERELMERE

REBNWMBREDRBEMBEER
E - LER TR RIS 13.49(1) & (6) 15

HERRFBREES D o
2RESHI REFEIRRLEH
BHE_Z-tF+-A=1T—HLFE

MYBF Rk - A0 R R R RSN BLAD
RHESHETTSEB(TZEEm]) -

BE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HBL#F

B ENRENEEREHAMERMN
ER(BEREKRE)NT

2017 2016

—F—tF —E-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT ARBTT

1,554 1,480

500 450

38 302

REMHAREH A EEB B HRREEN
HHREEMFENEZRIRAFERS
5585 £ 95 AMVE M A BETHRE ©

THEHEERTHRELSHAIEERZER
B AR SRS -



Risk management and internal controls

Our Board recognises that sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems are important to safeguard our shareholders’
investment and our Company’s assets, and recognises that its
responsibility to ensure that our Company maintains a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system. Our Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorised disposition and to manage
operational risks.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, review of our Group’s internal
controls covered major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The controls that were built into
the risk management system are intended to manage significant risks
in our Group’s business environment.

Our Group’s risk management framework includes the following
elements:

e identify significant risks in our Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on our Group’s business;

® develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
*  monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of our Group was
assisted by our Group’s risk management department, so that our
Group could ensure new and emerging risks relevant to our Group’s
operation are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. These are on-going processes
and our Audit Committee reviews periodically our Group’s risk
management systems. Our Audit committee reported to our Board the
implementation of our Group’s risk management and internal control
policy which, among other things, included the determination of risk
factors, evaluation of risk level our Group could take and effectiveness
of risk management measures.

Based on the reports from our Group’s internal control and compliance
management department and risk management department and
our Audit Committee, our Board considers that our Group’s risk
management and internal control system is adequate and effective
and our Group has complied with the provisions on risk management
and internal controls as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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Delegation by our Board

In general, our Board oversees our Company’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of our Group.
Our Board also monitors and controls operation and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies for risk management in
pursuit of our Group’s strategic objectives. Our Board delegates the
implementation of strategies and day-to-day operation of our Group to
the management.

Company secretary

The company secretary is Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Company
Secretary”). Please refer to his biographical details set out on page
84 of this annual report. All Directors have access to our Company
Secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed. During the year, our Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training as
required under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Effective communication with shareholders

Our Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with our shareholders. Our Board also
recognises that effective communication with our Company’s investors
is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new
investors. Therefore, our Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure our shareholders and the investors
of our Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of our Group through the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars.

Moreover, the Company’s AGM encourages face-to-face
communication with shareholders. Members of the Board and
chairmen of various board committees will attend the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to be held on 18 May 2018. The directors will answer
questions on the performance of the Group raised by shareholders.
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Shareholders’ rights B ERREF]

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of our
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to our Board or our Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by our Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, our Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of our
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by our Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to our
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited:

Address : 17M Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai Hong Kong

Email : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Tel : (852) 2862 8555
Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of our Company at
the following designated contact, correspondence address, email
address and enquiry hotlines of our Company:

Attention : Mr. Li Bin
Address : Office Units Nos. 10 and 11
11th Floor, Harbour Centre
No. 25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong

Email : hkinfo@chinasuccessfinance.com
Tel : (852) 2180 7189
Fax : (852) 3152 2010
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3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

a)

b)

TEERER

Proposal for election of a person other than a director as a
director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, a
shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election to the office of director at any
general meeting should lodge (i) notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a director;
and (i) notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected, at either (a) our Company’s Hong Kong office
Office Units Nos. 10 and 11, 11th Floor, Harbour Centre No.
25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office of
our Company in Hong Kong at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices mentioned
above will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices to our Company may be
given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he may lodge a written
request, duly signed, at our Company’s Hong Kong office
Office Units Nos. 10 and 11, 11th Floor, Harbour Centre No.
25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request will be
verified with our Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and
upon confirmation by the share registrar that the request
is proper and in order, and is made by a Shareholder, our
Board will in its sole discretion decide whether the Proposal
may be included in the agenda for the general meeting to be
set out in the notice of meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

i Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of our
Company.

ii. Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of our Company.

iii. Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of our Company.

Constitutional documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 18
October 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association were adopted with effect from the Listing Date. The
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of
our Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no change in the
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of
our Company.
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This report describes the performance and results of China Success
Finance Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
referred to as “the Group” for “we”) in respect of the environmental,
social and governance aspects in 2017. The report covers the period
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (hereinafter referred to as
the “Reporting Period”), which is in line with the Group’s 2017 annual
report. We have prepared this report in accordance with Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board (the “Listing
Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). This report aims to promote the sustainable development
of the Group and enhance the confidence and understanding of the
stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has always valued the opinions of its stakeholders. Through
various channels, it communicates with the internal and external
stakeholders to understand their expectations and comments. This
helps us objectively review the planning, management, implementation
and evaluation of the Group’s corporate social responsibilities and
sustainable development.

For the Group, stakeholders refer to the groups and individuals who
have material impact on the Group’s business, or those who are
influenced by the Group’s business:

Internal stakeholders External stakeholders

- Board of directors - Shareholders
- Management - Investors

- Administrative staff - Customers

- General staff - Partners

- Government/regulatory authorities

- Banks/financial institutions

- Industry associations

- Media

- Non-governmental organisations
and local communities
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During the Reporting Period, the Group generally communicated with
its stakeholders by the following means: email, meetings, telephone,
regular presentations, the Company’s website, the annual meeting,
etc. The Group places strong emphasis on information disclosure
with a view to enhancing the understanding of its stakeholders of the
Group. In 2017, there were 1 general meeting, 2 disclosure reports
(annual and interim), 1 circular, 12 monthly returns on securities,
and 29 announcements and notices, 7 of which were voluntary
announcements. In addition, in 2017, the Group conducted 2 staff
appraisals, participated in 2 industry forums and made dozens of site
visits to customers, and the government visited the Group for 5 times.

The Group is a comprehensive financial service group mainly providing
diversified and comprehensive financial services to customers,
including financial advisory, asset management, fund management,
financial lease, financial guarantees, etc. Our main business activities
do not have material impact on the environment and natural resources.
However, as an environmentally friendly and socially responsible
enterprise, we are committed to enhancing the efficiency of the use of
resources and promoting business behaviors which are responsible for
the environment, thereby reducing the impact of our operations on the
environment.

Emissions

The emissions of the Group are mainly the carbon emission of business
trips, and the office and domestic waste generated by daily office
operations.

In compliance with various national standards in energy conservation
and emission reduction, the Group has established relevant
management requirements for business travelling and management
measures for use of vehicles for business purpose, requiring our staff
to make reasonable arrangements for travelling and use of vehicles
for business purpose and encouraging them to use public transport
for greener trips. Without compromising the efficient operation of
the Group, our staff strictly complies with the requirements and
reduces carbon emission of domestic and overseas business trips
by preferring communication means such as conference calls and
electronic communications. For short trips, rail transport takes priority
as it can lower the operational costs and reduce the environmental
impact of the over-consumption of energy, thus achieving the win-win
situation of social efficiency and economic efficiency. As it is difficult
to measure the carbon emission of business trips by public transport
and the carbon emission of vehicles we engage and staff commutes is
insignificant, no relevant data has been collected.
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As the waste generated by the Group is collectively handled by the
property management office of the office building where the Group
is located, there is no relevant data on waste generation. In strict
compliance with the relevant regulations on waste treatment of
Mainland China and Hong Kong, the relevant property management
office sorts and passes the waste to relevant qualified professional
agencies for disposal. During the reporting period, the Group did not
discover any relevant non-compliance.

Use of resources

As the water used by the Group is managed by the property
management office of the office building where the Group is located,
there is no relevant data on water comsumption. However, the
electricity and water consumed are of insignificant amount. The Group
also promotes green office operations and actively adopts measures
for reducing the consumption of resources and energy.

In daily office management, the Group has fostered the awareness of
resources saving, energy conservation and emission reduction, and
has implemented corresponding management measures for energy
conservation. In respect of the use of electricity, we use energy-saving
lighting equipments and purchase office equipments with high energy
efficiency; indoor air-conditioners are kept under 26°c in summer, and
the air-conditioners of meeting rooms are not allowed to be switched
on for a long period of time; lights are switched off when the meeting
rooms are not in use; energy consumption of office equipment, such
as the base unit of computers, monitors, printers, shredders, etc., in
sleep mode are reduced by shutting them off if not in use for a long
period of time; the last employee leaving the office is required to check
whether all office equipments, lights and air-conditioners are switched
off, ensuring that lights and machines are off when no one is there.
In respect of the use of water, we put up water-saving signs in areas
with water outlets, requiring the staff to turn off the taps after use; we
promote reusing water, raising the reuse rate of domestic sewage to
reduce the consumption of fresh water; and we check the water supply
system for leakage on a regular basis to effectively reduce the waste of
water.

By promoting the policies on the effective use of resources, lights and
taps are no longer turned on for a long period of time. The practices of
water and energy conservation have become routines.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

AEBEEWARITAAEBFTERA
REYEEEER —RE  HILEELE
LR AARRE RS - HEEMXEEERC &
BTt R BB A BRI R A -
HERETOE  IRHEREENSE
FUBHHETREE - EREHAR - &
SE I AR EEAEBENERSHF -

ERER

& B HY KT A SR P B A K48
MXEEREEEE  MIWEFEKNIEEE
BE-AWM HASERFEKELTHE
£ - BAKEREELEH D - ERREE
R EIFHRE - [RKEESE -

EHERAEEED  AEEMILTH
HNER HRERHENER XEET
EENEREEEER - EAE L KM
FRERERARBENEBSEREREN
WARE ERAREEREFABRERR
BERE ZREEAMHERR: &
REEAFEHBEBAEE . BT E#K
T BEREE - ITENHE - BRAHER LN
RETHERE REBNTERRBERAS
B BERRE—(ARBARLENREM
BERENRASZE B ZRAERS

B BARMBIAERRD - ABEKE -
ERKE s BRMEAKEEMEE N
KIEH  ERETFRHEBEBKESR,
RERERAK BeEESKEEERA
T OEDRKERE  YEHREHKR
ZRAHESR BRRLKERRE -

BRERAMEAERNEE  RAE
RAKBREHEER  BHRAK BHORE
MEEEEERL -



Environment and natural resources

Committed to lessening the impact of its operation on the environment
and natural resources, the Group is reducing its reliance on natural
resources through various means. For example, the Group promotes
the policy of paperless office. The staff is encouraged to use email
and the electronic office system for daily communication and to adopt
electronic documentation; to view and edit documents on the computer
instead of printing; to select formats with high utilization efficiency of
paper for the documents that need to be printed, and to choose duplex
printing whenever possible to maximize the use of paper. Boxes are
placed to collect the non-confidential documents for recycling and
reuse.

In addition, we give our employees environmental education to
encourage them to be responsible for the environment, which prompts
the staff and the Group to make joint efforts for environmental
protection.

Employment

The Group formulated its recruitment and employment policies strictly
in accordance with the Labor Law, the Labor Contract Law, Special
Rules on the Labor Protection of Female Employees, Provisions of
the State Council on Working Hours of Workers and Staff, Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor of Mainland China and the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong as well as other relevant laws
and regulations. The Group has also signed labor contracts with all full-
time staff to ensure the legitimacy of the employment.

To offer the employment opportunities to different kinds of candidates,
the Group has adopted a fair and open recruitment approach,
prohibiting discrimination against employees by gender, age,
geographical, ethnic, racial and religious beliefs. The Group has also
implemented equal pay for equal work for men and women and has
provided equal promotion and demotion ladder for them. This ensures
all our staff with job opportunities entailed with fairness, impartiality and
openness to foster diversity development of staff.
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In order to attract talents for business operations, we have formulated
a competitive remuneration package, which includes basic wages,
performance bonuses, subsidies and benefits, as well as support for
our employees to communicate and consultate about issues related
to salary and benefits through different channels. The Group strictly
complies with the relevant national requirements in paying for our full-
time employees in a timely manner with sufficient amounts of their five
social insurances, which include pension, medical, work injury, fertility,
and unemployment, and housing provident fund. In order to raise the
benefit coverage level for our staff, in the area of medical insurances,
we have selected medical insurances of higher levels for our staff,
added the medical assistance against critical illnesses and purchased
the employers’ liability insurances (including accident insurances for
both work injuries and non-work injuries with the coverage of business
trips, meals and accommodations, air and land transportation, outdoor
events of the Company and so on) for all of our staff, and futher
implementation is expected. Maintaining the balance of life and work is
a policy we have long been adhered to. The current staff of our Group
work 8 hours per day on a 5-day week basis. We also support our staff
to efficiently manage their work and daily life through marriage leaves,
maternity leaves, paternity leaves, breast feeding leaves, annual leaves,
bereavement leaves and so on.

The working hours, leaves, pays and benefits of the employees of the
Group are compliant with the relevant employment or labor laws and
regulations in Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the reporting
period, there had not been any relevant non-compliances committed
by the Group.

Comprehensive cessation procedures, including exit interview,
cessation formalities and salary and benefit settlement, have been
formulated by the Group to follow up cessation of employees. Rate
of turnover has been lowered thorough in-depth interviews with
employees with intention in resign, collection and integration of
feedback from ceased employees and improvement in 6 major aspects
of the Group’s human resources procedures, inducing HR planing,
recruitments, trainings, salaries and benefits, performance assessment
and labor relationship. The Group prioritizes trainings on expertise
and techniques enhancement for employees not meeting performance
targets of their posts and encourages self-enhancement of the
employees.
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Occupational health and safety

Employee safety is the foundation and guarantee of sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group improves the health insurance
level of staff by timely organizing physical examination for the staff
and selecting high-level medical insurances, medical assistance to
employees against critical illnesses and employers’ liability insurances.
The Group has proactively coordinated with the property management
companies to conduct the safety inspections for the fire safety
passageways. We participated in a variety of fire drills and escape drill
to improve safety awareness of staff, and enhance their emergency
escape capacity; in the event of emergencies, we wish our staff could
respond orderly, calmly and rationally to ensure safety. The Group
pays attention to both the mental and physical health of the staff. By
holding monthly birthday parties for our staff, organizing festive events
from time to time and so on, we seek to help our staff to take a break
from work stress and experience corporate cultures; by organizing our
staff regularly to participate in sports activities such as yoga, football,
badminton, hiking, walking and trekking, we nurture health awareness
of our staff and improve their health.

Development and training

All Directors are provided with trainings and the latest developments
in respect of listing rules and other applicable statutory and regulatory
systems, industry information and the business environment. These
facilitate the Directors, understanding of the Company’s business and
perform their respective duties effectively.
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The Group provides new recruits with regular trainings, which
on matters like the Company’s profile, the Company’s rules and
regulations as well as the use of office facilities. In order to facilitate
the new recruits, adaptation to the Company’s environment as soon as
possible, respective department offers new recruits with trainings on
professional skills according to the needs of their jobs and roles, and
persists in implementing the mentorship system with the more senior
staff coaching the new recruits. The Group also provides the staff with
opportunities of internal and external trainings: the internal trainings
are conducted in form of one-on-one meetings, seminars or forms,
whereas the external trainings are conducted in form of external public
courses, exchange seminars or lectures given by guest speakers.
These aim to enhance the staff’s professional abilities and management
skills. The Group supports employees to enhance themselves through a
variety of ways to achieve the value of life, and is committed to carrying
out the construction work of post qualification standards system; the
Group adds to the qualification scores tied with remunerations for the
staff who pass relevant qualification examinations for the purposes
of engaging in funds practitioners, securities practitioners, certified
accountants, economists as well as judicial examinations. These serve
as an encouragement to the staff for self-enhancement. Besides,
through regular assessment of the performances of the staff and in-
depth interviews with them, the Group has jointly formulated the
performance goals and implementation plans to foster the staff to grow
with the enterprise.

Labor standards

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the Labor Law.
There was no incident of discrimination, employment of child labor,
compulsion, forced labor or infringement of employee benefits in the
year. We also have feedback system encouraging staff to communicate
with the HR and report on forced labor or non-compliance matters.
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Supply chain management

Our suppliers mainly comprised of suppliers of office supplies such
as paper and stationery. The Group attached importance to green
procurement and the environmental friendly and energy-saving
products during procurement for office. We prefer local suppliers to
reduce energy consumption caused by transportation. In general,
we procure our products and services based on their specifications,
quality, pricing and applicable environmental and social factors. The
Group conducts evaluation and feedback regarding the performance
of suppliers. We apply hierarchical management system for suppliers
to maintain good and long-term cooperative relationship with quality
suppliers.

Product responsibility

As a financial group, the Group has plenty customer information and
a large customer base. We are committed to improving the quality of
products and service provided to our business, and have implemented
the following measures:

1. improving the qualty of service of staff, including providing staff
with regular trainings for staff, applying for fund qualification,
qualifications of securities practitioners, certified accountant and
chartered financial analyst examinations for staff and pay rises for
the staff who pass the examination to improve their performance
and service qulity.

2. Keeping customer information strictly confidential; the Group
abides by the relevant state laws and regulations, formulated strict
confidentiality requirements, and requires employees to strictly
implement the relevant provisions and strive to protect customer
privacy.

3. striving to improve product quality, banking accountable to
client through strictly standardized operations, listening to
clients carefully, handling client complaints effectively, providing
satisfactory service to clients to the greatest extent and truly
implementing the customer-oriented and customer-first service
concepts.
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4. optimizing product type and quality, the Group is actively
developing new business categories including revival program,
debt restructuring, liquidity management to meet diversified
financing service needs of clients and adapt to market changes in
a legal way with risks under control.

Anti-corruption

The Group is actively promoting corporate governance in Fighting
completion, emphasizing the integrity training of employees; we
incorporate the integrity awareness into the daily management through
improvement of the rules, regulations and integrity norms.

In response to national policy, the Group actively participated in the
construction of infrastructure which balanced economic benefit and
social benefit. The Group commenced multi-level cooperation with
local government and construction parties, provided funding solutions
to infrastructure projects including city railway traffic engineering
projects, municipal parks, courtesy garages, which effectively mitigated
the shortage of funding and accelerated the pace of construction and
local residents are benefited in turn.

The Group encourages employees to enter the community and
encourages various forms of volunteer service. Employees participated
in community service activities for many times in their leisure time.
For example, the Group positively responded to the “unpaid blood
donation” organized by the Foshan Central Blood Bank. The Group
encouraged employees to be dedicated, responsible and accountable
volunteers and most of our employees have regarded the volunteer
activities as normal activities in their daily life.

At the same time, the Group encouraged employees to participate in
marathons and Foshan 50 km walking activities in order to actively
respond to the idea of low carbon and healthy living, and promote
regional development and social image of the enterprise. You share
roses and get fun; you help the poor with borderless love. The Group
will continue to fulfil its social responsibilities in the future.
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Mr. ZHANG Tiewei, aged 55, is one of the founders of our Group. He
was appointed as our director on 16 January 2012 and redesignated as
the Chairman of our Board and executive director on 18 October 2013.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for our Group’s strategic planning and overall
business management.

Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the financial
industry in the PRC during which Mr. Zhang has been acting as (i) the
director of Success Futures since 1997 which engages in commodity
futures brokerages and financial futures brokerages; (ii) the chairman
of Success Credit since its establishment in 2009 which engages in the
provision of small loans lending; (iii) the director of Guangdong Success
Insurance Brokers Company Limited since 2003 which engages in the
provision of insurance brokerages; (iv) the chairman of Guangdong
Success Venture Capital Company Limited since 2008 which engages
in venture capital; (v) the Chairman of Success Investment Holdings
Group Company Limited (“Success Investment Holdings”) since
its establishment in 2005 which engages in the investment in real
estate, public utilities, medical and industrial project; (vi) the chairman
of Foshan Success which engages in the investment in the modern
financial industry, investment in the financial services industry, capital
management, asset management, business in the sales of insurance
products, etc; and (vii) the chairman of Guangdong Jiayou Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiayou Network”). Mr. Zhang accumulated
relevant business and financial experiences which are relevant to the
business of our Group when acting as the director or chairman of the
above named companies. Mr. Zhang has also been acting as the legal
representative of Success Guarantee, our operating subsidiary, since
its establishment in 1996. Mr. Zhang is also a director of each of Double
Chance Developments Limited, China Success Finance Holdings
Limited, Success Asset, Shenzhen Success Equity Investment Fund
Management Limited, Shenzhen Qianhai Success Housing Wealth
Management Company Limited, China Success Capital (HK) Limited
(“Success Capital (HK)”), all being subsidiaries of our Company.
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Mr. Zhang is a member of the 12th Foshan Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of the
14th executive committee of Foshan General Chamber of Commerce,
and the chairman of the 1st council of Foshan Investment Chamber
of Private Entrepreneurs. Mr. Zhang was the standing committee
member of the 11th executive committee of Guangdong Federation of
Industry & Commerce. Mr. Zhang has been awarded as an Outstanding
Corporate Manager in Guangdong Province in 2011 by the Guangdong
Enterprises Confederation and the Guangdong Entrepreneurs
Association. Mr. Zhang has also been awarded as the top 10 most
influential persons in finance in Guangdong in 2013. Mr. Zhang was
engaged as an external tutor of the faculty of finance of Guangdong
University of Finance and Economics and the master of finance of
Guangdong University of Finance. Mr. Zhang was also awarded a
master degree of executive master of business administration after
completing an EMBA Programme in Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in 2012.

Ms. FU Jie, aged 56, was appointed as our executive Director on
6 January 2017. Ms. Fu has accumulated rich practical experience
and work achievements in areas from 1985 such as large group
management, direct investment, asset management, capital operation
and modern financial services through her long employment history in
state organs, central enterprises, national investment companies and
financial holding groups.

Ms. Fu obtained a bachelor degree of Economics and Postgraduate of
Investment Economics from Renmin University of China in 1985 and
1999, respectively. Ms. Fu obtained the qualification to engage in funds
in the PRC in 2016.

Ms. Fu is an early participant in the research on industrial fund system
of the State Council. She holds a qualification certificate of “Enterprise
Legal Adviser” jointly issued by the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry
of Personnel (A % #B) and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

In 2006, Ms. Fu was awarded the title of “Advanced Individual for
National Law Publicity and Education for 2001-2005 (2001-2005 & 3%
HSEHE L EMEA) by the Publicity Department of the Communist
Party of China and the Ministry of Justice; and the title of “Advanced
Individual for Law Publicity and Education for 2001-2005 (2001-2005
EHEEHE LEMEA) by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council.
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In 2011, Ms. Fu was awarded the title of “Top Ten Outstanding
Professional Managers of Guangdong Province (& 3 & + K # 1 B
* £ I A)” and selected among the Pool of Outstanding Corporate
Manager in Guangdong Province (ER % EFEE A 7 E)). Ms.
Fu has been serving as the off-campus master tutor for the College of
Finance of Guangdong University of Finance and Economics (B3R B &
K E8) for six consecutive years.

Mr. LI Bin, aged 45, was appointed as our executive director and
the chief executive officer of our Group on 18 October 2013. Mr. Li
joined our Group in 2006 as an assistant to the general manager of
Success Guarantee and manager of the post-guarantee management
department. He was promoted to general manager of Success
Guarantee in 2009. Mr. Li resigned as the chief executive officer of
our Company with effect from 15 September 2014 in order to focus
his time and effort on the development of the guarantee business of
the Company. He will continue to serve as an executive director of
our Company. Mr. Li was appointed as the chief operating officer of
our Group on 31 August 2015 and is responsible for overseeing our
Group’s operations and internal management system. He was appointed
as the vice chairman of Success Guarantee in 2016.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li had worked at the Foshan branch
of Bank of China from 1993 to 2005 and was responsible for sales
and marketing activities in the bank and specialising in the provision
of loans and credits which are relevant to the business of our Group.
His last position in the bank was assistant manager of the sales
department.

Mr. Li obtained a master of business administration degree from Jinan
University in Guangdong, the PRC in June 2007.
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Mr. XU Kaiying, aged 54, was appointed as our non-executive director
on 18 October 2013 and re-designated as our executive director on 4
July 2016. Mr. Xu invested in our Group as a shareholder of Success
Guarantee in February 2001. Mr. Xu is the general manager of Foshan
Success Industry Investment Company Limited, the director of Success
Investment Holdings and the director of Jiayou Network. Mr. Xu is
also the director, the vice chairman of Success Asset and Success
Guarantee respectively, all being our Group companies.

Mr. Xu is a member of the 12th Foshan Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of Foshan
Air-Conditioner Retail Industry Association, the standing committee
member of the 14th executive committee of Foshan General Chamber
of Commerce, and the executive chairman of Foshan Investment
Chamber of Private Entrepreneurs. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree
in finance management from Beijing Economic and Technological
College in July 2008. Mr. Xu has completed a post-EMBA degree at the
Peking University.

Mr. PANG Haoquan, aged 53 was appointed as our non-executive
director on 18 October 2013 and re-designated as our executive
director on 6 January 2017. Mr. Pang invested in our Group as a
shareholder of Success Guarantee in February 2001. Mr. Pang is also a
director of each of Success Investment Holdings and Jiayou Network.

Mr. Pang is also the chairman of Guangdong Yinhe Motor Group
Company Limited (B3R R0 EFEEEBEHR A F]). Mr. Pang obtained a
diploma in automation from Guangzhou Open University in July 1982.

Mr. HUNG Hoi Ming Raymond, aged 36, was appointed as our
executive director on 21 September 2017. Mr. Hung is also a director
of Success Capital (HK), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
He has about 13 year of experience in corporate finance, listings,
restructurings, mergers and acquisitions and investment.
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Mr. Hung worked at various private and listed companies. He started
off as an analyst at Joy Silver Limited (formerly known as Baron Capital
Limited) in November 2005 and advised on a range of matters such as
mergers and acquisitions. He served as the vice president of finance of
Red Pine Petroleum Ltd (stock code: RPN), whose shares have been
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange since 2014, for the period from
April 2013 to February 2016, during which he worked on matters such
as restructurings. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hung was a director of
First Seafront Financial Limited between March 2016 and July 2016. He
was responsible for a number of duties, including facilitating overseas
mergers for PRC enterprises.

Mr. Hung graduated from York University in Toronto, Canada with
a bachelor degree in information technology and obtained a master
degree in global finance from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and the New York University Stern School of Business in
2005 and 2011, respectively.

Mr. HE Darong, aged 58, was appointed as our non-executive director
on 18 October 2013. Mr. He invested in our Group as a shareholder
of Success Guarantee in July 2010. Mr. He also owns 9.09% equity
interests in Success Credit.

Mr. He is a director of Success Asset and Foshan Lecong Real Estate
Square Company Limited. Mr. He is currently the general manager of
Foshan Tiefeng Industrial Investment Company Limited and Foshan
Shunde Shihai Industrial Investment Company Limited. Mr. He
obtained a master degree in business administration from the Tsinghua
University in 1998.

Mr. He was an NPC deputy of Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan
City in 2015. He was a member of the 10th Shunde Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and is the vice
president of The Steel and Iron Trade Association of Lecong Shunde
District Foshan City.
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Mr. TSANG Hung Kei, aged 47, was appointed as our independent
non-executive director on 18 October 2013. He has more than 20 years
of experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Tsang is a Fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang
is currently the chief financial officer of Pak Fah Yeow International
Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board”)). He was formerly the group
financial controller of Mayer Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board) and had held a managerial post in an international
accounting firm. Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor degree in computer
science and accounting from the University of Manchester, England.

Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur, aged 45, was appointed as our independent
non-executive director on 18 October 2013. Mr. Au is a lawyer with
almost 20 years of legal and industry experience in corporate and
private practice settings. He is currently a lawyer at Axiom Global and
has consulted for multinational clients in the finance, manufacturing,
hospitality, and technology industries in Hong Kong. Before working in
Axiom, Mr. Au practised law as registered foreign lawyer at Deacons in
Hong Kong. Mr. Au worked in Silicon Valley for well over a decade and
was the Director of Intellectual Property at Thoratec Corporation, after
practising law in the law firms of Blakely, Sokoloff, Taylor & Zafman LLP
and Morgan Lewis and Bockius. Prior to his legal career, Mr. Au was
an engineer/project manager at Guidant Corp. Mr. Au has a bachelor
of science degree in engineering from Duke University, a master of
science degree in biomedical engineering from Case Western Reserve
University, and a degree of juris doctor from Santa Clara University
School of Law. He was admitted as a member of the State Bar of
California and registered to practise with the US Patent and Trademark
Office.
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Mr. XU Yan, aged 45, was appointed as our independent non-
executive director on 18 October 2013. Mr. Xu has over 20 years
in the area of trade economy and banking. Mr Xu began his career
with the Foreign Affairs Department of the State Economic & Trade
Commission (the predecessor of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council) as a deputy
director from July 1994 to August 2000. He then worked for Cazenove
Asia Limited as a manager, vice president and representative in chief
of Beijing representative office from May 2002 to February 2009. In
February 2009, Cazenove Asia Limited was taken over by the Standard
Chartered Bank and renamed as Standard Chartered Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited where Mr. Xu worked until he left in June 2012.
Mr. Xu has also been the Chief Strategy Officer in China Minshen
Future Holdings Group Limited(? & 7R 3R 1= i% &£ B & R 2 7)) since
October 2015. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 1994 and a master degree
in business administration from the University of Manchester in June
2002.

Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang, aged 55, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2016. Mr. Zhou has been a director in
Grandtopeak Land Consolidation Group Co,. Ltd. (BZ= L ihZIBEEE
FR/A|]), the chairman and legal representative of Beijing Zhong Di Land
Consolidation Co,. Ltd. (1t 52 /1 b £+ ith 2 32 55 R /A 7)), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Guotai Balance Land Layout and
Design Co,. Ltd. (It FEEZ= K F4T L iR BB 5HHER 2 F), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Hongtai Entrepreneurial Land
Consolidation Co,. Ltd. (It =R L thZEIEHR /A F]), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Guoxing Weiye Land Consolidation
Co,. Ltd. (1t X % L #th BB H R A 7)), the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing Guotai Pilot Sailing Boat Investment Co,. Ltd.
(At EZE=EMMEIREFR A F), and the general manager and legal
representative of Guotai Jinglu Investment Holdings Co,. Ltd. (BIZ=RE&
REERAR AT, since December 2007.
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Mr. Zhou was the chairman and legal representative of Guoyu BAX4EB-ZTEZENF+_AZE=FZ+
Economic Development Corporation (Bl F & & & R4 A7) (formerly FHAEFBRFLEZRELAR(AIEA
China Three Gorges Economic Development Corporation (Ff B = i FEZIRQEZRBEQNTR) EFEREER
7% 2% R 42 A 7)) from December 2004 to May 2007. He was also R A - HE-ZBZE-—F=ZAZ=-ZTFt
the general manager and legal representative of Hualian Real Estate FHEATAIEEREHERZEATA
Development Company (Bl 2kt Ei R A F]) from March 2001 to  EEFEERRA °

May 2007.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor degree of science, majoring in urban  BAEXER—AWN=ZFN\ARBEEAE
planning, from Chongging University (formerly known as Chongqing (AREREREIRER)FHRIAETHE
Construction Engineering College (EEZ £ T 2Pz)) in August 1983  RIEBE4 & BN -_TZT—-FHER
and an MBA from Murdoch University in Australia in 2001. MEER AR T EHEERELTE(Y -

Our senior management consists of our executive directors and the  HFINSREEBHIATESEUTA

following persons: THMK

Name Age Position in our Group

i Fi AEEBRB

Mr. LIANG Tao &5 Chief financial officer of our Group
Rk REE G BRE

Ms. DAI Jing 47 General manager of Success Guarantee
et SEREREZE

Mr. ZHONG Zhigiang 44 Risk control director of Success Guarantee
ETmELE EREREAREREE

Mr. PANG Chung Fai Benny 45 Company Secretary

THEBEYE NEME

Mr. LIANG Tao, aged 35, was appointed as the chief financial officer BELXE 3BH R=-E—=F+A
of our Group on 18 October 2013 and is responsible for overseeing +N\BEZEFAEAXRNEENBLAE, &
the financial matters of our Group. Mr. Liang joined our Group in EEEREENHEER - PAER
December 2010 and was responsible for the initial public offering of the E_FF+_AMARNEF ¥R -=F
Company in 2013. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liang has experience —=FEEXRDTNEXROHEERE - R
for the listing of a mainland enterprise in NASDAQ having over 10 MAKRERR  PAEEEESAMD
years’ experience in financial management. Mr. Liang has been with EHpENET FH LR WIEABE10
L & L Energy, Inc., a US public company, and United Group Rail (N2Z) FEHREELRE - PA4ECFEFR LH
Limited, an Australian listed company responsible for financial matters A 7A] L&L Energy, Inc. & BN E ™A
of the two companies. Mr. Liang holds Bachelor of Business Studies of United Group Rail (NZ) Limited * 8&5%
Massey University majoring in accounting. ME QBB EE ° Massey University
REMEEL - TBEHE -
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Ms. DAI Jing, aged 47, is the general manager of Success Guarantee.
She is fully responsible for operation and management of Success
Guarantee. Ms. Dai joined Success Holdings in August 2006 as
manager of the legal department and was subsequently promoted
to vice general manager of Success Guarantee in January 2007. She
was promoted to senior vice general manager and general manager
of Success Guarantee in January 2010 and April 2016, respectively.
Prior to joining our Group. Ms. Dai worked at the Bank of China from
1993 to 2005 for handling credit approval, credit management and
asset protection. Her last position with the Bank of China was assistant
manager of the asset protection department. Ms. Dai also worked
with the China Merchants Bank from 2005 to 2006 as a manager for
handling bank management matters. Ms Dai was admitted as a lawyer
in the PRC in September 1995. Ms. Dai obtained a bachelor’s degree in
law from Wuhan University in Hubei, the PRC in July 1993.

Mr. ZHONG Zhiqgiang, aged 44, is the risk control director of Success
Guarantee and is responsible for overseeing the risk management
department of Success Guarantee. Mr. Zhong joined our Group in
October 2009. Prior to joining of our Group, Mr. Zhong worked at
the Bank of China from 1991 to 2009 for handling foreign exchange
settlement, provision of loans and credits and sales and personal
financing. His last position with the bank was assistant manager of the
personal financial department. Mr. Zhong obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics majoring in finance from Jinan University in Guangdong,
the PRC in January 2004.
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Mr. PANG Chung Fai Benny, aged 45, was appointed as our Company
Secretary on 18 October 2013. Mr. Pang is the founder and managing
partner of Benny Pang & Co, a firm of solicitiors in Hong Kong, since
February 2017. Between 1997 and January 2017, Mr. Pang practised
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong and
Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws (with honors)
from Bond University in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate
Diploma in Legal Practice and master degree in laws from The College
of Law and The University of New South Wales, respectively. He was
admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales in 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in
2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South Wales and
the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Pang is currently (i) an independent
non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board with stock code 2789; (ii) an independent
non-executive director of China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 8158; (iii) an independent non-executive
director of Sanbase Corporation Limited, a company listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange with stock code 8501;
and (iv) an executive director and vice chairman of Huabang Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Goldenmars Technology Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board with stock code 3638.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China Success
Finance Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Success Finance Group Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 96 to 224, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses

e X IR B S AR R A 1R R

Refer to notes 13, 14, 15 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 114 and 125.
B EIEIRFEMNE 13 14 - 15 - R20URFE 114 HERE 125 EHEFTHE »

The Key Audit Matter
HRBZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BMEZAEPMAEREEZEER

Assessing impairment of trade and other receivables,
factoring receivable and finance lease receivable
(together “receivables”) and provisions of guarantee
losses is a subjective area due to the level of judgement
exercised by management in determining the amount of
impairment allowances and provisions required.

An overall increase in payments made by the Group
to banks and other financial institutions under
financial guarantees the Group had issued (“guarantee
payments”) has resulted in an increase in the related
receivables from customers, which are grouped and
presented under “trade and other receivables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The amount of receivables from guarantee payments
made by the Group increased from RMB227,380,000
as at 31 December 2016 to RMB259,685,000 as at 31
December 2017 and total impairment allowances against
this balance amounting to RMB12,818,000 as at 31
December 2017.
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
receivables and provisions of guarantee losses included
the following:

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the approval, recording and monitoring of
receivables and financial guarantees issued and
the measurement of impairment allowances for
individually assessed receivables and provisions of
financial guarantees issued;
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)
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Refer to notes 13, 14, 15 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 114

and 125. (Cont’d)

BEHEHBFENF13 14 15 R 20U RFE 114 ERFE 125 EHETHIE - (48)
How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEZBEPMAEEZER

The Key Audit Matter
FREEZER

From the Group’s perspective, the portfolios which
gave rise to the greatest uncertainty were those where
impairment allowances or provisions were derived from
collective assessment models, where the receivables
and financial guarantees issued were unsecured or
where the receivables and financial guarantees issued
were subject to potential collateral shortfalls.

The determination of collective impairment allowances for
receivables and provisions of guarantee losses is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the
Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
Group’s collective impairment allowances and provisions
of guarantee losses are derived from estimates including
the Group’s historical losses for receivables and financial
guarantees issued, the loss emergence period (i.e. the
time lapse between the occurrence of the event causing
eventual default to the actual recording of a loss) and
other adjustment factors.
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evaluating the validity of the models used and
assumptions adopted in the Group’s calculation of
collective impairment allowances and provisions
of guarantee losses by critically assessing input
parameters involving subjective judgement, seeking
collaborative evidence from external sources and
comparing the historical losses with the Group’s
other internal records and our prior year records.
As part of these procedures, we challenged
the Group’s revisions to estimates and input
parameters, the consistency of judgement applied
in the use of economic factors, the loss emergence
period and the observation period for historical
losses. We compared the economic factors used in
the models to market information to assess whether
they were aligned with market and economic
development. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the lifecycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit event to the occurrence of
guarantee payments. Having considered the above,
we performed re-calculations to assess the amount
of collective impairment allowances and provisions
of guarantee losses;
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)
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Refer to notes 13, 14, 15 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 114

and 125. (Cont’d)

BEHEMBEFENF13 14 15 R 20U RFE 114 HERFE 125 EHEHIE - (&)
How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEMEZBEPMAEEZER

The Key Audit Matter
FRBEZER

Individual impairment allowances and provisions of
guarantee losses are estimated by management once
objective evidence of impairment becomes apparent.
Management exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss based on a range of factors. These
include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the debtors, collateral valuation, the seniority
of the claim and the existence and cooperativeness of
other creditors. The enforceability, timing and means
of realisation of certain properties and other illiquid
collateral may also affect the ultimate collectability
and thereby the amount of impairment allowances and
provisions of guarantee losses as at the reporting date.

We identified impairment of receivables and provisions
of guarantee losses as a key audit matter because of
the inherent uncertainty in management’s exercise of
judgement in determining the amount of impairment
allowances and provisions and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the
Group.
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assessing the impairment allowances for
individually impaired receivables and financial
guarantees by selecting a risk-based sample
for credit review. We analysed the portfolio of
receivables and financial guarantees by industry
sector and distribution channels to select samples
for credit review in industries more vulnerable to
the current economic slowdown;

critically assessing the forecast cash flows for the
sample of receivables and financial guarantees
selected by inspecting historical payment
patterns, written decisions from law courts about
the disposal of collateral and other underlying
information used in the forecast, challenging the
viability of the Group’s recovery plans, evaluating
the timing and means of realisation of collateral
and considering other sources of repayment
asserted by management. We also assessed the
consistency of management’s application of key
assumptions, evaluated any change in basis of the
key assumptions and compared the data to our
own data sources;
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

e SR IR R (B SR RS R BB (A

Refer to notes 13, 14, 15 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 114

and 125. (Cont’d)
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREZEER BEMEZBAEEDPUNEEZSEE

evaluating the Group’s internal policy for the
valuation of collateral and assessing the valuation
of collateral for the sample of receivables and
financial guarantees selected by comparison with
available property market information; and

assessing the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding financial guarantees by inspecting
contracts, on a sample basis, and obtaining
confirmations from the beneficiaries of all financial
guarantees issued.
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Assessing the carrying value of the Group’s interest in Success Credit

FHEEEENEN R E DR REE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 108.

B EGEBEIREM T 17 U RE 108 EHEFTHIF -
The Key Audit Matter
FAEEZEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EMEZBEPMAEREZEE

The Group’s 27.08% interest in Foshan Chancheng
Success Micro Credit Co., Ltd. (“Success Credit”),
which is an unlisted corporate entity, is the principal
component of the Group’s interest in associates in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in
associates are initially stated at cost and are adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associates less any
impairment allowances.

As Success Credit had a significant reduction in revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017 there existed
indicators of potential impairment of the Group’s
interest therein. Management prepared an estimate
of the recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in
Success Credit based on a value-in-use calculation for
the operations of Success Credit. This was performed
by preparing a discounted cash flow forecast. A number
of key judgements were made by management in
determining the inputs for the discounted cash flow
forecast which included:
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Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of
the Group’s interest in Success Credit included the
following:

discussing future operating plans with Success
Credit’s management, comparing Success
Credit’s budgeted operating revenue and profits
with the assumptions used by management in its
discounted cash flow forecast and comparing the
estimated future gross profit margin of Success
Credit’s micro credit loan business with externally
derived data and industry norms;

° engaging our valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating the assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in its discounted
cash flow forecast relating to inflation, terminal
values and the discount rate used to derive the
recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in
Success Credit through the following procedures:

° conducting research on the assumptions
and judgements relating to inflation, terminal
values and the discount rate based on market
information available;
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Assessing the carrying value of the Group’s interest in Success Credit (Cont’d)
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Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 108. (Cont’d)

BEG SR EMT 17 AR E 108 EHIEFTBIE © ()
The Key Audit Matter
FAEEZEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EMEZBEPNMATREZEE

o expected changes in revenue and direct costs;
° the revenue growth rate;

° the discount rate applied to the projected future
cash flows; and

° inflation and terminal values.

We identified assessing the carrying value of the interest
in Success Credit as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because assessing the key impairment assumptions
involved a significant degree of management judgement
which may affect both the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in Success Credit as well as any impairment
charge for the year.
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o performing an alternative calculation of
the discount rate and comparing this
calculation with the discount rate applied by
management;

° comparing the actual results of Success Credit
for the current year to forecasts prepared by
management for the prior year to assess the
accuracy of management’s forecasting process;

° evaluating the sensitivity analyses prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast and
considering the possibility of error or management
bias; and

° considering whether the disclosures the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of the Group’s interest in
Success Credit reflected the risks inherent in the
key assumptions with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Li Ka Lam.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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mEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-F—+tF+-A=+—ALFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

Note 2017 2016
B EE —E—tf —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBEFT ARET T
Interest income FIEUEA 50,990 49,861
Less: interest expenses o REREX (263) —
Net interest income FEWAFERE 50,727 49,861
Service fee from consulting services ARG TSRS E 29,249 26,729
Guarantee income EREA 11,202 14,195
Less: re-guarantee fee W BIERE (1,356) (454)
Net guarantee fee income EREWRAFE 9,846 13,741
Revenue Y &= 3 89,822 90,331
Other revenue Hiblh s 4 2,983 3,183
Impairment and allowance charged BB R EE K 5(a) (7,016) (3,411)
Operating expenses wERAT (53,247) (57,687)
Share of losses of associates DLEE A REE (199) (393)
Profit before taxation BREL A Al 5 32,343 32,023
Income tax Py 6(a) (16,692) (12,978)
Profit for the year FREF 15,651 19,045
Attributable to: LU R IEELG
Equity shareholders of the Company 7N B)#E IR R 16,301 19,353
Non-controlling interests R AER (650) (308)
Profit for the year FREF 15,651 19,045
Earnings per share (RMB per share) &SRB (ERARET)
Basic B 9 0.03 0.04
Diluted e 9 0.03 0.04

The notes on pages 104 to 224 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 27(b).

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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SmeBankHMEEKER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ-ZF—t&+_-_A=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R#F7T)

Note 2017 2016
g —E—tf —E—RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Profit for the year FNiEFH 15,651 19,045
Other comprehensive income FNEMEEIIIAN
for the year (after tax and (BB RESEAEE)
reclassification adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified ARREHNSTEEZEFENER :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation & FHE KFEEINERE
of financial statements of operations ~ BA TRk AVEE 5 =58
outside the mainland China (4,129) 5,378
Total comprehensive income FELHBNGEE
for the year 11,522 24,423
Attributable to: LT EEEWN :
Equity shareholders of the Company 7N B)#E IR R 12,172 24,731
Non-controlling interests R ER (650) (308)
Total comprehensive income FEEEIINGEE
for the year 11,522 24,423

The notes on pages 104 to 224 form part of these financial statements. 55104 £ 224 H FE B R 2 S TR
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA EBH#5)7R)

31 December

31 December

Note 2017 2016
g —F—tF —E-RE
+=ZRA=+—H +t=ZB=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T

Assets BiE
Cash and bank deposits RERBITER 10 39,382 157,840
Pledged bank deposits EEHIRITER 11 95,499 119,043
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEEmEE 12 8,066 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 13 518,570 344,948
Factoring receivable {RIB FEWFRIE 14 94,849 92,269
Finance lease receivable BLEH & e R IE 15 176,183 165,428
Interest in associates REEE N RER 17 101,466 107,519
Equipment B4 18 1,912 2,890
Intangible assets BEEE 19 28
Deferred tax assets FERERIBEEE 19(c) 1,105 1,135
Total assets BEHBHE 1,037,051 991,100

Liabilities =L
Liabilities from guarantees EREE 20 8,805 9,179
Customer pledged deposits received BWEFERRZES 21 62 67
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEER 22 5,231 =
Accruals and other payables FEET & AR B A B TR 23 48,210 9,871
Receipts in advance FEWFRIE 24 7 36
Current tax liabilities ENEARiIEEE 19(a) 12,902 10,063
Obligations under finance leases REHEaE 25 506 687
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 19(c) 1,413 4,881
Total liabilities BEE%H 77,136 34,784
NET ASSETS BEZE 959,915 956,316

TEERBER (BR) ARATF



e PRI R

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA EH#5)7)

31 December

31 December

Note 2017 2016
Mz RHR-F—t& RIZE-—RF
T=RA=F—H T=H=
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ETT ARBT T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRARHE

Share capital i 27(c) 4,241 4,241
Reserves & 27 953,359 948,216

Total equity attributable to equity = &/ R HE &K
shareholders of the Company FE(LHE S4B %R 957,600 952,457
Non-controlling interests JEEERRE R 2,315 3,859
TOTAL EQUITY WE B 959,915 956,316

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2018.

REE
Zhang Tiewei
Director

EE

The notes on pages 104 to 224 form part of these financial statements.

Fu Jie
Director

EFE

RESEMERBRER-"Z-N\F=A
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A B 3L 4
mERREER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-F—+tF+-A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KOARERRER
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus  Regulatory  Exchange  Retained controlling
Note capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests Total equity

Wit BE  RBER  RERE  BMGE  EERE  ERGE  REEN B GeREE  REMR
RMB'OD0  RMB'0OO  RMBOO0  RMBOX  RMB'OJ  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBER  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRER  ARRFR  ARBTR  AREER  ARRER  ARRFR
27(0) 210 27 1) 279 21)

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZF-t%-F-RAkEH 4241 447472 302,280 43,465 26,780 11,235 116,984 952,457 3,859 956,316

Changesinequity for 2017~ Z§-tEEREH

Proft for the year ERER = = = = = = 16,301 16,301 (650) 15,651
Exchange differences on LN

translation of financil HRRRNET2S

statements of operations

outside the mainland China - - - - - (4129 - (4129 - (4129
Total comprehensiveincome ~ 2FH AL o = = = = (4129 16,301 12,172 650) 11,522

Dividends approved inrespect  #EM1LERE

of the previous year - - - - - - (9,381) (9,381) - (9,381)
Regulatory reserve appropriation EEFERH - - = = (8,654) = 8,654 = = =
Surplus reserve appropriation  BEFERA - = = 3663 = = (3,663) = = =
Equity setfled share-based ~ SUEREENRAARHE

transactions s % = = 33 = = = = 33 = 33
Waiver of debs from BEhH%ER

related parties - - 1,054 - - - - 1,054 11 1,065
Capitalincrease of subsidiaries HEATEE = = 905 = = = = 905 (905) =
Balance at RIF-tE

31 December 2017 2Rz T-RMER 4,241 47472 304,632 47128 18,126 7,106 128,8% 957,600 2,315 959915

100 +#EHESHZER (ER) BR2T



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERDBHR

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E—+tF+-A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA RE|7T)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KLARERFREL
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus  Regulatory ~ Exchange  Refained controling
Note capital ~ premium resene reserve reserve reserve  eanings Total interests  Total equity
[iFd Re  RbEE  BAEE  BHER  EBHER  ENRR  REEN & kehER  ERSE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETr  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
270 214 27 2 21 21
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF-nF-A-BRER 3,75 350,865 302,292 38,861 47828 5857 89,202 838,660 4,167 842,821
Changesinequity for 2016 —§-~EE#EH
Proft for the year EREA = = = = = = 19,353 19,353 (309 19,045
Exchange differences on BERERRRNER
translation of financial HRRRNET S
statements of operations
outside the mainland China - - - - - 5378 ¥ 5318 - 5378
Total comprehensive income ~ 2FH AL = = = = = 5378 19,353 4731 (308) 24423
Issuance of shares by placing ~ ERRAERERTRA
of new shares 27(c) {i 478 93,988 - - - - - 94,466 - 94,466
Dividends approved inrespect A1 LERE
of the previous year - - i - - - (8,015) (8,01 - (8,015)
Regulatory reserve EERAR
appropriation - - i - (21,048) - 21,048 - - =
Surplus reserve appropriation B {ERH - = = 4,604 = = (4,604) = = =
Sharesissued undershare  REERERHE
option scheme Wity % 8 2619 (1,172) = = = = 1455 = 1,455
Equty setfed share-based ~ WEREENRABER
fransactions i % = = 1,160 = = = = 1,160 = 1,160
Balance at RIF-~E
31 December 2016 t2RZT-RMER 4241 447 472 302,280 43,465 26,780 11,235 116,984 952,457 3,859 956,316

The notes on pages 104 to 224 form part of these financial statements.
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mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-F—+tF+-A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R#FT)

Note 2017 2016
B EE —E—tf —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Operating activities R EE
Profit before taxation MBI RER 32,343 32,023
Adjustments for: HUT&ERAZE .
Depreciation and amortisation EREE 5(c) 857 705
Impairment and allowances charged BB & B H1BR 5(a) 7,016 3,411
Share of losses of associates pai ol N ) E =] 199 393
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss KEIRE 7 (W) B2 (759) 142
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $R1TEFFI S WA 4 (1,557) (2,477)
Equity settled share-based payment LAz 45 & LURR 19
expenses AERNEREX 5(b) 393 1,160
Interest expenses FERX 263 —
Gain from disposal of
non-current assets BEEFRBEERE 4 (734) 6)
Changes in working capital: BEETED:
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B & IRITEREL 23,544 16,931
Decrease in restricted customer ZRHEEFIER
pledged deposits REBEEFD 5 5
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 K H 1th FE X FRIE 12 hn (180,858) (82,123)
Increase in factoring receivable TR IR FE LR IR AN (2,641) (73,219)
(Increase)/decrease in finance REHEEWARIE
lease receivable (1), w2 (10,989) 3,675
Decrease in receipts in advance FEWFRIE R (29) (2,635)
Decrease in customer pledged EREFERREDRAD
deposits received (5) (5)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and  FEFTE AR H A FIE
other payables &, OR) 38,339 82)
Increase in deferred income IEFEUW A BN 67 836
Cash used in operating activities REFEFTARE (94,546) (101,266)
PRC income tax paid 2R EAEH 19(a) (17,291) (9,328)
Net cash used in operating activities & & Z 8T AR &35 (111,837) (110,594)

102 +HEHESHZER (ER) BR2T



AN N —
FERERER
for the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E—+tF+-A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA EBH#5)7R)

Note 2017 2016
g —E—tF —E—RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Investing activities BEE
Payments on acquisition of associates U8 E#E 1\ 5] #Y 1S 17 — (6,200)
Proceeds from sales of equipment BERESIIE —i 14
Prepayments for purchase of BERBENFEIFIE
equity investments 13 — (550)
Payments for purchase of equipment BB E BT — (506)
Payments for purchase of BEELEENNRK
intangible assets — (12)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WiEATHEESRERE
financial assets 13(d) (159) —
Interest received 2T 1,380 2,040
Withdraw/(placement) of bank deposit Bl (175 REI A
with original maturity over A={EA U LHRITER
three months 1,600 (1,600)
Net cash generated from/(used in) #ZZEFHHEL (FFH)REFHA
investing activities 2,821 (6,814)
Financing activities AL EE
Proceeds from shares issued under  EBR A EERTIRDFTEFE
placing of new shares 27(c) (ii) — 94,466
Proceeds from exercise of TEBRERERIE
share options — 1,455
Dividends paid EARE (9,381) (10,114)
Proceeds from new borrowings B FTSRIR 22 5,000 —
Capital element of finance lease EfMERERENERES
rentals paid (165) (96)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RZEEFH(FA)  ELREFHA
financing activities (4,546) 85,711
Net decrease in cash and ReERBEEFEEWRLVER
cash equivalents (113,562) (81,697)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HREREREEEY
at 1 January 10 156,173 182,636
Effect of foreign exchange INEEREH L
rate changes (3,291) 5,234
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZHA=+—H1
at 31 December RERBFEEEY 10 39,320 156,173

The notes on pages 104 to 224 form part of these financial statements.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 2.

(b)
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure has
been included in Note 10(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7,
Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont’a)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 1(j) (ii)).
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Note 1(j) (ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see Note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(j) (ii)).
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(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred over the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 1(r) (i) and 1(r) (iv).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(Cont’d)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see Note 1(j) (i))-

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As
an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(j) (i)).
Dividend income from equity securities and interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in Notes 1(r) (i) and 1(r) (iv), respectively.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised
in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
Note 1(j) (i), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.
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(h)

(i)

TEERER

Equipment

Items of equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1(j) (ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated
useful life
Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years
Office and other equipment 3 - 5years

Where parts of an item of equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

(i) Leased assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in Note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in Note 1(j) (ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating lease, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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)

Impairment of assets

(0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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(i) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Cont’d)

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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)

TEERER

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

equipment;

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position; and

interest in associates in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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(i) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowances for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 1(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowances for impairment of doubtful debts.
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()

(m)

(n)

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with Note 1(p), other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
joined defined contributions for the employees,
such as basic pension scheme, housing fund, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury
insurance and maternity insurance. The Group makes
contributions to the above mentioned schemes at the
applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by
the government organisation. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

()

(m)

(n)

Hith e {4 7R

Hitb B SRENRER QI REE
MR o BRIRIBMEE1(0) sTEH
BERREEI - HHEAR
THHEZ AR AR -
i IR BB A R ERI1ER
i EZBER TR -

ReRBEEEY

REeERhRSEEYRERTHE
RRBRE - FHRRERITREA
TRIBBAVERER - URE
HERBUENRE  BLERE
AHRBEESEANRSH
] BAESNEEZPEAR
B SERBER=EARE
5o

BEEF

() HHESFEFNRREMHR
AR KT EIR S

TE  FERA TF
TR ERERMAKTEHE
R EE R A AR
BERHEBRBFE
MR o it HEE AR
REEREEAE A
BERSENREIR -

RIBAREE P EDRE KA
B A E R PR
RAEREESMER
- MEXBEZRR
e EEAEE A
rEBRERE - RER
- TEREREBR
b o REBBRENBT
HERAENBENE
B A e =@ Ll st &
AR - HFRIRERT
EEREHAHIER -



B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

(n) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the share issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(i)  Share-based payments (Cont’d)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
cost of the share-based payment granted to employees
of the subsidiary are recognised as cost of investment
in the subsidiary (see Note 1(d)).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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Income tax (Cont’d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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(o)

Income tax (Cont’d)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
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Income tax (Cont’d)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(p) Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

The Group issues performance guarantee and litigation
guarantee contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide
guarantees to its customers who entered into contracts
with third parties for services to be rendered, goods to be
supplied or obligation to fulfil within an agreed time period.
The Group is required to compensate the guarantee holder
if a specified uncertain future event adversely results in the
counterparties’ failure to delivery services and goods, or to
fulfil the obligation.
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(p) Guarantees issued (Cont’d)

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
liabilities from guarantees. The fair value of guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The fair value of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with Note
1(g) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in deferred income in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

() Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(i) Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the services performed to date as
a percentage of the total services to be performed.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the costs
incurred that it is probable be recoverable.
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(r)

Revenue recognition (Cont’a)

(i)

(iv)

)

Guarantee fee income

The amount of the guarantee is recognised when
guarantee contracts have been made whereby the
related guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount of
revenue associated with guarantee contracts can be
measured reliably. The fair value of the guarantee is
initially recognised as deferred income and is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
guarantee fee income (see Note 1(p)).

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
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(s) Translation of foreign currencies

(t)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
()  bhas control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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(t) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person indentified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of services, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

During the reporting period, the directors have determined
that the Group has only one single business component/
reportable segment as the Group is principally engaged in
providing financing solutions to customers, which is the
basis to allocate resources and assess performance of the
Group.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in the PRC. For
the purpose of segment information disclosures under
HKFRS 8, the Group regarded the PRC as its country of
domicile. All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
are principally attributable to the PRC, being the single
geographical region.
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Notes 26 and 28 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of options and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expense required
to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses.
Such estimation is made based on the available information
as at the end of each reporting period and is determined
by the Group’s practical experience, default history of the
business, taking into consideration of industry information
and market data. It is possible that the practical experience
and default history is not indicative of future loss on the
guarantees issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
factoring receivable and finance lease receivable

As described in Note 1(j), trade and other receivables,
factoring receivable and finance lease receivable that
are measured at amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is provided. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about loss events such as a
significant decline in the estimated future cash flow of an
individual debtor or the portfolio of debtors, and significant
changes in the financial condition that have an adverse effect
on the debtor. If there is an indication that there has been a
change in the factors used to determine the allowances for
impairment, the impairment loss recognised in prior years is
reversed or additional impairment charge is required.
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The principal activities of the Group are the provision of AEENFTEXERBREMER - &
guarantees, financial leasing, factoring and financial consultancy EHE RERVMBERERE - - F
services. The amount of each significant category of revenue NERANEERERNKRENEEE
recognised during the year is as follows: W
Note 2017 2016
FiaE —E—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBTT
Interest income from receivables PR R HIER
from guarantee payments SRR B WA (@) 16,981 25,472
Interest income from finance leasing MERER WA 14,797 16,732
Interest income from factoring REBRIB A 7,562 4,744
Interest income from down payments
for investment BREFFRFEWA 11,650 2,913
Less: interest expenses B FERX (263) —
Net interest income RS A FEE 50,727 49,861
Service fee from consulting services BHAREMEREE 29,249 126,729
Guarantee fee income BRERA
- Income from financial guarantees -REERERA 5,934 11,588
- Income from performance guarantees —/&#IERKA 5,211 2,400
- Income from litigation guarantees —SRAAERIIA 57 207
Less: re-guarantee fee W DRRE (1,356) (454)
Net guarantee fee income BERERAFE 9,846 13,741
Total st 89,822 90,331
During the year 2017, the Group’s largest single customer REB—+tF FXEEEAE-F
contributed 29.48% of the Group’s revenue (2016: 29.01%); while FHKRREAEBRENES LR
the percentage of the Group’s top 5 customers’ revenue was 29.48% (=& — ;X : 29.01%) *
75.58% (2016: 68.20%). MAEBEREFNRBMRER
D R75.58% (= B — K F:
68.20%) °
(@) Pursuant to the agreements signed by the Group and (@ REAEEHENEREFR
guarantee customers, an aggregate interest income EENHZ LBEARY
amounted to RMB16,981,000 (2016: RMB25,472,000) 16,981,000 T(= & — <~ &F :
was charged as interests of receivables from guarantee A R #25,472,0007T ) B9 F
payments. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the BWATIRERBGENERN
Group has received the interests of RMB8,962,000 (2016: AMBBEHFE - BEZZ
RMB25,472,000). —tE&+=-A=+-ALE

E - AEECBRANEARY
8,962,000 7T (=F—7R"F : A
R 25,472,000 7T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

Note 2017 2016

FiEE —F—tF —E-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEWA 1,557 2,477
Government grants BT Bh @) 663 549
Gain from disposal of non-current assets iR & IR ENIE EWES 13(d) 734 —
Others Hith 29 157
Total @ 2,983 3,183

(@ Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee Company Limited
(“Success Guarantee”) received funding support mainly
from the Office of People’s Government of Nanhai District
of Foshan City. The entitlements of the government grants
were under the discretion of the relevant government
bureaus. The government grants were provided to the
Group for its support to small and medium enterprises. The
grants were unconditional and were therefore recognised
as income when received. For the year ended 31 December
2017, a government grant amounted to RMB274,000 was
rewarded to Success Guarantee for guarantee expense
(2016: RMB525,000).

Foshan Success Financial Services Outsouring Limited
(“Success Financial Services”) received funding support
mainly from the Office of People’s Government of
Chancheng District of Foshan City. The entitlements of the
government grants were under the discretion of the relevant
government bureaus. The purpose of the government grants
was to grant financial assistance to financial enterprises
located in Chancheng. For the year ended 31 December
2017, a government grant amounted to RMB360,000 was
rewarded to Success Financial Services (2016: nil).

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

(@)

EREKBMELERERAA
(TERERDEZRFHLTRE
BEARBNRAZERES
% - BURHEBI B EREBUN
ERBERT - BUSHEBINE
MWAFEAEE@P/NEERE
REXEF - BISHBRE&KRY
0 0 E AW B2 S B e
RBEBBA - BEZZE—+F
+ZA=+—HILEFE K
BN A B #5 274,000 TR IE
REAZEBTFERER(ZZE
—REF  AR¥525,0007T) °

HILTERESBRRBEIINTER
AR (ERER ) EEZHEWL
TEREA RBF A ZEER
B  BNmBIIIHER
BRERBIERET - BUSHED
WEMNAEERENSREE
RHUPKLE HE=Z—t
F+ZA=1+—BLEEFEE K
FF i Bh A %5 360,000 7t E 28
BFEXRESR(ZT—RE:

=) -



Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

(a)

(b)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

BRBLADE R DR (FH ), HIBRAT
FRBEN

Impairment allowances and provision - (written (a) BEEEREE- (EE)
back)/charged /HIBR
Note 2017 2016
Bt EE ZE—+tfF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Provision written back for MEBHER
guarantees issued BERE (441) (1,327)
Impairment allowances charged/ LA T ZEHKR,
(written back) for: () RERME -
- receivables from guarantee —EWERN
payments ERIR 13(a) 1,307 3,972
— factoring receivable —REBFEUNFRIE 14(b) 61 838
— finance lease receivable —mEREERRIE 15(b) 234 (72)
— interest in associates —REE N TER 17(a) 5,855 —
Total et 7,016 3,411
Staff costs (b) EIEA
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥FT ARET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 26,540 23,041
Contributions to defined contribution EERRGT R
retirement plan 598 1,132
Equity settled share-based R EEUR G
payment expenses AEBNEREX 393 1,160
Total e 27,531 25,333

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(b) Staff costs (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes based on
certain percentages of the eligible employees’ salaries.
The local government authority is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligations for payments of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described above.

(b)

BT (&)

RETEEBESBHRARSA
Bl - hEIMELT2MT Bt
F RSN ERHRRKE
MerE(TBEETED - Bt
BB L RAR A @ ERE
ERESFEE —BOLED
R - tHBUTHES E[R
KEEX N2 ERIAE -

BRAEH B RRIN - ANEEE
XAVRRE R EMESRAKE
BN EELMEAREE -

(c) Other items (c) HfEAE

2017 2016

—F—t& —E-REF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBT

Depreciation and amortisation ITEREHE 857 705

Operating lease charges in respect of

leasing of properties MEHRENKEHBESI Y 6,789 8,857
Auditors’ remuneration 12 BB 35 B

- audit services — B IR 1,554 1,480

— other services — 2R 1,303 854

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (hz),B51EIF 5 (1,126) 1,408

TEERBER (BR) ARATF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 E1558 » ZRIUA RHS)R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #4LG&HEZREIMEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) HREBEZXRAPFIESE :
or loss represents:
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥BEF T ARET T
Current tax BIEAREIE
Provision for PRC income FAPEIESHREE
tax for the year 20,065 13,606
Under-provision in respect of BREFERERR
prior years 65 77
19(a) 20,130 13,683
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences EERENTGER (3,438) (705)
Total st 16,692 12,978
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HEAHERFTENBIIER
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: TEHREHEF LR
2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREEF T ARET T
Profit before taxation REL TR 32,343 32,023
Notional tax on profit before taxation, MRBLADR A B RBIE -
calculated at the rates applicable TSR AERE AN
in the jurisdictions concerned BMEGTE 16,265 12,294
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR E 362 607
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE 65 77
Actual tax expense BERHIERY 16,692 12,978
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: (Cont’d)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, respectively.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the Company and the subsidiaries located in Hong
Kong as the Company and the subsidiaries had not
derived any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the year.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC income tax at the
statutory tax rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the CIT Law and its related regulations,
non-PRC-resident enterprises are levied withholding
tax at 10% (unless reduced by tax treaties/
arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC
enterprises for profits earned since 1 January 2008.
Distributions of earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. As a part
of the continuing evaluation of the Group’s dividend
policy, management considered that for the purpose
of business development, the undistributed earnings
from 1 January 2008 of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to RMB218,895,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB166,062,000) will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future. As such, no deferred tax liabilities
were recognised in respect of the PRC withholding tax.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

(b) BB R E B IRR

(i)

XESTHRNNERR : @)

REFSHERABEZHE
HRAIRRG - AEEBEAE
HERENABELHSAN
EAAFSHL

RER » BHRARAREERE
HOBf B A R I SR SRS A AR
MEBEBFEBAIA - BILK
RARARMBARTIRER
MSHEAE -

BBER=-ZZENF—A—B4%
M B AT EH (TR
BHNE  XEENTEHE
AR BIR25% K EER RM
R EFTISHL -

RIECEMBBEREBRE
B FPEERCEARTH
rEE-EENFE-—H—H#%
BREN B % F EEW AR 212 10%
BEHMFEINB (BRIEBIBERL
BARK ZHARK) - R=Z
ENF—-—A—HAEEXNER
DIRER R HMERETEIR -
EAREEREBERIFENTL
H—E5  EEBERAE A%
KEREW > FEMBARE
—EEN\F-A-—HBEZ-ZE
—tE+ZB=+—-—HHX
2R EF A R # 218,895,000
T(ZE—-—RNRE: AR
166,062,000 7T ) T & 1A 7] 78
BARRDIK - FALt » WEFL A
EFE R ERIELERIEEE -



Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are disclosed as

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

REBFESHMARRENT -

follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-S—tE+-A=+-ALSE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payments
fees inkind contributions Sub-total (note (ii)) Total
e 2HR BAREE PARR 3 AR
BEZHlg BT 13 NG RS (MR (i) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Chairman and executive IRRUTES
director
Mr. Zhang Tiewei REELE 858 — — 858 — 858
Executive directors HiTES
Ms. Fu Jie (note (i) B2z L (K () — 2,567 — 2,567 — 2,567
Mr. Chen Hui RELE 896 102 22 1,020 — 1,020
Mr. Li Bin £y 130 273 28 431 58 489
Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond  3:/%83 5% 4 (Bff3E () 29 1,919 = 1,048 = 1,948
(note (i)
Mr. Xu Kaiying #BEREE 598 1,431 = 2,029 — 2,029
Mr. Pang Haogquan (note () BE& 54 (3 () 338 = - 338 — 338
Non-executive director FuiTEs
Mr. He Darong MEREE 130 = = 130 = 130
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE
directors
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei TEHLE 130 = = 130 = 130
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur EXFEE 130 = = 130 = 130
Mr. Xu Yan FEEE 130 — - 130 — 130
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang BN 130 = = 130 = 130
Total @it 3,499 6,292 50 9,841 58 9,899
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2-Z-"ET"A=T-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
and benefits scheme payments
Directors’ fees inkind  contributions Sub-total (note (ii)) Total
e 2ER BIRGHE DR AERE
EEHE BNEA {3 NGt B (IEE (i) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR AREFR ARETR  AR¥TR
Chairman and executive IRENTES
director
Mr. Zhang Tiewei REEEE 103 — — 103 — 103
Executive directors HirE=s
Mr. Chen Hui RELE 103 2,628 28 2,759 — 2,759
Mr. Li Bin REE 108 269 25 397 134 531
Mr. Wang Xiong (note (i) THEE (M) 33 2 - 35 — 35
Mr. Xu Kaiying BEHEEE 103 968 = 1,071 — 1,071
Non-executive directors FuiTES
Mr. He Darong MEREE 103 = = 103 = 103
Mr. Pang Haogquan REREE 103 — — 103 — 103
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE
directors
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei ERELE 103 — - 103 — 103
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur BAIfEE 103 - - 103 - 103
Mr. Xu Yan HERE 103 = = 103 - 103
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang BNI%E 51 = = 51 = 51
Total @st 1,011 3,867 53 4,931 134 5,065
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(i)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

Ms. Fu Jie was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 6 January 2017. Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond
was appointed as an executive director with effect from 21
September 2017. Mr. Pang Haoquan was re-designated as
an executive director with effect from 6 January 2017. Mr.
Wang Xiong was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 4 July 2016 and resigned with effect from 20
October 2016.

Share-based payments

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the director under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in Note 1(n) (ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Note 26.

(ii)

BR2ZtLtB-ZE—tE—A~
HREEZERBHITES -
BRELEB=ZZTE—+tFHA
“t+-HREZERHITE
E-EBHERAELEE-E 18
—BBEATBHITES -
FTHEEE-ZE—~"FtAM
HEEZETAHTES  IHN
—E-R"FE+AZ+HBHME -

LARR 3 R ELHE A 3K

BENRIRIEA D AR
HEETES WERENE
S - SRR EE TR
£ 1)) 7 0102 SE B8
RURBAEROHROET
R -
BEENERNORE - 2E
EEHBRENEERKR
BE - 26 T AR
CINECEEE

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

Of the five individuals with highest emolument, three (2016: two) hEREHFMALTH  E=B(=F
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The —REF I MB)RES - HHEMRNMH
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2016: TF7HEE - FRAEMBRE(ZZE—R
three) individuals are as follows: F =R ATHEFMERENT :
2017 2016
“F—tF —EB-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBT T
Salaries and other emoluments e & H g 2,209 3,915
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan ERERRET B 61 67
Share-based payments LR AR AE BT 28 63
Total st 2,298 4,045
The emoluments of the two (2016: three) individuals with the ME(CE—RFE: ZR)BRSFHMH
highest emoluments are within the following bands: ATHFHMNF T FEE -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
Nil-HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,0008 7T — 1
HK$1,000,000-HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 & T &E
2,000,000 T 2 1
HK$2,000,000-HK$3,000,000 2,000,0008 T2
3,000,000 T — 1

142 +EHESHZER (ER) BR2T



B RS R AR B AL
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(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB16,301,000 (2016: RMB19,353,000)
and the weighted average of 530,805,000 ordinary shares
(2016: 487,336,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BREXRRZR

BREXREANTIREFAR
AAIEBERBRREMLZRA
E#£16,301,000 T(= & — 7~
F: AR #19,353,000 7T )
REeBTEBRMNEFIIE
530,805,000 (= & — i~
1 487,336,000% ) 5t & -
MR -

HERINEFIIHE

(a)

Note 2017 2016
Bt =E —F—tH —E—RE
000 000
F Bz TR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R— B —HH
EBRITERR 530,805 474,914
Effect of shares issued by placing &3 ft & 31T
of new shares RGONEE 27(c) (ii) — 12,172
Effect of shares issued by share ~ B{T{EBRAEFTEEIT
option exercised RO SE 27(c) (iii) = 250
Weighted average number of R+t=—A=+—H
ordinary shares at 31 December ~ HIZ @R INEFIEE 530,805 487,336
FERE
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(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB16,301,000 (2016: RMB19,353,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
530,805,000 shares (2016: 488,006,000 shares), calculated

as follows:

(b) ER#EERF

BREEREADIRERRD T
EBERBRREMLEENAR
#%16,301,000T(= & — ~
F£: AR #19,353,0007T )
% 530,805,000 % (= & — X

£F : 488,006,000 1% ) & & IR
MEFIEEFTENT -

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
’000 000
T B T
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ZBA=+—8HK
shares at 31 December EEMR InRESE I E 530,805 487,336
Effect of deemed issue of shares AEEERETEITHRIE
under the Group’s share option BITIRMD S (M 26)
scheme (Note 26) o 670
Weighted average number of ordinary RTZA=+—HWEER
shares (diluted) at 31 December (#58) I B 530,805 488,006

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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() RERREFREE:

31 December

(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

31 December

2017 2016
RIFE—tE HRZ-—RE
+=ZB=+—-H +=ZBA=1+-—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Demand deposits and term deposits ERERKREZIEA
with banks with original maturity DR=EANERER
less than three months 39,234 156,086
Bank deposit with original maturity REIEBABB=@EAKN
over three months RITER — 1,600
Restricted customer pledged deposits ZREEFERRES 62 67
Cash in hand bk 86 87
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated ~ 4R& BB RRANRE
statement of financial position KRBT 39,382 157,840
Bank deposit with original maturity REIESEBB=@EAHN
over three months RITER — (1,600)
Restricted customer pledged deposits TRETFERGES (62) (67)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FERERERANES
consolidated cash flow statement RELZEY 39,320 156,173

Pursuant to the Implementing Rules for the Administration
of Financial Guarantee Companies promulgated by the
People’s Government of the Guangdong Province on
27 September 2010 and the Notice on Regulating the
Management of Customer Pledged Deposits of Financial
Guarantee Institutions announced by the Joint Committee
for the Regulation of the Financial Guarantee Industry
on 15 April 2012, the Group is required to set up certain
arrangements to manage the customers’ pledged deposits
by 31 March 2011. The arrangements include: (i) enter
into tripartite custodian agreement among lending bank,
customer and the Group for ensuring the entrustment
of lending bank to manage the deposits; (ii) deposit
the pledged deposit received from the customer into a
designated custodian bank account; and (iii) such deposit is
not available for use by the Group.

REEREARBFA-Z—
TENAZT+ LA EMHRHCE
EMERDIABEETIE
BB R mE M RRERE
ERRHEEENR T ——F
MA+EATENEENRE
RMEMEREETFERRE
SEENBH)  AEEER
—E——F=A=+—HA%
VETRBUEEEFERR
FHe o BRRHEE ()EX
RIT - FPEAEEBIL=
FEEHE  BRETERR
TEBRES  ()REFWEH
MERRIFSTFABETER
TRF  R(iVAEBERAE
RERRES -

FERE
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(@) Cash and bank deposits (Cont’d)

In order to comply with the aforesaid rules and regulations,
the Group had set up internal guidelines which were adopted
by the Group in May 2012. However, the aforesaid rules
and regulations are not enforceable to banks and the Group
could not enter into tripartite custodian arrangement with
certain lending banks. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016,
customer pledged deposits of RMB57,000 and RMB62,000,
respectively, were deposited into a designated bank account
under two tripartite custodian arrangements. For those
guarantee services without setting up tripartite custodian
arrangements, the Group has maintained the restricted
customer pledged deposits received in the Group’s bank
accounts. As at 31 December, the restricted customer
pledged deposits received were maintained as follows:

(a

RERREFERERE (@)

BB FMRBIRER  AE
Bo4lETR=-_S——FHA
HAEES| - A > LR
Al &2 3% 3R A ] ¥4 4R 17 98 1
17 MAKEEREEETERK
RITHE=AEEZH - RZ
E—t+tER-E—RE+H
=+—H ' REMHBP=AHFE
EREFEARBERITERFEN
EFERRBFLSDAIAAR
#57,000 7t & A K % 62,000
T MEREWERI=FTE
ZHHNERRBEMNS @ ~£E
ERATEERITIREFEEMMK
BNZREEFIERRES -
RT+ZB=+—8 - #EAk
BMWZREEFIERHEESN
T

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

RIF—tE RIZ—RF

+=A=+-B t=A=t+-A

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARYET T AR¥ET T

Designated custodian bank accounts EBEXERITRP 57 62
The Group’s bank accounts REBMRITRE 5 5
Total st 62 67

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEZTBHRELEEENY
activities R
Obligations
Interest- under
bearing finance
borrowings leases Total
FREENR HMEEEERE st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—t&—HA—H = 687 687
Changes from financing FZEREHEES :
cash flows:
Proceeds from BRI RIA
new borrowings 5,000 — 5,000
Interest element of finance BN REHREHRS
lease rentals paid FEEBD — (165) (165)
Total changes from RMERSRESELTE
financing cash flows 5,000 (165) 4,835
Exchange adjustments E X% = (48) (48)
Other changes: Hih&s) :
Interest expenses FEBX 231 — 231
Finance charges REHEEENHEER
on obligations
under finance leases — 32 32
Total other changes Hih g eam 231 32 263
R_F—t&E
At 31 December 2017 +-—H=+—H 5,231 506 5,737
Pledged bank deposits represent the deposits pledged to banks CERRITERECERTZXRR
for the financial guarantees that the Group provides to the TNER AEXRKEEREFRZ
customers for their borrowings from banks. FKIBTHERT @2 RENREE
& o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

31 December

31 December

Note 2017 2016
Bt EE RIE—tE HRIZ—RE
+-BA=+—-8B +=A=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Unlisted equity investment FEEmIRERE 13(d) 8,066 —
31 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016
Mz RIF—t&FE R-ZF—RF
+ZA=+—H +t=—A=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Receivables from guarantee payments  FEWE LN ERT 0] 259,685 227,380
Less: allowances for doubtful debts A REREME (ii) (12,818) (11,511)
246,867 215,869
Trade debtors from guarantees REBERIEWERR 858 195
Trade debtors from consultancy services & E 5 AR 75 19 FE Uk BR =X 19,233 10,573
Interest arising from receivables from  FEYGE LRI
guarantee payments EENFE 8,500 —
28,591 10,768
Trade receivables g 5 EIE @) 275,458 226,637
Down payments for investments REENR (b) 74,850 74,850
Deposit and other receivables, HRBERENZER
net of impairment allowances Hib W IR (©) 155,599 24,048
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BERs T R I8 2,734 2,734
508,641 328,269
Prepayments to a related party AT —BEHS
TR IR (@) — 6,107
Deferred expenses EIERFEX 1,357 5,964
Prepayment for re-guarantee fees BN ERE - 903
Mortgage assets KIFEE 3,561 443
Others Hith 5,011 3,262
Total HEt 518,570 344,948
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(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (a) &5 EWFEIEIRE 7

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables (net of allowances for doubtful debts),
based on the guarantee income recognition date or advance
payment date, is as follows:

BERSHKR - BEREARE
B S AERRA KA e
5 BEZRRREGIRRR
BR)RRERDMAT

31 December

Note

ME  R-E—t#E

31 December
2017 2016
RIE—RE

+=-A=+—RA t=A=+—-AH

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARBTFT

Within 1 month 18 B R 1,458 1,506

Over 1 month but less than 118 A U L{EFBE3{E A

3 months 1,455 5,860

Over 3 months but less than 1 year 3188 LA E{ERBB1F 78,125 93,278

More than 1 year 1FEBE 207,238 137,504

Total st 288,276 238,148

Less:allowances for doubtful debts & : BRI & (ii) (12,818) (11,511)

Total s 275,458 226,637
(i)  Receivables from guarantee payments () EWELTIERIT 5

Receivables from guarantee payments represented
payments made by the Group to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurred because the customers fail to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of
the corresponding debt instruments. Receivables from
guarantee payments were interest-bearing and the
Group holds certain collaterals over certain customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group did not dispose of receivables from guarantee
payments.

FE W W PR Y TR 3 H
REBEHAER U
MEERNZBA(HE
BADEZEFRERE
MHEREER T ENKRRE
NEEEMEENIE
Ko BUENERAR
REERE BXEH
HUETEFIEAESET
i -

BE-ZT-—tF+=A
=+—-BLEFE  KE
B 36 S R WGE R
RIS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Cont'd) (@) BEZEWKERE ST
(&)
(i)  Trade receivables that are impaired () igﬁﬂg%ﬁﬁ 5K
. . A
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other > "

=] /=_: 18 W
receivables are recorded using an allowance account iégg\gﬁgé%?
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the ,;E ﬁ?é:li\;g%ﬁ;w;f

amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is xC o ke
g 7 8 W B A B 3KOR

written off against debtors directly (see Note 1(j)).

EZBRT @ 2B ERE
BEEEARWIR S
Hiss (2 BMEE1() °

R-ZZE-—tH+=A
=+—B  AEEEW
EHNERNIRARS
35,560,000 st (=& —7%
F: AR ¥31,765,000
TT)WEE B EBRE
18 1) 3 15 1 Wi 0 3R B 1
BMBR#ENEFRE
fEHBHE  MEERE
AEZERWFHIARY
HERBRWE - Hit
FRREZEREREE

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s debtors of
RMB35,560,000 (2016: RMB31,765,000) of receivables
from guarantee payments were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers or other parties that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that
the receivables are not expected to be fully recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for the doubtful
debts were recognised as follows:

HBEWT -

Note 2017 2016

MIEE —E—tf —E-NE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARET T

At 1 January m—HB—H 11,511 12,797
Charged B 5(a) 1,307 3,972
Written off %85 — (3,278)
Disposal FAHE — (1,980)
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H 12,818 11,511
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(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Cont’d)

(i) Trade receivables that are not impaired

(a)

31 December

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

B S RBWKERRS T

(#)

(i) RBEEFEZEWK

I

31 December

2017 2016
RZF—EF R=F-—RF
+=A=+-B t=A=+-H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREFT AR®ETT

Neither past due nor impaired B SR H S SR (B 4,226 3,484
Less than 3 months past due BT E3EA 2,013 8,016
More than 3 months but less BIHRERB 3 1E A

than 1 year past due BFRE1E 73,056 84,987
More than 1 year HiE1F 173,421 109,896
Total Bat 252,716 206,383

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent default records.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers of whom the
Group has continuously monitored their credit status.
Based on the credit assessment, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and these balances are pledged
by certain assets of these customers. Therefore, the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

(b) Down payments for investments

Down payments for investments represented the down
payments for the acquisition projects that the Group is
conducting.

(b)

Bk 42360 1A 7 S R Y PR WAURR TR
RN ETHENCENE

FEE -

3B H B 30 S R (B Y FE UK TR
HAKE-EREEEHRFE
RANBSELEFHEE - R
BEENE  HMEEERYL
EEANE - BERBESHREZX
EEFNETEEFERER
HEEERRBANZEREH
EHEMRERRE - Bt - &
BAERDRERT2EYE -

REBNRK

REBNREAKEIELET

HWIBTEE B -

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (JRF5E1EH + ZRIKUA BEFTF)

(c) Deposit and other receivables, net of impairment (c)
allowances

MERBERENRERAE
ftb P& WK IR

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

RIE—tE RIZT—RE

+ZRA=+—8 t=A=1t—H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T AR®ET T

Deposit and other receivables Ze Rk HMEKRRIE 161,699 30,148
Less: allowances for other receivables B B IEEE (6,100) (6,100)
155,599 24,048

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s other
receivables of RMB6,100,000 were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to debtors that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that the receivables are not expected
to be recovered. Consequently, full specific allowances
for the doubtful debts were recognised. Based on the
management’s assessment as at 31 December 2017, there
were no changes in the allowances for other receivables as
at 31 December 2017.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

R-ZBE-—tFR-Z—RF
tZA=1+—H ' AEEA¥
A K% 6,100,000 JT Ky H i f&
WORRTE R E A B BRE © 18
Bl BB FE LUK TR EE 1 3R B DR R
HNEBARR  MEEEF
hZERRFIRAYE LR
B - Bt - BRI EEERA
EEE - REEEER=Z
—tHF+ZA=+—-HHNME
i BEZE-tH+=A
=t+—B  BfttBRFRAE
BIEZE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

(d) Prepayments to a related party

On 6 April 2012, Success Guarantee entered into an
agreement with Foshan Success Finance Group Co., Ltd.
(“Foshan Finance”). On 12 October 2012, Guangdong
Success Asset Management Company Limited (“Success
Asset”) entered into a tripartite agreement with Foshan
Finance and a third party, who is a constructor. These
agreements are related to acquisition of properties from
Foshan Finance by Success Guarantee and Success Asset
at a total consideration of RMB54,300,000. The properties
are floors of a commercial building located in Foshan,
the PRC, and will be held for own use by the Group.
According to the agreements, Foshan Finance acts as the
representative to lead the whole tender and development
process, while the construction of the commercial building
is subcontracted to the constructor by Foshan Finance.
The properties will be transferred to the Group upon the
expected date of completion of the construction in 2016.
On 21 October 2013, Success Guarantee entered into
a supplementary agreement with Foshan Finance, and
Success Asset entered into a’ supplementary tripartite
agreement with Foshan Finance and the constructor. On
23 October 2013, the prepayments of RMB20,893,000 and
RMB27,300,000 was refunded to Success Guarantee and
Success Asset, respectively. Prepayments of RMB6,107,000
from Success Guarantee was 3.5% of the costs of the land
use rights of RMB174,480,000, which were paid by Foshan
Finance to the relevant governmental bureau for and on
behalf of and attributable to Success Guarantee.

d XNTF—RBEBLNEN

FIE

RZBE——FWmAKB » &KX
EREGBLTEXSMEES
FRAT( LS )ET S —17
W& RZE—Z-F+A+=
H BREXEEEEBEERLD
AEREEDEGLESRK
—BE=H(BERER)FIL—
B=H1E - ZEREERRK
ERREREEUEAREBAR
554,300,000 7T &) 3 LU & &l
WEEYXER - BREWEE—
E AP E LT EET
WEEREE - FHAEERFE
BA - REZEHE flLd
REEEREK  BEEERE
MBZBRE  BfLSmER
EEEFNERIEIETE
£ - BRAVESR-_T—X
FHEHERTIBHERT
rEE -R-ZZE—=%+A
—+—8  £EREREHFLE
BT —ExEHE ME
REEEBLERNERED
RN —ER=AE - R=
Z—=%+A=-+=80" BN
FIE A R #20,893,000 7T &
A R #27.300,000T & % 3l
BETFERERREREE -
REEXERPVBNREAR
#£6,107,000 jt & + i Fi #E
AR A R # 174,480,000 7T B9
35% NHHFBLEMRARE
FRIE AR [0 18 BE BURT RS S 3 3
FEBNERIER -

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(d) Prepayments to a related party (Cont’a)

On 25 January 2017, to increase the efficiency of the
construction and development of the properties, Success
Guarantee entered into an agreement with seven entities,
which are related parties to the Group. Pursuant to the
agreement, the eight parties agreed to establish a company
in the PRC and transfer their respective interests in the
above properties to the newly set up company. On 9
February 2017, the eight parties established Foshan
Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management Company Limited
(“Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management”). Pursuant to
the Article of Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management,
Success Guarantee holds 3.5% shares of Shengshi Junen
Enterprise Management, and contributed a 3.5% interest
in the properties as the registered capital of Shengshi
Junen Enterprise Management. The value of the properties
assessed in January 2017 was RMB225,917,000 (including
value of land use rights of RMB195,465,000 and value
of construction in process of RMB30,452,000). Success
Guarantee initially recognised an available-for-sale financial
asset at an amount of RMB7,907,000, 3.5% of the value of
the properties. The difference between the 3.5% shares of
land use rights and the prepayment of RMB6,107,000 was
recognised as gain from disposal of non-current assets
for RMB734,000. The 3.5% of the value of construction
in process was recognised as capital reserve and non-
controlling interests amounting to RMB1,054,000 and
RMB11,000, respectively, as waiver of debts from related
parties.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

(d)

XN F-—RBBONEN

FRIH ()

R-—Z—tHF—B=+FHA "
AREEEYENERKRAR
ME ERERELIER
(BB AREEMNBEE S )L
W&k RIBEZWBE > \KRF]
HFRBEPBRILI—FRA
A BEEFER LMY E
FHREZEBEHRILND
BeRZEBE—tHE=-ANAB -
NRETHF R IL Bt &
E#(EEREAMRAT (TR
EENEEE ) RIBRHT
ERNEEENATER
EREREERUEEESE
BEE3S%MIRD > EEBEY
¥35% WERTEFEABRNY
ERLEEENIMER -8
BYER=—Z—tE— AT
fH{E A AR ¥ 225,917,000 7T
(BELEAENERERA
E#195,465,000 T R EE T
EHEEA AR 30,452,000
) ERERVBERY
HEEEHMEESHEAAR
®£7,907,000t: HE RN HE
Y E£BERMNI35% ° Tihff
FEMN3s% BEMNREAR
#6,107,000 7T 2 fES H9 = 55 78
REEEFRBEENWS
AR #734,0007T - B A
BreRER TEIREE
ER35NERBELRFEER
FERER DHAARYE
1,054,000 7t % A R # 11,000
=



B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(d) Prepayments to a related party (Cont’d) (d ZFF—BEBLHNEN
MIE (&)

On 14 November 2017, all shareholders of Shengshi Junen RZE—ttHF+—A+

Enterprise Management paid up capital of RMB4,536,000 H RUEEECESEMAT

by cash. Success Guarantee contributed a 3.5% interest ERRUBEHERETAR

and paid up RMB159,000. At 31 December 2017, the " 4,536,000 7 © £ B 1B R A

carrying amount of the available-for-sale financial asset MR AB3.5% @ BABRAA

was RMB8,066,000, 3.5% of the value of Shengshi Junen FR#5159,00070 - R=ZE—+t

Enterprise Management. F+=-A=+—HB  AHHE

TREENREHEAARY

8,066,000 T * BARER K
XEBEEN35% °

31 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016
FifEE RIFE—t&E R-ZE-—REF
+=—A=+—RA t=A=+—-AH

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTF T ARBT T

Factoring receivable {RIZ R FRIE 91,950 91,950
Interest receivable from factoring RIBFE N FRIB R RIS

receivable 4,035 1,394

95,985 93,344

Less: allowances for factoring receivable & : /R EUFIBEE (a)/(b) (1,136) (1,075)

94,849 92,269
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDHT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of BERSHR > REPVANEH
factoring receivable, based on the maturity date in contracts, HHEIFHE - RIEBEWFIERER
is as follows: BT :

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RIFE—t&E RZZE-—REF
+-—A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET T ARETT

Within 1 month 1{E B R 320 1,264
Over 1 month but less than 3 months 1{8 B L E{ETBBIEA 22,332 10,680
Over 3 months but less than 1 year SEALLLEEBRBBE1F 72,188 61,400
More than 1 year 15k 1,145 20,000
Total wast 95,985 93,344
Less: allowances for factoring receivable & : {RIEfEUNFRIB B & (1,136) (1,075)
Total @t 94,849 92,269
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(b) Impairment of factoring receivable

Impairment losses in respect of factoring receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against debtors
directly (see Note 1())).

Consequently, an allowance of impairment losses for

(b) REERWFIERE

RIZEBGRIRA R ER 1B ER A
BERARR  BRIEAEEER
TRUTREWEBREFR - %
BRT  ZREBEEEER
i U B R o i 8 (FB 2 B BfY &E
10) °

At - FRFREEWRIRTE

factoring receivable during the year was recognised as RREBERENT :
follows:

Note 2017 2016
Fit=E —F—+t& —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
At 1 January n—A—H 1,075 237
Charged kR 5(a) 61 838
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 1,136 1,075

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s debtors of
RMB91,950,000 (31 December 2016: RMB91,950,000)
of factoring receivable were collectively determined to be
impaired.

RZE—tF+ZA=+—
B AEBRBEWTIEA
FE # 91,950,000 Tt (=& — /N
FE+ZHA=+—H:  AR#¥
91,950,000 7t) IEE A HE
B °

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (JRF5E1EH + ZRIKUA BEFTF)

31 December 31 December
Note 2017 2016
BEE RIF—t&E RZZT-—RF
+ZRA=+—HB +=A=+-—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREEFRT ARBT R
Amount due from lessees FEWERR A FRIE 203,039 176,666
Less: unearned finance income i : RERFERA (24,665) (9,281)
178,374 167,385
Less: allowances for finance lease i : Bi&H S EUWFIERE (a)/(b)
receivable (2,191) (1,957)
176,183 165,428
(a) The table below analyses the Group’s finance (@) TROWMHRIKEHRIZE
lease receivable by relevant maturity grouping at BEHARNE T MNEEER
the end of the reporting period: mEHEEWRRIE
2017 2016
—F—tf —E-REF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
REEE SKEAE JFEHEE SEEE
MIRRE MIERE  FERE KEES

Overdue BIHR 466 466 25,586 25,586
Within 1 year —F R 57,212 60,233 123,844 132,464
—F#&E

After 1 year but within 5 years REER 120,696 142,340 17,955 18,616
Total et 178,374 203,039 167,385 176,666
Impairment allowances: WAERE :

collectively assessed mE TG (2,191) (2,191) (1,957) (1,957)
Carrying amount of finance R EHE UK

lease receivable IHAREE 176,183 200,848 165,428 174,709
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 E1558 » ZRIUA RHS)R)

15 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (cont’d) 15 FEHERWUAIE#®)
(b) Impairment allowances charged for finance lease (b) FELEMRERKRENR
receivable AERE
Note 2017 2016
FiEE —E—tf —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT AR¥ET T
At 1 January m—B—H 1,957 2,029
Charged/(written back) B/ (=) 5(a) 234 (72)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2,191 1,957
(c) An analysis of the overdue finance lease (c) EamEHERKIENS
receivable is as follows: MOT :
2017 2016
I5-tE ZE-5E
Overdue Overdue
over3 over3
Overdue months Overdue months
within but within within 3 but within
3 months 1year  Over1year Total months fyear  Overlyear Total
HH=fEA A=A
arR HER BETR DN}
=R rR-£ —E)E @it =faR TR-F —-F)E @it
Finance lease receivables HERERNTE = = 466 466 18,080 7,506 = 25,586

2017 Annual Report £ £ 3§ & 159
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of the

LTS REB A EEHE QR

Group. 15 o
Proportion of ownership interest
Place and date Group’s
of incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company establishment Fully paid up capital interest  Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
Rer 3 4ol
AL/ AEEH  mRNE AKELF
AR BRI R A CHREx ERER WA #E IEXH
Double Chance Developments Limited BvI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(‘Double Chance’) 8 February 2012 USD1 each REZR
ABRLHE 1REREE
“E-Z#-ANR 1E7RHB
Yes Success Limited (“Yes Success’) BvI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
3 June 2015 USD1 each REZR
ARELHE 1RERAEE
“Z2-n5RA=H 1R
China Success Capital Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(“Success Capital”) 29 June 2016 USD1 each REER
ABRLHE 1REREE
“E-~EABZTRA 1ETMRA
China Success Finance Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(“Success Finance”) 18 November 2011 HKD1 each REZR
HERHERERERAR (ERER]) “E--£+-A1/NR 10,000 RERER
1ETHRA
China Success Capital (HK) Limited Hong Kong - 100% - 100%  Provision of asset
(“Success Capital (HK)") 1 August 2016 management and
HESRBR(ER)ERAT 3 merger services
(HE8E(FR))) “Z-RENA-R outside the PRC
ReERMHEEER
RAHHHRT
Guangdong Success Asset Management The PRC RMB170,270,000 99.27% - 99.27%  Provision of asset
Company Limited (“Success Asset’) 23 June 2004 N management and
EREHEEERARLA(EREE)) HE 170,270,000 financial consultancy
“ZEZMERA-T=ZA services in the PRC
RELER
Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee The PRC RMB330,000,000 99.27% o 100%  Provision of financial
Company Limited (“Success Guarantee”) 26 December 1996 ARE guarantee services
EREMBEERARDR(RHERD HE 330,000,000 in the PRC

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place and date Group's
of incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company establishment Fully paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
PR b
AL/ AEEM  mANE AKELF
A HAR %R AE CHRES ERER ) BE  IEXH
Shenzhen Success Financial Leasing Company Limited The PRC USD28,000,000 100% — 100%  Provision of financial
(“Success Financial Leasing”) 6 June 2014 28,000,000% 7 leasing services
R EARAREARDA 48 inthe PRC
(EARAEE) ZF-BEAAAE EHERERARERS
Shenzhen Success Equity Investment Fund The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% — 100%  Equity investment
Management Limited (“Success Equity Fund’) 6 September 2014 ARE in the PRC
RSHREREESERERAR e 15,000,000 EPEETRERE
(ERREES ) “E2-MEAASA
Shenzhen Success Number One Equity Investment The PRC RMB194,000,000 100% - 100%  Equity investment
Fund Limited Partnership (‘Success Fund’) 14 January 2015 ARE in the PRC
MInRH-SREREESPO(BREY) el 194,000,000 7 EHEETRERE
([&mES)) “E-1%-A1MA
Shenzhen Qianhai Success Housing Wealth Management The PRC RMBG61,000,000 100% i 100%  Provision of real estate
Company Limited (“Qianhai Success Housing’) 8 July 2015 ARH financial services
M SRR ERN EERARLT e 61,000,007 in the PRC
(asREEE ) “Z-R%tANR ErERMELE
BHERH
Foshan Success Financial Services Outsouring Limited The PRC RMB30,000,000 60% - 60%  Provision of real estate
(“Success Financial Services”) 15 Qctober 2015 ARE financial services
RUTEREREBNIERAR GilE] 30,000,000 in the PRC
(%) “Z-1ft+ATEA EHERMAENE
Bt
Guangzhou Hengyue Number Six Investment The PRC RMB45,025,000 99.34% - 100%  Equity investment
Limited Partnership (‘Hengyue Number Six”) 23 February 2017 ARE inthe PRC
BNEE EREABLE(BRAR) (RS e 45,025,000 7t EHEETRERE
“E2-t§¥ZRZt=H
Foshan Guangda Asset Management Company The PRC RMB25,000,000 99.27% - 100%  Provision of asset
Limited (‘Guangda Asset’) 27 April 2017 ARE management services
BLTEEEEERERAR(REEE)) GilE] 25,000,000 in the PRC
“E-tEMA= LA EHERMEEERRY
Foshan Zaisheng Number One Enterprise The PRC RMB23,000,000 99.27% - 100%  Provision of enterprise
Management Counsultancy Limited Partnership 12 June 2017 ARE management
(“Zaisheng Number One”) el 23,000,000 consultancy
BURBE-ROEERZATO(BREB)(BE-%) —T-tEXB+ZR services in the PRC
ERERMEEER
BRIk
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

The following list contains the particulars of the associates, which LXTEH%?EEE? 3N E’J%ﬂi
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not ZHENT A LT ATIERE
available: &'?%HBLH\ miZHRIE :
Proportion of
ownership interest
Form of Place of Group’s
business incorporation Fully paid effective Heldbya Principal
Name of associate structure and operation up capital interest subsidiary  activity
PRl
AR AEEN  BWELR

NSRS [FEEY 3N SEME WREX BEWED BE  IEXH

Foshan Chancheng Success  Incorporated The PRC RMB250,000,000 27.08% 27.28%  Micro credit
Micro Credit Co., Ltd. Eaiiza HE] ARH financing
(“Success Credit”) 250,000,000 7T NEEERE

LB RN NEEH
BRAR(TERER])

Guangzhou Hengsheng Incorporated The PRC RMB23,900,000 40% 40%  Equity Fund
Fund Management Co., Ltd. A H AR (Note 1) Management
(“Guangzhou Hengsheng’”) 23,900,000 7t (RgaE1) REESER

ENESESERERAR"

(MEMERD

Guangzhou Chenghuijiin Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 32% 32%  Investment
Investment Management Partnership H N Management
Limited Partnership BRE%E%E 10,000,000 7¢ (Note 2)
(“Guangzhou Chenghuijin”) REERE

ENRESREER (Kt&E2)
RBLE(EREH)

(MEMRES])

Guangzhou Rongdacheng Incorporated The PRC RMB8,000,000 30% 30% Information
Information Technology R l1ZAA HE AR (Note 3) Technology
Service Co., Ltd. 8,000,000 7T (M&E3) 5B R
(“Guangzhou
Rongdacheng”)

BINRE R 5 BRI AR TS
BRAR([EMEER])

Foshan Fozhiying Incorporated The PRC — 30% 30%  Investment
Industrial Investment ARz H (Note 4) consultancy
Co.Ltd. (“Fozhiying”) (KizE4) REZA

BLUTHERERRE
BRAR(THER]
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The

official names of the entities are in Chinese.

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Together with two entities, Success Fund established Hengsheng
Fund on 23 November 2015. Success Fund had fully paid up its
subscribed capital of RMB20,000,000, which accounted for 40%
of the total subscribed capital. In 2017, Xizang Xuekunfushen
Investment Co.Ltd., one of its shareholders, has paid up
RMB3,900,000 of its subscribed capital.

Together with three partners, Success Fund entered into a
partnership agreement and established Guangzhou Chenghuijin
as a general partner on 1 February 2016. Investment in
Guangzhou Chenghuijin enables the Group to have exposure to
electronic commerce platform on bulk commodity.

Together with two entities and two individuals, Success Fund
established Guangzhou Rongdacheng on 20 July 2016. Success
Fund had fully paid up its subscribed capital of RMB3,000,000,
which accounted for 30% of the total subscribed capital.

Together with two entities, Success Fund established Fozhiying
on 25 August 2016. Success Fund had subscribed capital of
RMB2,400,000, which accounted for 30% of the total subscribed
capital.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

© AXBREMSE - REARW
EHEBBPX -

M1 =—ZT-—FAFE+—A=+=8"

HE - ERESCHEERA
B A E# 20,000,000 7T @ 1542
HERAER40% - R=F—+t
F > HF-—ERRABISHE
HIREERATESEHBRAEA
E#5 3,900,000 7T °

a2 Z—ZZTE—R"E-HA—HB ' &EKE
SIEASBEBAE=-FEE
BT BIEI R EM
RES - REMNRESHRE
FEAREEFAKRTERE

[EEESRE S
M3 —ZE-—A<"FLtA=+H &N
ESHEMREERMABEARK

VEMBER - ERESEH
EEFHH AR 3,000,000
JC 0 (hERAAZERY 30% °

M4 =—ZFE—R"ENAZ=t+HB &
RESHEMREELA LG E
B-ERESTCRABARKE
2,400,000 7T * 1 2 S 42 KA #Y

30% e
LA EE QR EAERER
REMBRENRK -

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(@ Summarised financial information of the Success Credit
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
below:

@ TXREREZBREQATAERE
RNV BERHE - HEHE
SR AV = R AF H 2 B 4R
BMBREMEREENR

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RIE—tHE RZZE—RF
+-A=+—HBH+=A=t+—H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR®ET T
Gross amounts of the associate’s BE LR
Current assets RBEE 313,984 366,345
Non-current assets FREERE 42,353 41,645
Current liabilities ik =R (72,227) (124,601)
Equity % 284,110 283,389
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Revenue Yz 23,965 41,268
Expenses b3 (23,243) (41,896)
Total comprehensive income ZHIRALEE 722 (628)

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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Summarised financial information of the Success Credit () TXREEEMZEAIERE
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in MHBMBERSE  HEemg
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts FTBCRE 2/ AR B B4R
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed EUBREMEREELR:
below: (Cont’d) (#&
Note 2017 2016
izt —F—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®BFT AR®ETT

Reconciled to the Group’s interests B2 BRI & 1\ &)

in the associate By £
Gross amounts of net assets of HBENTERE

the associate EEAE 284,110 283,389
Group’s effective interest AEBENERER 27.08% 27.01%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBREEHE AT

the associate EEFE 76,939 76,535
Non-controlling interests in the net REE N FEEFEF

assets of the associate HIFEIE IR R 2 566 773
Goodwill (GRS 4,232 4,232
Impairment on cost BARE 5(a) (5,855) —
Carrying amount in the mEMBERE

consolidated financial statements  FrE{BREE 75,882 81,540
18.18% interest in Success Credit was acquired by Success MNEKEFTH18.18% fER I A=
Guarantee at totaling consideration of RMB37,827,000 on E-——_F+ A+ \BHEEKER
18 December 2012, of which 9.09% was acquired from a REKE AR ¥ 37,827,000 Tt I
related party. Revenue and profit for the period ended 31 B Hh o 09% BB — BB S -
December 2017 represented the income of Success Credit BE-_E—+tF#+=-BA=+—H1I1t
since the date of acquisition. HEMWK S R EREERETBE K

FEASEG) 10 N
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Summarised financial information of the Success Credit
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
below: (Cont’d)

On 13 December 2013, the board of shareholders of Success
Credit approved to capitalise retained earnings and payables
of RMB32,000,000 and RMB18,000,000, respectively, as
paid-in capital. Success Guarantee acquired capitalised
payables of RMB3,272,000 (represent dilutive effect of 1.5%
interest in the associate held by Success Guarantee) at a
consideration of RMB3,272,000 and acquired 0.91% interest
in the associate at a consideration of RMB2,275,000 from
a shareholder of the associate. The diluted interest in the
associate of 0.75% was acquired from a related party. On
23 December 2013, the registered and paid-in share capital
of Success Credit increased from RMB200,000,000 to
RMB250,000,000, and the proportion of ownership interest
in the associate held by Success Guarantee increased to
19.09%.

On 8 July 2014, Foshan Municipal People’s Government
Finance Bureau approved the transfer of 3.64% and 4.55%
of the equity interests in Success Credit from Ms. Feng
and Guangdong Xinmingzhu to Success Guarantee for
a consideration of RMB9,507,500 and RMB11,884,400,
respectively.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

TXREEEHEAAERE
RNV BERHE - HEHE
SR A= R AF H P92 B B4R
BB ERE AEARE AR
(&)

RZEBE—=Z=F+=ZA+=
H &EREXBRREHES
B RE BRI R EMAFFRIEA
R #32,000,000t & A B #
18,000,000 T E ARt B E &
BER - ERERUARY
3,272,000 7t Y X (B W g & 7=
1L FE{S R T8 A K ¥ 3,272,000
TEEEERERERAA
BFEREZ QAR WN1.5%E
=) LR LA K #2,275,000
THWRKE@EZE QAN —
ERRKREBEREE TN
091% 1z - B BN
ENR075% = TIE — &
BELTWRE - R —=F
+=ZA=+t=H ERERX
PEMEARERABARE
200,000,000 7T & & A K ¥
250,000,000 7t » T & R &R
TEEN NGO
Eb Bl 2 19.09% °

R-ZZE-—WELANH - #
W AR BUR B BB #HE S
Z + % & 5ROFT B Bk 0] & K IR
R 2 Bl ¥ :E3.64% K& 4.55%
ERERRE REFHA
AR#9507,500 Rk ARHE
11,884,400 TT °
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Summarised financial information of the Success Credit
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
below: (Cont’d)

On 26 June 2017, Success Fund injected capital of
RMB45,000,000 into Success Asset, which accounted for
26.43% of the total subscribed capital of Success Asset.
After the injection, non-controlling share of Success Asset
was changed from 1% to 0.73% and the Group’s effective
interest in Success Credit was changed from 27.01% to
27.08%.

As at 31 December 2017, the proportion of ownership
interest in Success Credit held by Success Guarantee was
27.28%. Success Guarantee has significant influence in
Success Credit by appointing 3 of 9 representatives in the
board of directors.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in Success
Credit estimated using the value in use method was lower
than the total carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
Success Credit. As a result, an impairment of RMB5,855,000
was recognised for interest in Success Credit as at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil). The value in
use was determined using dividend discount model under
income approach based on cash flow projections of Success
Credit. A terminal growth rate of 3% was applied. A cost of
equity of 15.80% was used as the discount rate in the value
in use calculations.

TXREEEHLEARAERE
RNV BERHE - HEHE
SR AV = B2 AF H 2 B 4R
BYBHE TEREELR
(&)

RZZB—+FEXRXBZ+H "
EREEOERNEETEA
E %5 45,000,000 7T * 15 & &
EEARHIRAE26.43% °
TEB EREEFERRK
PHE1%E50.73% @ TAE
BRERERNERERZH
27.01% & 527.08% °

R=ZB—+tFE+=-A=+-—
B ERERSENEXER
FrE e LE 5] B 27.28% ©
ERERBBEZEIRZ(H
ZIRERMAESEMHER
ERELEASTE -

AEBMFEREFERZNT
WEsRERAERABER AN
i BRAEBFEERNER
FERMIRMAE - Fit - BR=
E—+HE+A=+—HHKN
EREFNEREDREAR
#£5,855,000 T(= & — R~ F
+ZRAR=+—H: &) - FH
BEDIFEARAEE THRE
BRI A ERERERW
HEeEREFENEE - kA
REI% CERA - RERK
15.80% & A{EET B AEE
HIBRIR R o

FERE
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(b) Aggregate information of associates that are not individually (b) ERIFEKRHEARNGFREE
material &

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RIE—t&E R-ZT—RE
+-—A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ET T ARETT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually

immaterial associates in the RE ISR ER P ER
consolidated financial statements FERBENTNERELALE 25,584 25,979
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBE DS

share of those associates ZEBE N TR
Loss from operations REEE (395) (221)
Other comprehensive income Hig 2w A = =
Total comprehensive income ZHEUYALRZE (395) (221)

168 FEHEHER (ER) ARAT
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Office
Motor and other Total
vehicles equipment equipment
/N4
RE Hithzh R E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥ETFT AR®TT
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 R-—B—~&E—HB—H 3,392 2,582 5,974
Additions NE 829 459 1,288
Disposal BB — (154) (154)
At 31 December 2016 and RIE—RF
1 January 2017 +=A=+—H
rK=ZZE—+%—HF—H 4,221 2,887 7,108
Exchange adjustments b 5302 (94) (36) (130)
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+tF
+=-A=+—H 4,127 2,851 6,978
Accumulated depreciation HEtinE
At 1 January 2016 R-—Z—~&E—HA—H (2,589) (1,077) (3,666)
Charge for the year FAWE (231) (467) (698)
Written back on disposal S E = 146 146
At 31 December 2016 and RIE—RF
1 January 2017 +=A=+—8H
BE=—E—+t&—H—H (2,820) (1,398) (4,218)
Charge for the year FAWE (379) (487) (866)
Exchange adjustments R 9 9 18
At 31 December 2017 RIE—tF
+=A=+—8H (3,190) (1,876) (5,066)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-A=+—H 937 975 1,912
At 31 December 2016 RZE—REF
+=HA=+-—H 1,401 1,489 2,890

FERE
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

19 GEMBARRRAREH

170

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) #REBHAR R 2= R BD HI L
financial position represents: IHIE ¢
Note 2017 2016
Bt 5 —E—tF —E—RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARBT T
At 1 January R—AB—H 10,063 5,708
Provision for PRC income tax FAPEIMESHREE
for the year 6(a) 20,130 13,683
PRC income tax paid SR E 5B (17,291) (9,328)
At 31 December RT+=—A=+—H 12,902 10,063
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERFAELEHEEERA
&
A ’ A ':‘A ol
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ZJ\;@ Emg:‘ 'ﬁ‘ﬂ%;({gﬁf?g
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial A LLfﬁ RAR /(B4
- : : ER D REEIT :
position and the movements during the year are as follows:
Impairment
Provision  allowances
of financial ~ for trade Share of Re-
Deferred  guarantee  and other Accrued  profitofan Government Interest  guarantee
income losses receivables  expenses  associate grants  receivables fee Total
g5 R4t
HEER  BERE px:
EEGN  BREG O HERE  BREX BRELEEN  HREE  BRNE  NERE st
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR  AREFR ARETT ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZB-RF
-B-A 1,783 (3,157) 5,506 964 2,782) (6,459 (250) (56) (4.451)
Credited/(charged)to 3T A/(H18)
profitor loss b 209 (905) (345) (331) 4 1924 110 - 705
At31 December 2016and  W=B-AE
1 January 2017 tZB=1-A
R=B-t%
-R-A 1,992 (4,082 5,161 633 2739 (4,535) (140) (56) (3,746)
Credited/{charged) to HA/(H8)
profit or loss B 24 (979 1,864 9 (49) 2,579 96 - 3438
At31December 2017 MZE-tE
t2p=1-1 2016 (5,041) 7025 53 (2,789) (1,956) (44) (56) (308)

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited
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(d)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (c) HEMBRRRNEER
financial position
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RIFE—t&E RIZE—RE
+ZRA=+—H t=A=+—*H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T ARET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised FEMBEARR R
in the consolidated statement of HRAELERIE
financial position EEFE 1,105 1,135
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in  #R& BRI 3R
the consolidated statement of R AIELER IR
financial position BEFHE (1,413) (4,881)
(308) (8,746)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
1(0), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB5,540,000 (2016: RMB2,391,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses of RMB28,901,000 (2016:
RMB11,649,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
remaining unused tax losses were mainly from Success
Capital (HK), Success Equity Fund and Success Financial
Services and do not expire under current tax legislation.

(d) RERHELEHRAEE

RIEFIEE 1(0) FREE FTBUR -
AEEREFHREBEAR
#£5,540,0000(= & —
F: AR %2,391,0007T) &
BRPWELEHIEEERARY
28,901,000 Tt (= Z — R F :
AR#11,649,000T) ' RE
EHBEFRKEHEREE R
A EEHER A A LUK SE B B AV R
REEFFEF - R THKRE A
BHESBYREPERE(F
B) SERREEERERS
R - ARIBIVITHIE AR W EE
e

FERE
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 0 REMBRRARETANAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont'a) (4#)
(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) RERWELHEERE

At 31 December 2017, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounted to
RMB218,895,000 (2016: RMB166,062,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB21,890,000 (2016: RMB16,606,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be

RZE—tHF+ZRB=+—
H BEPEMEBARNRD
BafEENEEEZEAA
FE# 218,895,000t (=&
—"F . AR #166,062,000

payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the TT) e MARBRDIRZERE

Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future (Note 6(b)(iv)).

20 LIABILITIES FROM GUARANTEES

i N B 5 £ OB TR R BRI SIE
Bi 18 & 8 A K 21,890,000
T(ZFE-REFE: ARY
16,606,000 7T ) *

TTERRA R

AT EME D RAR B
FERZERENN A AR RKAE
TEDIKKRE C M (=

6(b)(iv)) °

20 H#IREERE

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

RIFE—tE RZZ-—RE

+-A=+—-RA t=A=+—-AH

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Deferred income IEIFEWA 8,037 7,969
Provision of guarantee losses RREBRE 768 1,210
8,805 9,179

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited
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Customer pledged deposits received represent deposits received
from customers as collateral security for the financial guarantees
issued by the Group. These deposits will be refunded to the
customers upon expiry of the corresponding guarantee contracts.
According to the contract, these deposits are expected to be
settled within one year.

EREFEFERFRIEZEGDRF WEL
MRES  ERAEERLRER
ROE R @ - ZERBSAENEE
BERENERRRETEF - RI5
B ZERBEEN—FRES

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
R-E—t&E RH=ZT—RE
+Z-RA=+—H t=A=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Borrowings from RETHALHERK
— Third parties —%= 5,000 —
Interest payable to A THIALHFER
- Third parties =EI= 231 =
Total BeEt 5,231 —

31 December 31 December

T E AR HMENARE

Accruals and other payables

2017 2016

RIE—t&E RZE—RE

MizF +ZA=+—8 t=—A=+-—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

48,210 9,871

()  Accruals and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year and are repayable on demand.

() EAERREMEMNRERS

BR—FR&EE  LREREA

BNRFEIE -

FERE
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Receipts in advance are related to contracts that have not been
effective, and the balance at the reporting date are analysed as

ARREEEHRERNENEE
RIRE BHNERRDMUT :

follows:
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RIE—tE RIZT—RE
+=ZA=+—H +=B=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Guarantee customers BREF 7 35
Consultancy customers BREEF 3 1
Total et 7 36

At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

R=Z—tH+ZA=1t—H K
SEEEENHERESENT -

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
R-F—tH R=ZB—REF
+=-RA=+—H t=R=+—-H
Present Present
value of value of
the Total the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RREE HREE FEEE HEEE
HERE HEAR FERE  ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR
Within 1 year —FR 164 170 169 174
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZERMER 154 170 159 175
After 2 years but within 5 years RFZERAFR 188 254 359 437
506 594 687 786
Less: total future
interest expenses W KRR SR AR (88) (99)
Present value of lease obligations HHE&FRE 506 687

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 October
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby one director and 49
employees in the Group are invited, to take up options at HKD1
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

AKRABARZE—=F+A+NBEK
WMEBRRRE T BI([RE AR FERTED) - 1B
It REBWN—BREER49BESE
BB TEMNERENZER
ANENRH - SHERERTEE
ARBEARQT)—REEROEFR I
LR E2HEHE -

(a) BHOKKREADT :

follows:
Number of_ share options granted Contractual
RUERESE life of options
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Director Employees Total FERHER
BRHAH BERY BHA E= 3] #Et GHHIR
6 November 2013 30 June 2014 5 November 2023 500,000 4,500,000 5,000,000 10 years
“E-=F “E-MF b S 2 106
T—A7RA ~B=1H T—AEA
30 June 2016 5 November 2023 300,000 2,700,000 3,000,000 10 years
—E-RE —ECZE 105
~A=TH +-AEH
30 June 2018 5 November 2023 200,000 1,800,000 2,000,000 10 years
—E-N\E —EC-=E 105
~B=1H +—AEA
1,000,000 9,000,000 10,000,000
FE®RE
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

26 WUBR#ESTEUR I BER

TRANSACTIONS (cont'a) B3 5 @)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BREMNEE RMEFLS
prices of share options are as follows: TEEWNT :
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE TEE ERERE
Granted and outstanding at F£ ¥ & #% H1{B HKD1.90 7,488  HKD1.90 8,705
the beginning of the year  [# AR 21T
Forfeited during the year FRE R HKD1.90 (987) HKD1.90 (326)
Exercised during the year FRE T HKD1.90 —  HKD1.90 (891)
Granted and outstanding at FAR 2% H1{E HKD1.90 6,501 HKD1.90 7,488
the end of the year e AR EEAT
Exercisable at the end FARAITE HKD1.90 5,640 HKD1.90 5,880
of the year
Note: The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had an Mizx: MNZE—+tE+=A8

exercise price of HKD1.90 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.8 years (2016: 6.8 years).

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited

=+—-BHRITENE
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(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

€ BREHNIAEBBRR

54

X B R T W ER Y AR B B9
REEESRAREBREN
RABEE - IRHBRE
WAREBEAERREZERN
EEEXGE - BRENSH
FHEEAEZERN - —1BN
EEEACEERRRTRE
7

BRI A A BERER

Fair value (weighted average) per share option RETERESMERENAAEE HKD1.60

at measurement date (hNFEFST) 1.6078 7T

Share price R ER HKD2.68

2.68%8 T

Exercise price 1TEE HKD1.90

1.90# T

Expected volatility rate FEHAR IR 64.861%

Option life BREFH 10 years

105

Expected dividends TEER R 0%

Risk-free interest rate (based on 1 | P A1) 2= 1.874%
Exchange Fund Notes) (INEESES)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatilities
of the share prices of the comparable companies in recent
years around the date of valuation. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected term shown
above was taken to be the linearly interpolated yields of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no other market conditions associated with the share
options.

TREDR IR — RIS A {E B AL
FEALRDBARGOEBRNE
EREMEE - BEANEER
REANBE T REREEM
fhEt A REE -

| 3P R TR ER A PR A S R B
RWR BRI E BT BINE
ESESGURHRER -

BRERRE —ERBIERAR
e FTEATUWEREER H A
M2 B ERF I B E RIS IER
o BIRENZERENE T
SRR -

FERE
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(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEREBDHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBREEEE DI
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated AR AE6R 2 B E BRE N AR
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in EREEHRAN - REIREF
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual Ko AREMERIRERER D &
components of equity between the beginning and the end of BEFEEINT
the year are set out below:
The Company
O
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total

RA  ROEE  EAEE  NERE  ZHEE o
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETn AR%ETn  AR%TR
Note27(c)  Note27(d)  Note27(e)  Note 27(h)

Wiore)  WE270) ME279  HiE27(h)

Balance at 1 January 2016 R=E-~E
—f- Al 375 350865 8470 2034 (490 348473
Changes in equity for 2016 “ER-RENERED
Loss for the year EREE — - — (22,265) (22,265)
Exchange differences on translation Bt# & E i
of financial statement EENEREE = = = 25214 = 25214
Total comprehensive income 2EMAEE = = = 25214 (22,265) 2,949

Issuance of shares by placing BRRNEERTRA

of new shares 478 93,988 — — = 94,466
Dividends approved in respect ~ BtEH EERE

of the previous year - - - = (8,015) (8,015)
Shares issued under share RIEBRES 2R

option scheme [0l 8 2,619 (1,172) = — 1,455
Equity settled share-based DREEE AR

transactions AERNR S = = 1,160 = = 1,160

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=E-RE
+-A=+-BhLs 48 47472 8,467 45558  (65250) 440488

178 +FEHESHZER (ER) AR2T



(@) Movements in components of equity (Cont’d)

(b)
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(a) HEmEOINEE(E)

The Company
YN
Share Share Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
Bx BiiEE EXfifE SERE RitER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE  AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn ARETR AR%TR
Note 27(c)  Note27(d)  Note27(e)  Note 27(h)
WzE27(c) Mgk 27(d) HzE27(e) W&t 27(h)
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=B-t%
—-A-Bhie 4,241 447472 8,467 45,558 (65,250) 440,488
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LENEREE:
Gain for the year EpET - - - - 11,533 11,533
Exchange differences on translation B1#5& & ff
of financial statement EENERER = = = (27,962) = (27,962)
Total comprehensive income SAUAER = = = (27,962) 11,533 (16,429)
Dividends approved inrespect BN EERE
of the previous year = - i = (9,381) (9,381)
Equity settled share-based NRELENRD A
transactions HENRS = = 303 = = 393
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F&
+=A=+-BHLs 4 447472 8,860 17506 (63008 415071
Dividends (b) BE

The Company declared a final dividend of HKDO0.02 (2016:
HKDO0.02) per ordinary share for the year 2016 on 19 May
2017. There were a total of 530,805,000 ordinary shares
(2016: 474,914,000 ordinary shares) outstanding at the date
of announcement, giving a total final dividend amount of

HKD10,616,000 (2016: HKD9,498,000).

During the year

2017, an approximate amount of HKD10,616,000 (2016:
HKD12,003,000) was paid, leaving no dividend payable as at

31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil).

RABRZE—tEFERATN
HER-ZE—AERPRES

EERR0.02;8T(=ZF— X
F:0028x)  RELEHB
HA # 55 530,805,000 R & & IR
(=& — X F 474,914,000
BREBR)BITEN BR
Hi IR B 42 %8 £ 10,616,00058
7T(= & — /X : 9,498,000
Br) e RZFE—+F 8
10,616,00078 JT(= & — <
£ : 12,003,000 T ) WY FR 1B
BEXf MRZE—tE+=
B=+—B1EFIeREMR
B(ZE—RE+ZA=1+—
B:®])-
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(c) Share capital (c) B
() Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZETRA
2017 2016
“F-tE “E-RE
No. of Share Share No. of Share Share
shares capital capital shares capital capital
R #E B& Bx  RH#E B& B&
000 HKD'000 RMB’000 ‘000 HKD'000 RMB'000
TR FiEr AR%TR Th  TEn AR%TR
Authorised: iy
Ordinary shares of SREE.01ET
HKDO0.01 each YEBR 800,000 8,000 6,512 800,000 8,000 6,512
Ordinary shares, BRTRATLER:
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January M-A-H 530,805 5,308 4241 474914 4,749 3,755
Issuance of shares by~ EBRATERTRA
placing of new shares - — o 55,000 550 478
Sharesissued under  IRIEERET BIRT
share option scheme  fIRR 4 — = = 891 9 8
At 31 December iy - =y el 530,805 5,308 4241 530,805 5,308 4,041
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TE IR IEA A BRI E
dividends as declared from time to time and are TESRHKRE A
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RAEAATAELERT

Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company’s residual assets.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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(c) Share capital (Cont’a) (c)

(i)

(if)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Issuance of shares by placing of new shares ()
On 12 October 2016, the Company issued 55,000,000
additional ordinary shares of HKDO0.01 each at the
placing price of HKD2.00 per share. After offsetting the
placing cost of HKD1,100,000, net proceeds from the
share placing amounted to HKD108,900,000 (equivalent
to RMB94,466,000), out of which HKD550,000
(equivalent to RMB478,000) and HKD108,350,000
(equivalent to RMB93,988,000) were recorded in share
capital and share premium, respectively.

Shares issued under share option scheme (i)

No units (2016: 891,000 units) of share option were
exercised in 2017 (2016: at the exercise price of
HKD1.90). Further details of these options are set in
Note 26 to the financial statement.

MR (&)

ZBROBERTRG

R-ZB-RE+A+=
B AR AEBEE
5 IR2.0078 Tt % 17 5
4N55,000,000 B& B&
M E0.018 Tt X &
B o FAIK 88 BB A A
1,100,000/ t#% B &
RO FAEREFESH
#108,900,0008 T (48
& A A R #94,466,000
7T) » B # 550,000 7T
(18 E N A K% 478,000
7t )%108,350,000
BTHERARK
93,988,000 7t ) 7 Bl A BR
KRB EEAER

RIZIER T B RITH
B

—E—+F WEBR
FEENETHE(ZE—R
F 1 891,00017 B8 A% #E
BUETE THEEA
1.9087) - BEREZEE
REME—SHEBEARN
B IR MIEE 26 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(d) Share premium

(e)

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the Company’s share premium account are distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The increase of share premium is due to the issuance of
additional shares and the exercise of share options.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

the difference between the nominal value of share
capital of the Company and the paid-up capital of
Success Guarantee, plus the net assets acquired
from the inserting companies (holding companies of
Success Guarantee, including the Company, Double
Chance, Success Finance and Success Asset) pursuant
to a group reorganisation completed on 17 September
2012;

the portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payment in
Note 1(n) (ii);

the waiver of debts from related parties (Note 13(d)).

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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(9)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Surplus reserve

Surplus reserve comprises statutory surplus reserve and
discretionary surplus reserve.

The entities established in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit, as determined under the
China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (2006)
and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC (“MOF”), to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital, provided that the balance of statutory
surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

After making the appropriation to the statutory surplus
reserve, the Group may also appropriate its net profit to the
discretionary surplus reserve upon approval by shareholders.
Subject to the approval of shareholders, discretionary
surplus reserves may be used to make good previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital.

Regulatory reserve

According to the Interim Measures for the Administration of
Financial Guarantee Companies (“Interim Measures”) issued
at 8 March 2010 by the relevant government authorities
in the PRC, financial guarantee companies shall establish
unearned premium reserve equal to 50% of guarantee
premium recognised during the year, and indemnification
reserve of no less than 1% of the outstanding guarantee
balances undertaken by the entities established in the PRC.
The Group started to accrue the required amounts set by
relevant government authorities less the provision of financial
guarantee losses as regulatory reserve from 2011. According
to the details implementation guidance No. 149 issued by the
People’s Government of Guangdong Province on the Interim
Measures, the use of the aforementioned regulatory reserve
is subject to further guidance from the Financial Work Office
of People’s Government of Guangdong Province.

(f)

(9)

BErfEE

BB REEERBREER
ERBEHRHE

R B R B B R A HAR R
F910% (AR 45 = B8l B B AR ([ Bt
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ROEE) 8B 2R E B
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50% °

EENTER Y BRI ERS
FEARLENERT - ZER
BRFEETHRBERER
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(h) Exchange reserve

(i)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with functional currency other
than RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 1(s).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB410,830,000 (2016: RMB436,247,000).
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company refer to Note 27(b).

Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the directors haven’t
proposed a final dividend. Subsequent to 31 December
2016, the directors proposed a final dividend of HKDO0.02
per ordinary share, amounting to a total of HKD10,616,000,
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company. The final dividend
proposed after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2016.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

(h)

(i)

BB X i
ERREEEmERBRENA
RELUNHEEEBHEN X
MR MELENINEZHE
2B T RIBEH A 1(s) Pr#AY
SRRRER -
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RZZBE—tFE+ZB=+—
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=t+—H%& BEEESZRE
AERESREZERK0.0278
T 4 % 510,616,00058
TC o BERREAARQTRRE
FREGL#E - RIEHKRE
ERRENARPRELER =
ZE—REFE+ZA=1+—HER
AEE-



)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure, monitors the returns on capital, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

During 2017, there were no changes in the Group’s approach
to capital management from 2016.

Pursuant to the Interim Measures and the Implementing
Rules, the outstanding financial guarantee amount provide
by a financial guarantee company for a single customer
shall not exceed 10% of its net assets and the aggregate
outstanding financial guarantee amount provided by such
company shall not exceed 10 times of its net assets.

Particularly, the Group monitors regularly the residual
balance of outstanding guarantees for single customers and
multiples of the total outstanding guarantees in relation to
net assets and paid-in capital of Success Guarantee, which
is the principal operation entity of the Group, so as to keep
the capital risk within an acceptable limit. The decision to
manage the net assets and registered capital of Success
Guarantee to meet the needs of developing guarantee
business rests with the directors.

)

EXEHE
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HEBARENSEEERD
RIERBKFETRBHNER
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(i) Capital management (Cont'd) () BEXEE#E)
As at 31 December, multiples of the total outstanding W+=A=+—8 ' BBEEXK
guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in capital of EREEFERDHEARNR
Success Guarantee are as follows: FIEAERAENEZEWT ¢
Note 2017 2016
g —E—tf —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
Outstanding guarantees REIEPIER 1,578,345 1,077,282
Net assets of Success Guarantee SERIERNEEZEE (i) 430,134 436,923
Registered/paid-in capital of SERIERH
Success Guarantee HMER BHER (i) 330,000 330,000
Multiples of ZE
- net assets -EEFE 3.67 2.47
— paid-in capital —BHER 4.78 3.26
(i) The amounts of net assets and registered/paid-in capital (i) EQ:%—{:\E-I-:)EJ ==
as at 31 December 2016 are extracted from the audited = E’Qﬁ;@;?ﬁ&%}iﬂﬁ/ﬂ%{
PRC statutory financial statements of Success Guarantee. BRAE R B RAER

The amount as at 31 December 2017 is extracted from the
unaudited PRC management accounts of Success Guarantee.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
entities other than Success Guarantee described above.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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Exposure to credit, market and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practice
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk primarily arises from the possibility that a
customer or counterparty in the transaction may default,
leading to losses. Credit risk is primarily attributable to
outstanding guarantees (Note 30) issued by the Group,
financial leasing service, factoring receivable, down
payments for investments and other receivables.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts in
which it has guaranteed the financial institutes (including the
banks) the repayment of loans entered into by customers
of the Group. The Group has the obligation to compensate
the financial institutes for the losses they would suffer if
customers fail to repay.

Risk management committees of Success Guarantee
and Success Financial Leasing under the leadership of
the executive directors are tasked with organising and
coordinating the risk management and internal control for
guarantee business, financial leasing business and factoring
business, respectively. The committees are comprised
of the Group’s internal personnel. The committees are
responsible for (i) designing and implementation of overall
risk management internal control policies and procedures
and establishing appropriate risk appetite; (ii) designing
and execution of due diligence procedures; (iii) reviewing
the creditworthiness of customers before submitting to the
executive directors for final approval.

REFXEHBRES  AEEEERRE
E mERABESRER - AEEH
FrERrZERR AR A EEER
25 [ B P R R 9 B S L B R
RERIEPISBUT -
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantees issued, finance lease receivable
and factoring receivable. The Group manages credit risk
at every stage along the approval process, including pre-
transaction, in-transaction and post-transaction monitoring
processes. The Group conducts due diligence and evaluates
customers by internal credit assessment system during the
pre-approval process. Guarantees issuance, finance leases
issuance and factoring issuance are subject to approval
of the risk management committees and the executive
Directors.

The project managers assigned to each case monitor the
post-transaction status of the customers. Each manager
is responsible for a number of customers. They visit the
customers regularly to understand their operation and
financial status by checking their financial reports, sale
contracts, sale invoices, value added tax filing documents,
utility bills and bank statements and other relevant
documents.

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability
of various classes of collateral and determined the
corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines and
collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews
to ensure their effectiveness over credit risk management.
The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s
outstanding guarantees depends on the type of customers
and the product offered. Types of collateral mainly include
land use rights, machineries and equipment, properties
and vehicles, etc. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
value of outstanding guarantees of RMB188,943,000 (2016:
RMB279,898,000) is fully or partially covered by collateral.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(0

(@) EEREGE)

Risk concentration () [EEERES
When a certain number of clients undertake the same fWETEFEMERLE
business activities, stay in the same geographical REMEEXEKEE =
locations, or bear similar economic features for their ETEFEBHUNEK
industries, their ability to fulfil contracts will be affected ERSH HETEHOM
by the same economic changes. Concentration EIEZIERKLES
of credit risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s BHTE - EERKBN
operating results to specific industries or geographical EPRMAEFRLE
locations. As the Group mainly operates its businesses BEEARTERMIEN
in Guangdong Province of the PRC, there exists a ENHRMYE - HRAK
certain level of geographical concentration risk for its BEXERPEHEREL
guarantee portfolios in that it might be affected by EXEK HEmEERA
changes in the local economic conditions. EFE—ERENHE
SPEE TREZEE
U SEARR S B FE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of R+=—A=+—HBEE
these guarantees as at 31 December is as follows: ZEERNESEER
PREEEAT ¢
2016
“E—tF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 %  RMB’ 000 %
ARBTR % ARMTR %
Construction and BERZHE
installation 1,349,819 86% 723,603 67%
Wholesale and HBEREE
retailing 86,254 5% 106,476 10%
Manufacturing and ~ &3&ER T
processing 59,561 4% 83,054 8%
Transportation iy 6,000 0% 13,000 1%
Financial services & RLARFE 11,167 1% 4,947 1%
Others Hity 65,544 4% 146,202 13%
Total Fah 1,578,345 100% 1,077,282 100%
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 B EREEREMIA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d) NREE®E
(a) Credit risk (Cont'd) (a) EERKE)
() Risk concentration (Cont’d) () [EfERIES ()
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of RT+-B=+—HEH#
financial leasing service, factoring receivable, down RMEHSERY  RERE
payments for investments and other receivables as at WHE - REEBNRK
31 December is as follows: HittEWRIEN RS E
ERBEENT
2017 2016
“F—t#& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 % RMB’ 000 %
AR®FT % AR®TT %
Construction and BERZHE
installation 280,566 65% 170,658 60%
Business service [GEIE:S 49,254 11% 60,072 21%
Wholesale and HEREE
retailing 42,000 10% 42,000 15%
Financial services £ B AR 38,858 9% — —
Tourism and hie 32 K% AR 7% 3
service sector 17 0% B e
Others Hith 19,264 5% 12,047 4%
Total #Et 429,959 100% 284,777 100%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Guarantee loss assessment

The Group makes provision on guarantees issued if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occur after initial recognition
(@ “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
guarantees or group of guarantees that can be reliably
estimated.

Basis of provision against the outstanding guarantees
issued

The Group assesses (either individually or collectively)
the contingent liabilities arise from its outstanding
guarantees issued in accordance with HKFRS 37
and HKFRS 39. If it is determined that the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of past event (i.e. contingent liabilities) and if
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made, then a “provision of guarantee
losses” is recognised and the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The provisions
are determined by using individual and collective
assessments for the outstanding guarantees as at the
end of the reporting period. Provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

(i)

Guarantee loss assessment (Cont’d)

For all non-financial guarantees (i.e. performance and
litigation guarantees) and those financial guarantees
which are considered individually significant, the Group
performs individual credit evaluation on the customers
to determine whether the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of past event
(i.e. contingent liabilities).

The historical default rate, loss rate and economy
cycle are considered by the Group to be indicators of
losses from its financial guarantee business. Default
rate is the rate at which guarantee holders default on
the guaranteed loans amount that they owe. Loss rate
is the rate at which loss incurred by the Group for the
defaulted amounts.

For those financial guarantees that are not considered
individually significant and those financial guarantees
that have been individually assessed, but for which
there is no objective evidence of losses, the Group
adopts a methodology to collectively assess whether
there is objective evidence that losses on group of
financial guarantees are already incurred. For the
purposes of a collective evaluation of losses, financial
guarantees are grouped on the basis of similar risk
characteristics and the Group use a methodology
which utilizes a statistical analysis of historical trends
of probability of default and amount of consequential
loss, as well as an adjustment of observable data that
reflects the current economic and credit environment
and judgment on inherent loss based on management’s
historical experience.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Guarantee loss assessment (Cont’d)

If it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation arising from
the individual and collective assessments, provisions
will be recognised as liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position item “Liabilities from
guarantees” and the losses are included in “Impairment
and allowances (charged)/written back” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Basis of allowances of impairment for “Receivables
from guarantee payments”

When customers default on settling the loans advanced
from banks, the Group is required to honor the
guarantee contracts and required to settle the loans
on behalf of customer. Accordingly, the Group records
the “Receivables from guarantee payments” as “Trade
receivables”.

The Group performs individual credit assessments for
those recorded trade receivables. If there is objective
evidence of impairment of trade receivables, the loss
is measured as the excess of its carrying amount over
the present value of the estimated future cash inflows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows focuses on individual customer’s financial
status and information specific to the customers,
including cash flows generated from operation or
insurance claims, foreclosure less costs for obtaining
and selling the collateral, and any customers’ pledged
deposits received.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

(i)

Guarantee loss assessment (Cont’d)

For those trade receivables that have been individually
assessed, but for which there is no objective evidence
of losses, the Group groups these receivables on the
basis of similar risk characteristics and collectively
assesses for losses. The collective assessment utilizes
a statistical analysis of historical trends of probability
of default and amount of consequential loss, as well
as an adjustment of observable data that reflects the
current economic and credit environment and judgment
on inherent loss based on management’s historical
experience.

The losses arising from individual and collective
assessments are deducted from the carrying value of
the “trade receivables” on the consolidated statement
of financial position and the losses are included in
“Impairment and allowances (charged)/written back” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Provision assessment on finance lease receivable,
factoring receivable, down payments for investments
and other receivables

In accordance with accounting policies and regulations,
if there is objective evidence that indicates the cash
flow for a particular finance lease receivable, factoring
receivable, down payments for investments and
other receivables is expected to decrease, and the
amount can be estimated, the receivable is recorded
as an impaired receivable and the impairment loss is
recognised in the statements of profit or loss.

The Group’s policy requires regular review of the
quality of individually significant financial assets. For
assets for which an allowance for impairment loss is
provided individually, the amount is determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at reporting date on
a case-by-case basis. In making such assessments,
the Group considers the value of the residual value of
the leased assets (effectively the collateral held) and
expected future cash flows from the asset.

Impairment allowances are provided for the following
portfolios according to historical data, experience
and statistical techniques: (i) those consisting of
homogeneous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) those where losses that
have been incurred but have not yet been individually
identified with any specific asset within the portfolio.

(@) EEREGE)

(i)

BB MEHE ERT
- REEWRHE - K
BB 5 RAMERL
B IS

RESTRERER
HEEBEBERARE
MEHENEEMEMD
BERWFIE - RERW
FE -REEBARRE
fERRRENREERE
FRER A B & e s fh
& BUCGRIE ARSI S
B E R W FRIR - RE
BENERERER -

FEEHEESHEERKN
MEMEENEEES
AT EHI R o ¥ {E B
AAREERERINE
B AEEERESHEB
BEFGHHEBLRBR
LEEBENTRE
B ERMEBRES K
EEBEESZEHES
ERLERRFERR)
MEREREMRBEEE
HIARRIREREARR ©

AEERBEELEE
22 B ) IR A0 45 S BT Y
THEEASTRAE
R (EESBETE
AWEE RMHAER
EERERACERE
BERBEMSEEE
BERIHBIVEE °

FERE

195



196

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

(i) Provision assessment on finance lease receivable,

factoring receivable, down payments for investments
and other receivables (Cont’d)

The Group’s other credit risk is attributable to bank
deposits and security deposits. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The bank deposits and security deposits of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial institutions.
Management does not foresee any significant credit
risks from these deposits and does not expect that
these financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

(b) Market risk

Market risk arises when the adverse changes in market
prices (interest rates, exchange rates, as well as equity
prices and other prices) lead to losses from the Group’s
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet businesses. The
Group’s market risk mainly arises from currency risk and
interest rate risk.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

(b) Market risk (Cont’a)

(0

(i)

Currency risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted
in RMB, while most of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities are denominated in HKD and RMB. At
the end of the reporting period, the recognised assets
or liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of the Group entity to which they relate.
Accordingly, the directors considered the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant
during the year.

On the other hand, RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the PRC government may at its discretion
restrict to foreign currencies for current account
transactions in the future. Changes in the foreign
exchange control system may prevent the Group from
satisfying sufficient foreign currency demands and
the Group may not be able to pay dividend in foreign
currencies to its equity shareholders.

Interest risk

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
guarantee service, finance lease service, factoring
service and related consulting services to SME
enterprises in the PRC. lIts interest rate risk arises
primarily from deposits with banks, factoring receivable,
finance lease receivable and obligations under finance
leases.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rate. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its cash flow risks.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(b) Market risk (Cont’a)

(i) Interest risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate profile

(b) TiZEMEE)
(i) FEEEE(E)
() FI=HRR

The following tables detail the interest rate profile TRFLAEEE
of the Group’s assets and liabilities as of the end EEREEREE
of the years: RIFRIZAROR

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
RIFE—t&E R-ZT—RE
+=—RA=+—H +t=B=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Fixed interest rate ElE =
Financial assets EREE
— Cash and bank deposits —HERIRITER 990 6,175
- Pledged bank deposits —BEHRITER 82,144 94,503
- Factoring receivable —RIBFEUNFRIE 91,950 91,950
- Finance lease receivable — B EEKRIE 178,374 167,385
353,458 360,013
Financial liabilities Sz A=k
- Obligations under finance leases —REHEERE (506) (687)
— Interest-bearing borrowings —FTRER (5,000) —
(5,506) (687)
Net FE 347,952 359,326
Variable interest rate FEFRR
Financial assets EHMEE
— Cash and bank deposits —BERRITERK 38,244 151,511
- Pledged bank deposits —BEHIRITER 13,355 24,540
51,599 176,051
Net fixed rate financial assets as EENRESFHEEFEE
a percentage of total LR ERmEEFHE
net financial assets WAL 87% 67%
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(b) Market risk (Cont’a)

(i)

Interest risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased the Group’s profit after tax
and retained profits for the next 12 months by
approximately RMB193,000 (2016: RMB660,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period.
The impact on the Group’s retained profit after tax
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2016.

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

(c)

REE SR

EEEENERAEBNRE
BEE2FER  BREESAEEN
REffE  WnREHRER
HERBEEER - TRIIR
REEHRTEESRHEEN
BT ENEMER - IRER
BRENRERBERAKEA
BEREREENEEAIRE

= .

E

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows as at 31 December 2017

REF-tE+ZAZT-RARRAOREH

Contractual

Oneyearor Twoyearsor Five years or

Carrying undiscounted  Repayable Within  less but over less but over ~ less but over
amount cashoutflows ondemand  sixmonths six months oneyear  twoyears
FHR ~MEAME  -EME WERLE
FEE GUREERY  HBEE  A~EAMR i-f Y E3i%3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AREfR

Non-derivatives financial liabilities 374 $#&%
Recelpts in advance BfFE 7 7 = 7 - - -
Accruals and other payables EHERRAMENFE 48,210 48,210 40,762 7,248 20 = =
Customer pledged deposits received ~ CHEFERRHEE 62 62 62 = = — =
Obiigations under finance leases HEHEER 506 504 = 8% 8 170 24
Total o 48,785 48,873 40,824 7,340 285 170 254

Guarantees £

Maximum guarantees exposure BREREE 1578345 1,578,345 114419 331,287 377,762 593,990 160,887
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 E1558 » ZRIUA RHS)R)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'a)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

MEEREBEEREMTE
rRlEEm®E)

(c)

REVE & EbE(#F)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows as at 31 December 2016

RoB-AETZA=T-RARRAKRER

Contractual Oneyearor  Twoyearsor  Fiveyearsor
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Repayable Within ~ lessbut over  lessbut over  less but over
amount cashoutfows ~ ondemand  sixmonths  sixmonths oneyear  twoyears
L] ~ERRE  -EME O WEANL
FaE cORSRH  WREE  AEAMR E-F EWE ERf
RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBfn  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Non-derivatives financial liabilities 374 £& &
Receipts in advance B % % = % = = =
Accruals and other payables Eit B RREMRNGE 9871 9871 1957 7614 300 = =
Customer pledged deposits received ~ CUEFERRHEE 67 67 64 = 3 - -
Obiigations under finance leases HEHEER 687 786 = 8 87 175 47
Total a5t 10,661 10,760 2,021 1781 390 175 437

Guarantees iR

Maximum guarantees exposre BREREE 1077282 1,077,282 129595 164,49 254,807 334,853 193531

2017 Annual Report £ £ 3§ &
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(d) Fair value measurement

(d AREEEE

() Financial assets measured at fair value () BIALEBEITENLH
BE
Fair value hierarchy NREBEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREINAEERKS
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of HRREEEETEN
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised EMIENAAREE
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined ZETAENEREBY
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level BREZBEIIFELR
into which a fair value measurement is classified BEFEARE=ZAL
is determined with reference to the observability REEEHK - —EHAR
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation BEFEMEERER
technique as follows: Ti2Z T I ER M
A A S50 A B R
FEEMMEE :

Level 1 valuations:

E1RME

Level 2 valuations:

F2RkfhME

Level 3 valuations:

SEIRME

202 #HEzEzE (ER) GRLF

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

EBEAE 1S AYE(RMGERTERMISZHEREEREBENR
BORERE))FTEAAEE -

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

EAE2RMARB(TAFESF 1 RN ITBRREARE B~ EA
EATAEEBARB)GEQAABE  FABEGARBRATSH
BRAE 2@ ARE -

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

ERAEATTEERARBEQARER -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)

(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

()  Financial assets measured at fair value (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held only one
available-for-sale financial instrument, which was an
equity investment in an unlisted company (Note 13(d)),
with fair value measurement categorised into level 3.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of unlisted equity investment is
determined using the latest transaction price.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3
fair value measurements is as follows:

(d) AREEFEG@E)

(0

BAREENENE M
gE (&)

DAREBEER(E)
R-ZE—+tHE+=H
=+—H8 XEBEEE

E-EUHEESHT
B MmMEBESBMIAES
RIELTHRATHRER
E(Kt3E13d) D RE
B EDEEHIR -
BBEEIRAAEBES
EMER
RARETHEBZIENAR
BEDRARE XX
SEREE -

EIRMAREBEAES
BRI FREENT ¢

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

RIB—tF R-F-—XF
+=-HA=+—B +t=A=+—AH

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT ARBTT

Available-for-sale financial assets  A[ftHELREE

At 1 January H—A—H — —
Payment for purchases XTBER 8,066 —
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 8,066 —

FERE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and as at 31 December 2016.

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
financial instruments.

(i)

Trade and other receivables, factoring receivable
and finance lease receivable

Trade and other receivables, factoring receivable
and finance lease receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowances for impairment of
doubtful debts. Fair value is calculated based on
the present value of future principal and interest
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the balance sheet date.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based
on management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.
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(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value (Cont’d)

(i

(i)

Guarantees issued

The fair value of guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The market interest rates adopted for determining
the fair value of trade and other receivables are
ranging from 3.27% to 3.74% as at 31 December
2017 (2016: 2.82% to 3.06%).

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B85 » ZEIUNA RS T)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not (@ RZE—tF+ZA=+-—
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: B REMBRERPBEE2ZR
NHERAPEMT :
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFTE  ARMTR
Contracted for EHEY 4,355 —
(b) At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease b)) RZZB—F+=ZB=1+-—
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are B RBEBEAOEE LSRN E
payable as follows: B R REAENREED
T
2017 2016
—T—tF —ET—tF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARBTT
Within 1 year —F LR 3,070 8,490
After 1 year but less than 5 years —F Lk BFURA 2,821 25,464
After 5 years HELE — 6,422
Total st 5,891 40,376
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties REEAZIERE LAY
held under operating leases. None of the leases includes BYEMEEA - HERAYS
contingent rentals. ®AEHES -
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At 31 December, the total maximum guarantees issued are as

R+TZA=+—H BE#HNES

follows: ERGAZENT
Note 2017 2016
MIEE —E—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Financial guarantees BEER (i) 188,943 282,898
Litigation guarantees SREAER 114,419 127,191
Performance guarantees EAIER 1,274,983 670,193
Gross guarantee amount HIEREER 1,578,345 1,080,282
Proportional re-guarantee amount ZLeBHIDEREER — (3,000)
Total maximum guarantees issued EEHNRSERELE 1,578,345 1,077,282

(i)

Since 18 November 2013, the Group has provided
guarantees to customers who obtained funding from lenders
through peer-to-peer lending services platform - Guangdong
Jiayou Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiayou Network”).
Pursuant to the relevant agreement between the Group
and the borrowers, and the one between Jiayou Network
and the borrowers, the Group is charging guarantee fee
to the borrowers based on the borrowing amount while
Jiayou Network is charging a service fee to the borrowers.
The Group is required to make payments on behalf of the
customers to reimburse the lenders for a loss the lenders
incur when the borrowers fail to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

The guarantees provided by the Group through Jiayou
Network as at 31 December 2017 were RMB21,300,000
(2016: RMB62,220,000). Guarantee fee income received
from the customers for guarantee services provided through
Jiayou Network during the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 were RMB831,000 and RMB1,795,000,
respectively.

The total maximum guarantees issued represent the
maximum potential loss that would be recognised if
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted.

(ii)
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXFABARS

208

TRANSACTIONS
(@) Name and relationship with related parties () HE EBRERBETH
B &

During the year, transactions with the following parties are RER > EUTELNRXZH
considered as related parties: RABBEHERXS
Name of related party Relationship
BEHE EH BE
Mr. Zhang Tiewei A substantial shareholder, chairman and executive director
REERE ITERR  TEFRHUTES
Mr. Xu Kaiying A substantial shareholder and executive director
HelELE TERRRUITES
Mr. Pang Haoquan A substantial shareholder and executive director
EERTE TERRRUTES
Ms. Fu Jie Executive director
Rzt HTES
Mr. Chen Hui Executive director
BREEE HITES
Mr. Li Bin Executive director
Lt HITES
Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond Executive director
HBRLE HITES
Mr. He Darong A substantial shareholder and non-executive director
AERLE TERRRFHITES
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei Independent non-executive director
BRELL BYFHITES
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur Independent non-executive director
BAFEE BUFHTES
Mr. Xu Yan Independent non-executive director
FERE BYFHITES
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang Independent non-executive director
BNI%E BYFHTES

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited
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(b)

B RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

Name and relationship with related parties (Cont’d)

Name of related party
BBLI#E 8

Foshan Finance

Gl

(a) HR BB REBEBIN
2 REAEED)

Relationship

A company of which 100% interest is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,

Mr. Xu Kaiying and Mr. Pang Haoquan

REBEE  RIAREREERFEREE100% BRI D F

Success Credit
SHREM

Guangzhou Chenghuijin
BMNRES

China Success Credit Rating Co., Ltd.*
(“Success Credit Rating”)
HLmERERETEERAR(ERERTRE])

Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management
BHERLXER

Associate of the Group since 18 December 2012

BZ2-ZE8+ZAt\BEATEENHE AT

Associate of the Group since 1 February 2016
B-E-AF-A-ARATKENHENF

A company of which 100% interest is held by Foshan Finance

BLERIFEE100% BEN AT

A company of which 36% interest is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,

Mr. Xu Kaiying and Mr. Pang Haoquan

RERLLE  RAAREREEREEFAH36% EEN AT

*

The English translation of the name is for reference only. The
official name of the entity is in Chinese.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Group’s directors as disclosed
in Note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

Y BRLARNEREEAPI -
RUBEEHRSEZ -

(b) TEEEASHM

REENETEEEASHNE
RENASEESREKE
RENDNRENETESH
B 8 & 7R IR (I TR FIEE8) -

T
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ETT ARET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits < - ZE R EMER] 15,885 9,848

Contributions to defined contribution

retirement plan o] E R FGR IRET B R 153 233
Equity compensation benefits PR R B 1= R 67 493
Total st 16,105 10,574

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note 5(b)).

HEN AR A& TRAS J(H
& 5(b) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

(d)

(c) Related parties transactions () BHLIXS
Note 2017 2016
Bt =t —E—tf —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Service fee paid to Success mEKEEFT L
Credit Rating SAHREE - 10
Services fee from Shengshi Junen RERHERPEEIERN
Enterprise Management fRi%E (i) 7,547 —
() Success Asset provided consultancy services to () EREER—IEHEY
Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management in relation to FREARRE @R
interest integration and financing of a parcel of land EEAEEmEIE RN
and charged a consultancy fee of RMB8,000,000 (after MR WU B A
tax: RMB7,547,000). F % 8,000,000 7T (B B
#%: A R 7,547,000
JL)°
Balances with other related parties (d) SREMMEAN NS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the AR IR - 7 2 [ S R B
following balances with related parties: HE T :
Amounts due from related parties S BB T 2 1
Note 2017 2016
By 5 —F—tH —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETT ARETT
Foshan Finance FILEHE 13(d) — 6,107
Success Credit ERER 0] 2,730 2,730
Advance to Guangzhou B E MR E £ 1EH B
Chenghuijin 4 4
Total et 2,734 8,841

(i)

On 20 March 2014, the board of shareholders of
Success Credit approved to make a dividend with
an amount of RMB15,000,000 to its shareholders.
Success Guarantee was entitled to receive the dividend
with an amount of RMB2,730,000.

Balances with these related parties are unsecured. The
balances with these related parties are interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

R=-ZF-—ME=F=+
H EXERREEH
EREBRKEZEARY
15,000,000 7T 9 iR B. -
SERERBEBBAR
#%2 730,000 THI RS -

HEZEEBLNERD
BEM - HEIEEBS
MERBREREREE
BRHIR ©
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31 December

31 December

Note 2017 2016
MiEE RZF—t&E RIE—RE
+=ZHA=+—-B +ZA=+-—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT AR®T T
Assets BE
Cash and bank deposits BERBITER 2,244 103,798
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 400,703 324,497
Investment in subsidiaries RHEB R BNRE 12,507 12,112
Equipment B 231 375
Intangible assets BmEEE 8 11
Total assets EEHE 415,693 440,793
Liability afg
Accruals and other payables FEsHE AR H A FIE 622 305
Total liability =ik 622 305
NET ASSETS EEFE 415,071 440,488
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE
Share capital [i&N 27(c) 4,241 4,241
Reserves e 410,830 436,247
TOTAL EQUITY WEHBER 415,071 440,488

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson29 E =S ERBEER-_E—NE=A

March 2018. —thBAFIE-
SRR hA

Zhang Tiewei Fu Jie
Director Director

EE EE

FEHE 211



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (35 G587 » ZRIUA RS 7R)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 33 R&zZ=-ZT—t&+—-H

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
which have not been adopted in the financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BEMBRELRNEIR  TH LA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRUBMEERNELR - KEFFEA Wiz

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement
of share-based payment transactions
ERNBMELEDNE 25RNERT - KRG BE# BT -
LR BEBIINHLZ 7 ER T E

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property
EBETTEREA0RMNIER] - REMEHE - KREMEHENIEE
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

BB (BB RERBEED)RBE 2% SEXLFRANNE

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEBNBRELEAE 165 HE

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited

=+—HLEEECHEGE
REMHIERT « FER R
RENTRERE

BEAPBHRRTBEH BB
R A S E RS IRIER] KR
Bl ZE BT R EARBE
E—tHE+Z A=+ —HLEFEH
REN - BRAY KRR I REK
Ao LT RARERAEEMEENE
BAZER -

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBE#SR 2%
IR ST B AERK

1 January 2018
—E-N\E—H—H
1 January 2018
—E2-N\E—-AF—H

1 January 2018
—Z2-N\§—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—2-N\F—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—Z-N\¥-A—H

1 January 2019
—E-hF-HA—H
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZEILUA BHF)F)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 9, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of
the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date
is based on the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before the standards are
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options, until
the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including
the measurement of impairment for financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use
the exemption from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018.

REBEAEZEER - #elE
AR REHERERSENRSEY
& - B ARBECREIHTEA
ML H e S RS MHREK
EREAZE - BRARZENF
BERTX - BESBYBREE
BS9SRI R E RBEMK » HEH
RS TEREOFTEHERAREEE
BT EEHER - FHILHEIRRN
BENERZERETRE - TRE
NTERARAEEBE-Z—N\F
ANA =+ BikEX1E B 89 HI B RS R
A RBE-SRELE - AK
B REREHEEHBREE 8
BBERR EEZSENNLSE
FARZSBRE -

BERVBHRELERNFIR &
BMTH

BBV REEINFIFRASINAR
BHNem T ESTEATBETE
Hl5E39% ST HE: AR
B -EBMBEREENFIFRIIA
FHESREESERTENHR
E BEHEREERENTER
HHEg - Z—FHHE > BEEYHRK
HEAFIFRRBET BT ERE
SOFEANERARKILERAUR SF
BESENRE - RMEEEMMEXK -

BEMBREZENEIRR-F
—NF-A-—HHZERABNFE
HIBEHER - NEBEEIRAEHR
REFILBER  UEHR-F—N
F—RA - RSB ARERE
BERAZ -

FERE
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont’q) EARAMBREERNEIR &
AT B (#&)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s AEBEMBERRAENFTRENTE

financial statements are as follows: HAZENT .

(a) Classification and measurement (a ZDHERFE

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories BBMBHRELERFIFELRE

for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair —EERMEENETESER

value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through Bl (MIREEREFTE Q)

other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): FRBEZEAAEBEFER

QEBHEHMEZEKFRAA
BETE :

- The classification for debt instruments is determined - EBERIAESEIRER
based on the entity’s business model for managing HEREESAMEEN
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow XBEAREHEEEN
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is EHNHEEeREBFHE
classified as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment E-MEKIAEDEAS
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in ZREMEEKEE A
profit or loss. REEFTE  AFER

A BEREENES

AR RS T o

- For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL - PERIFZFMS W
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only ERNEBEXN IR D
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading BARAEBBEEAAE
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that BEtE - E—HIIMER
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated AidEEEFLIFEFE
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security BEE mMERAAITHD
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and WRBEEEBRESR
impairments on that security will be recognised in other ZRHME2ERKSZE
comprehensive income without recycling. NABEE - s

HEWEERBBHEM
2EHWEEXAEBERT
B ABERNERPE
R ZREWA - %
& W - BEKRR
1B A °T 88 [0 3t A EL At
2EWEPER -

214 #HEzEzE (BR) GRLF
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont’d)

@

Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with
their respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments
in equity securities which the Group has the option to
irrevocably designate as FVTOCI (without recycling) on
transition to HKFRS 9. The Group plans not to elect this
designation option for any of the investments held on 1
January 2018 and will recognise any fair value changes
in respect of these investments in profit or loss as they
arise. This will give rise to a change in accounting policy as
currently the Group recognises the fair value changes of
available-for-sale equity investments in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or losses
are recycled to profit or loss in accordance with the
Group’s policies set out in notes 1(g) and 1(j). This change
in policy will have no impact on the Group’s net assets and
total comprehensive income, but will impact on reported
performance amounts such as profit and earnings per share.

ERMBHREEAFIN &

mMITAE)
(@) HERHEB(E)

R S R R
AREBBREAAEE; R
S BEESNRAT B
SERSEEEEY Bl
WD BRETE -

RAEERFFRAUMHHEE
NEREEMS - ZFEER
HESESNRE MAKE
REEBHEHREEAE IR
BER - AESERRERH
BEHIEERBEBAEMEE
WEmE A AEEFE(TAR
[B) o A5 B 3 & 5T AR
N=E-N\F-A—-BHER
MIREEERALIEERE - B
BRZEREEEEMAQAE
EE2BKNESHRIAZER
B ARREAEBENE MR
T W s e R A EIRAE IR E
MARBERZE HEEHER
HERL BB Es
HREE - MBEREERER
BAEEBOR(HRN ()
RAG) BEEEE o HWIRBERE
BETERELEBFEER
SHWNEAE  BEFEER
EXESHE  NANBRERE
A e

FERE
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont’d)

@

©®)

Classification and measurement (Cont’d)

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does
not have any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement may not have any impact on
the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either a 12-month expected credit
loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. The Group expects
that the application of the expected credit loss model will
result in earlier recognition of credit losses.

Based on a preliminary assessment, if the Group were to
adopt HKFRS 9 at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net
assets would decrease by less than 1.7% as a result of the
new requirements on classification and measurement, and
impairment as compared with that recognised under HKAS
39.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

ERMBHREEAFIN &

MITAE)
(@) HERHEB(E)

®)

ARV KRELEAE IR DL
RITESREBENRERARE
ELEAREEBETEREI
SRMEE  MEBMIEHREE
AIEOSERE  BAREMER
TERMEHEREEEEB
BREBEARBEFENESRE
ENARBEEESEREME
AREFBRAZ(TEEFIHE
ZER) AEEBEBFILET
MEMABBEREAAEERE
FTENESRERE > Fit - 8
FRERMEAREBIRMREE
B SRS RSB QSR E A M
s/,

B

B

BFRYBRELERFEIFAN
FREEKX U FAREEEE]
BAMAEBETERSEI9
FANEBREFE IESX - R
BROFEEREX - B#EB
FREBRBHHEARERS
Bk BEARBEEMNU
REERBRAEIARER
12ERABEEBERNKA
BHFEERR - AEERS
EREMEEBRERKEES
RERIAGESE -

RIBEF LM - MEREER
2017512 B 31 BIRME B L
B EERIE IR DENE
B35 (B BY # #8 E B2 HKAS 39
e BEREENFEET
FERHBIB1.7% -
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (cont’a)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of
services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies
the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the following areas which are expected to be affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
note 1(r). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of
services is recognised over time.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control
of the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

()  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

3B REBEEZ_F—tHF+_AHA

=t+—HLEFEECHEMGE
KEFHIIES - TERR
REMFTEEZE @)

BRMBHREERE 1555 - K
BEF&N WS

BBMBRELEREIGRELT —
BRAREBETFATEHNZBA
MEFSER - BB BHREELSE
15 RAMAEBHRA LR : &8
S EAE18R - MACREHE
AmAMEHRREEENRA)RER
S EAF MR -BESNERE
TERESHBANEZE) -

RIBES TR - AEECHE
EUATHEARSZERE

@ AR

REBHBATERBERBEER
MiEE1r) - B AT BHRBE
A R 2 BB B R A9 HE RS T
HERR

RIBBBYBREERIE5
5 WMAREFEEEHZE
R E YRR 2 R R
R BBMBHRELERE5
SRERE T U T H A SR
B ERRRREREER
=EER:

) EFEFREIEEBAKE
RESRERAETEEY
FRiZ Btz RIS
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (cont’a)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

(@)  Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is
not likely to have significant impact on how it recognises
revenue from guarantees issued and provision of financial
leasing, factoring and financial consultancy services.

FEERERE (ER) BR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited
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RBE-_ZE—tF+TH
=+—HIESEEBCEMKGE
REDRIEET - FHER R
RENFRERZE #)

BRMBHREERE 1555 - K
BEFENWE @)

(a) WAREZRIFFE (&)

(i) EXBBEHAEZER
—HREEWAIENIE
BEHREFEGZEE
(MNERTRR)E ;

(i) EXrBcENNLEAE
HEEmMSABKAR
2EE BZREBgYHE
SERZBHNNERESR
A ITRERIBE o

MENRRREREDL B

NZE=RERNEN—&
AIREBEEEMBRELEDSE
155 E - ZEEMEER
m 55 AR 7% 122 26 18 05 ] 34 (B 42
FIECEBE)BAWA - fr
BRENERRCHRHEBES
BB B A R B R RS
ETRNERZ— -

REBEFTERIADTBALE
BIFA KA ReE H 2 B HVER
RRUEBMERE - RERRE
AR H B A TR &K
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (cont’a)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

©)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

Advance payments are not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers, with the exception of
when residential properties are marketed by the Group while
the property is still under construction. In this situation, the
Group may offer customers a discount compared to the
sales price payable, provided the customers agree to pay
the balance of the purchase price early.

3B RBE_FE—LF+=A
=+—HIESEEECHEMKGE
RERIEET - FHEA R
RENRERZE #)

BRMBHREERE 1555 - K
BEF&N WS @)

b) BEAHELD

BERMERELEREISHEE
REBRENEEEARED
PRREKFEEEAERS
B MABRBEEFZAR
#5 K &8 2 32 A Uk BN =R FE 18 Uk
Hyo

B AEEEENRERE
FESRBFIE A RZBR - Maz B
BAEARSREER FHZH S
EAER - BE - NEEHE
T 12 B W 2 A9 7R I A %
& o

BREAEEREE FHZHS
UAER - HEAREEERES
YIS 2 M DRI AR B BR
e RILBRT @ FEFRER
RAIBEEREE - AR
SETRESTRNEEER L
EEFREER -
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HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

©®)

Significant financing component (Cont’d)

Where such advance payment schemes include a significant
financing component, the transaction price will need to be
adjusted to separately account for this component. Such
adjustment will result in interest expense being recognised
to reflect the effect of the financing benefit obtained from
the customers during the period between the payment
date and the completion date of legal assignment, with a
corresponding increase to revenue on sale of properties
recognised when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer. However, the actual extent
of impact of this new accounting policy will also depend
on whether and by how much such interest expense can
be capitalised as part of the cost of the properties under
HKAS 23, Borrowing costs. If the interest expense is to be
capitalised until the construction work is completed, then
this new accounting policy will not have a material impact
on the Group’s net profits during the construction period
and gross profit from the sales of properties. The Group is
in the process of assessing the implication of the significant
financing component identified from the property sales on its
capitalisation policy.

TEERBER (BR) ARATF

BEEMBHRELEAE 155 - X
BEFEHAWEE)

(b) EABELT (B)

THZIRAI AT B BIEE KR
BERD  BEHRZEETH
B BEBHZRDETEE
B ZHARBEIBERAE
B » BURBRASER B HREES A E
EZ R A ESE SR
BEWHENTE  MERIY=
HiEFIRER TR FREER
KV SE E WS AR AN - SR
M ZIEH] BRI ER
FERETBRFZAEHZ
EEREEBETERZE23
BRI ER L BYERK
R —H D UK BEERLLEY
ERAR—ID WZAEEEH
SEME - MAEHIKTE
FCEEERIRBT IR -
RIZIEHEI ST BERE TS
7 88 (8 74 2 5% HA R A9 73 R A
MIHEMENENEEERY
. REBIETHEMENE
BRNEAREX DS HHEER
{EBRHIEE °
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HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(i), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-
of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

ERMKRELERE165; > A
g

AN EE1G) AT IR E - ANEE IR
HHEsEAREHERELEH
g WRBHEN S EHEEZH
ETTRNEGHZE - XEBES
HBAFT Y ETHEL  HeBELA
YEBFEFEA °

BB BRELERF 167K T
SHHBAARBEOSREHLERR
BENAXELEERTE - AW -
RABEBYBREENF165RE
FEARTBEIMEHEREE
HE - BR - |RFITTEEREM
o ARAASZRECRERER
EEREREREMBHEL - B
RELQFEE B8 ABAGEKR
REBEEENRNRERIRTE
HERE LRI EEROIMER
BIEE ROSTEIAZEERE
B% - FEASEIEERELR
FREENNERREREEER
B MERBRABERRAHRER
EGEERARBEEHNOAEE
MEEMX - FR—ETTEES
% AREATERET LSRN
FERAREREE (AIERA+ZEA
FUT)REEEEENHEE - RN
ZRRT - MR AGHEENEDR
NIRRT -

FERE

221



222

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 G158 + ZBIUA REIT)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 29, at
31 December 2017 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to RMB5,891,000
for properties, which is payable within 1 year or between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (cont'd)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition options
and practical expedients, including the practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient
is chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not chosen,
the Group will need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the new definition.
Depending on whether the Group elects to adopt the standard
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective method of
recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group
may or may not need to restate comparative information for any
changes in accounting resulting from the reassessment.
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After the end of the reporting period the Group issued convertible
bonds due 2020 at an interest rate of 6%, in an aggregate
principal amount of HKD154,000,000. A total of 70,000,000
Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued to the Purchaser,
representing approximately 13.19% of the issued capital of the
Company as at the date of issuance and approximately 11.65% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue
and allotment of the Conversion Shares.

After the end of the reporting period the Group acquired 100%
ordinary shares of T.M. Management Limited, which is licensed
to carry out business of Type 9 Regulated Activities as defined
in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Total consideration was
HKD6,500,000, of which HKD1,290,000 has been prepaid as at 31
December 2017. On 14 February 2018, the transaction has been
completed.

After the end of the reporting period the Group withdrew the
injected capital at an amount of RMB3,200,000 from Guangzhou
Chenghuijin, one of the associates.
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